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Statement of compliance
For the year ended 30 June 2012
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Women’s Interests; Youth
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Act 2006 I hereby submit for your information and
presentation to Parliament, the Annual Report of the
Department for Communities for the financial year ended
30 June 2012.
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with
the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006.

Responsible Minister
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Jenni Perkins
Accountable Authority
20 September 2012
Director General
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A major focus of the
department has been
the implementation of
the National Quality
Framework for Education
and Care Services, as part
of the early childhood
reform agenda.
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1.0 Summary of the year

1.1 Director General’s report
Over the past 12 months the Department
for Communities has been actively involved
in helping to shape and implement four
significant reform agendas. These include the
state government’s sustainable funding and
procurement reforms to underpin the future
delivery of community services by not-for-profit
organisations; the National Quality Framework
for Education and Care Services, as part of
the national early childhood reform agenda;
the development of sustainable models for
rural child care and youth mentoring reform.
The department’s approach to collaboration
and partnership, which is embedded in
its engagement across multiple sectors
and stakeholders, has provided a strong
foundation for the successful development
and implementation of these key agendas.
Following the successful roll-out of the state
government’s 15 per cent funding increase to
eligible not-for-profit organisations on 1 July 2011,
the department has worked in close consultation
with our funded organisations to develop new
outcomes-focussed service agreements and more
flexible funding arrangements across its seven
funding programs. As a result, new agreements
for up to five years are now in place across four
of the department’s program areas, with work
well under way to finalise all program areas.
This has been achieved through working in close
collaboration with our community sector partners.

It has been pleasing to see firsthand the benefits
of the new flexibility in funding agreements,
which, for many services, has translated into new
and innovative models of service delivery that
are more reflective of local community needs.
A major focus for the department has been
the implementation of the National Quality
Framework as part of the Council of Australian
Governments’ Early Childhood Reform Agenda.
Key to this was the introduction of the Education
and Care Services National Law (WA) Bill
into the Western Australian Parliament. The
department worked closely with the education
and care services sector and conducted 25 public
workshops and forums for over 700 participants
across the state to keep the sector informed
of the requirements under the new national
legislation. The department’s Children’s Services
Officers continued to play an important role in
working with local education and care services
to support the transition to the new National
Quality Framework in 2012, as well as providing
an important contact point for families seeking
information about and access to child care.
Supporting the development of viable and
sustainable child care options in regional
areas is also a priority, as many communitybased regional services face unique challenges
in meeting the child care needs of their
communities. The development of the Regional
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Community Child Care Development Fund
(supported by Royalties for Regions funding
of $9.3 million over four years) builds on the
department’s strong regional partnerships,
long-term experience in working closely with
community management groups, and its
detailed knowledge and expertise in child care.
Quality mentoring is increasingly recognised
as an effective way to support young people’s
wellbeing. The department continued its work
with the Youth Mentoring Reform Group, jointly
chaired with the community sector, to develop
a strategic framework for youth mentoring to
support better coordinated and more effective
mentoring programs for young people. This
year saw the commencement of four mentoring
demonstration projects auspiced through the
community sector to support high quality
mentoring programs. In addition, training
workshops were conducted with over 250
participants statewide.
Alongside the department’s work across these
major reform programs, our Parenting WA
program has continued to provide a range
of workshops, information and one-on-one

support to build the confidence of parents of
children up to the age of 18 years. This has
included the development of partnerships and
collaborative approaches across government and
non-government programs to build the capacity
of the parenting sector and develop a shared
understanding of best practice approaches to
support parenting. An exciting project for the
department is the piloting of an online model
of the successful TripleP parenting program, in
collaboration with the University of Queensland,
as the department explores contemporary ways
to engage new generations of parents.
There has been unprecedented growth in the
department’s Seniors Card program. As of
30 June 2012, there were 332 204 WA Seniors
Card holders – an increase of six per cent over the
past 12 months. This partly reflects the expanded
eligibility criteria introduced in May 2011, as well
as the realities of an ageing population as the first
of the baby boomer cohort turned 65 years old in
2011. As the number of card holders has grown, the
Seniors Telephone Information Service received
over 67 000 calls, up from 27 000 last year.
Since its inception, volunteers have been a key
component of the Seniors Telephone Information
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Service, as well as the Seniors Card guest
speaker program, and I would like to especially
acknowledge the contribution of our senior
volunteers to supporting such a valued program.
A significant milestone this year was the
15th anniversary of Cadets WA, which now has
7 546 young people involved in 195 cadet units
across the state. Here it is also important to
acknowledge the significant role played by some
700 cadet leaders whose voluntary efforts across
these units underpin the ongoing success of the
Cadets WA program.
Indeed, 2011, which is the tenth anniversary
of the International Year of Volunteers, has
highlighted the invaluable role played by
countless volunteers across the state in
supporting their local communities. Fittingly,
this year saw the introduction of the inaugural
50-Year Volunteer Badge to honour those
volunteers who have contributed 50 years
or more of voluntary service to the same
organisation. As a humble insight into the
remarkable life-long commitment made by many
Western Australians, a total of 200 badges have
been presented in the first year of this initiative.

May 2012 marked the fifth anniversary of the
formation of the Department for Communities.
I would like to acknowledge the commitment,
passion and professionalism of Communities
staff over this time. I would also like to recognise
and thank our community sector and state and
local government partners with whom we work
in close collaboration to achieve our vision of
‘strong, vibrant communities where all people
belong, matter and contribute’.
Jenni Perkins
Director General
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1.2 Executive summary –
Performance and financial highlights
In 2011–12, Communities accomplished the following significant achievements:

Payments and Rebates

Seniors Rebates

Made $67.3 million in payments
and rebates to eligible Western
Australians – 50 per cent of
Communities total expenditure.

Paid $33.8 million in Seniors Cost of
Living Rebates to 262 547 Senior Card
holders, along with 20 647 Seniors
Safety and Security Rebates,
totalling $3.7 million.

Community Organisations
Allocated $29.6 million to more
than 370 community organisations to
deliver services, build communities and
celebrate and recognise the contributions
of many groups and individuals who
work to improve their communities.

Information and Support
Provided information and referral
support in response to over 92 000
calls to one of the four information
services run by Communities.

Seniors and Concessions
Implemented expanded eligibility
criteria for the WA Seniors Card,
resulting in over 332 204 seniors now
being able to access an estimated
$1 450 in government concessions
and rebates along with discounts
from over 635 businesses.

Redress WA Scheme
Completed the Redress WA Scheme,
which provided ex gratia payments
totalling almost $118 million to a
total of 5 325 eligible applicants.

Social Enterprise
Launched the state government’s
$10 million Social Enterprise
Grants program to support the
development of social enterprise
in the community sector.

Social Innovation
Administered the Social Innovation
Grants program, allocating funding
totalling over $3 million for 18
innovative community projects.
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National Quality
Framework
Supported the passage of the
Education and Care Services National
Law (WA) Bill 2012 through Parliament
as part of the implementation of the
National Quality Framework for Early
Childhood Education and Care.

Regional Child Care
Developed and launched the
Regional Community Child Care
Development Fund, with funding
totalling $9.3 million over four years
under Royalties for Regions.

Sustainable Funding
Successfully rolled out the state
government’s 15 per cent funding
increase to support more sustainable
service provision across 170 services
funded by Communities and jointly
developed with the sector new long-term
outcome-based service agreements
across four of the department’s seven
funding programs.

Youth Mentoring Reform
Continued to lead youth mentoring
reform, in partnership with the
community sector, establishing
four demonstration projects and
conducting training workshops across
WA attended by over 250 participants
to support the development of quality
mentoring programs.

Cadets WA Anniversary
Celebrated the 15th anniversary of
Cadets WA with the launch of a new
brand to promote the benefits of
Cadets WA, which supported a record
number of 7 546 young people in
195 cadet units across the state and
successfully piloted the junior River
Rangers program in five schools.
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Parenting WA offers an
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families with children up
to 18 years of age.
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2.0 Overview of the department

The Department for Communities promotes
the interests of Western Australian children,
parents, young people, seniors, women, carers,
volunteers and community organisations in the
development of policy and programs across all
levels of government.
The department is also responsible for
delivering programs and services to support
and strengthen Western Australia’s diverse

communities. This includes: administering
WA’s child care regulatory framework and
managing the licensing and compliance of child
care services throughout Western Australia;
the Best Start program for Aboriginal families
and children aged 0–5 years; the Seniors Card
program; the Seniors’ Information Service; the
Women’s Information Service; and Parenting WA,
which provides state-wide and locally-based
services for parents and families.

2.1 Operational structure
2.1.1 Strategic plan
Communities’ organisational planning includes
its five-year strategic plan, an evaluation
framework, resourcing strategies and annual
operational plans for each directorate. This
planning provides clear links to government
legislation and policy and the state government’s
priorities. The department’s 2011–12 funding
was allocated to three key service areas. Each of
these service areas supported Communities’ role
in providing strategic leadership to strengthen
communities.
Performance and achievements for each of these
services are reported in chapter 4.4 of this report.
Performance measures for auditing purposes are
reported in chapter 5.5.

Strategic Plan
2011-2015

Our Vision

Our Purpose

Our Values

Listening and Understanding

Collaboration

Strong, vibrant communities where all people belong, matter and contribute
Our Strategic
Priorities

Identify and address the unique issues
faced by women

In partnership with community
service organisations, we will...

Diversity
Sustainability and Innovation

Contribution and Celebration

Enrich the lives of children and families

Recognise and support the valued
contribution of carers

Strengthen parenting across all communities

Support volunteering in the community

Encourage and support young people to
engage in community life

Encourage and support older people to
live full and active lives

Respect
Engagement

Innovation

Integrity

Government of Western Australia
Department for Communities

Please refer to our strategic
plan on the following double
page spread.

Strategic Plan
2011-2015

Our Vision

Strong, vibrant communities where
Our Purpose

Our Values

Listening and Understanding

Collaboration

Diversity
Sustainability and Innovation

Contribution and Celebration

Respect
Engagement

Innovation

Integrity

Government of Western Australia
Department for Communities

all people belong, matter and contribute
Our Strategic
Priorities

Identify and address the unique issues
faced by women

In partnership with community
service organisations, we will...
Enrich the lives of children and families

Recognise and support the valued
contribution of carers

Strengthen parenting across all communities

Support volunteering in the community

Encourage and support young people to
engage in community life

Encourage and support older people to
live full and active lives

14

Department for Communities: Annual Report 2011–12

2.2 Organisational chart
Communities was established as a department under the Public Sector Management Act 1994 in 2007.
The chart below outlines the organisational structure which was in place during this reporting period.

Hon Robyn McSweeney MLC

Advisory Councils

Minister for Community Services;
Seniors and Volunteering;
Women’s Interests; Youth

Seniors Ministerial Advisory Council
Women’s Advisory Council
Carers Advisory Council

Director General
Jenni Perkins

Children and
Family Services

Policy and
Planning

Community
Engagement

Corporate and
Business Support

Debra Clements
A/Executive Director

Margaret Dawkins
Executive Director

Karin Mac Arthur
Executive Director

Elizabeth Delany
A/Executive Director

(Helen Creed up to
January 2012)
Redress WA Scheme
Stephanie Withers
Executive Director
(Up to December 2011)

(Peter Walton up to
December 2011)
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Children and Family Services

Community Engagement

Programs and Services:
Early Years
Best Start
Parenting WA
Child Care Licensing and Standards Unit
COAG Reforms – Early Childhood Education and Care

Community Funding Unit
Cadets WA
Community Relations Unit
Seniors Card Centre

Information Services:
Parenting WA Line

Information Services:
Seniors Information Service
Women’s Information Service

Corporate and Business Support
Policy and Planning
Policy and Projects:
Seniors
Volunteers
Children
Early Years
Families
Youth
Carers
Women
Corporate Planning, Research and Evaluation
Executive Support:
Women’s Advisory Council
Seniors Ministerial Advisory Council
Carers Advisory Council

Finance
Human resources
Corporate information
Asset and office facilities
Information technology

Redress WA Scheme
Implemented the Redress WA Scheme
on behalf of the state government for
adults who were abused or neglected
as children while in state care.
The scheme was completed in
December 2011.
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2.2.1 Corporate executive
Director General
Jenni Perkins
Ms Perkins has had extensive experience in
social policy and community development
across the non-government, local government
and state government sectors. Ms Perkins was
appointed Director General of the Department
for Communities in August 2010. Prior to
joining the department, she was Director of
Policy and Strategy with the Disability Services
Commission, where she had a lead role in
cross-jurisdictional funding negotiations and
development of state and national disability
policy. Ms Perkins holds a Bachelor of Social
Work from the University of Western Australia
and a Master of Arts (Public Policy) from
Murdoch University.

Children and Family Services
Executive Director
Debra Clements (acting)
Ms Clements’ working career has centred
primarily on the public sector where she has
worked in policy and practice roles in a range
of areas including child and family welfare. She
has held strategic leadership roles, managed
service delivery programs and overseen policy
development, coordination and implementation.
She has a Bachelor of Arts and Bachelor of
Social Work degree from the University of
Western Australia.

Policy and Planning
Executive Director
Margaret Dawkins
Ms Dawkins was appointed to the position of
Executive Director, Policy and Planning in 2010,
having previously been Director, Office for Youth
at the Department for Communities. Ms Dawkins
has previously headed the Office for Seniors
Interests and Volunteering. Her background
includes roles as a researcher and practising
psychologist in information and policy positions
in the public and university sectors. Ms Dawkins
has a Bachelor of Psychology and a Diploma of
Education specialising in Special Education from
the University of Western Australia and is a
Healthway Board member.

Community Engagement
Executive Director
Karin Mac Arthur
Dr Mac Arthur was appointed to the position of
Executive Director, Community Engagement,
in March 2009. She has held several senior
community engagement roles with the
Government of Western Australia, including
with the Office of Multicultural Interests, the
Department of Indigenous Affairs, and also as
a senior policy adviser in the Department of the
Premier and Cabinet. Before immigrating to
Western Australia in 1996 Dr Mac Arthur worked for
several years with community groups in Africa and
Latin America on behalf of the European Union.
Dr Mac Arthur holds a BA (Hons) in Interpreting
and Translating, a MPhil in International Politics
from Trinity College Dublin, and a PhD in Media
and Communication from Murdoch University.
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Corporate and Business Support
Executive Director
Elizabeth Delany (acting)

Redress WA
Executive Director
Stephanie Withers

Ms Delany has extensive knowledge and
experience in public administration, corporate
business and HR management. Previously, she
has worked in the Tasmanian and Victorian
public services, and has held senior positions
at the Department of the Premier and Cabinet
and the Public Sector Commission. Ms Delany
and her management team are focussing
on the provision of high-level advice to the
Director General and Corporate Executive in
the areas of organisational planning, leadership
strategies, and compliance with government
and legislative requirements.

Ms Withers previously held several
management roles in corporate support at
Tourism WA, the Ministry of Justice and the
Public Service Commission. Prior to joining
the state government, Ms Withers worked
in social welfare policy and service delivery.
Ms Withers has qualifications in social work
and public sector administration.
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2.2.2 Staff locations
Regional service delivery is integral to Communities outputs. The maps present
the location of Department for Communities staff across Western Australia.
In addition the department funds services in a range of locations in the
metropolitan and regional areas (not shown in these maps).

Country locations
Albany
Broome
Bunbury
Carnarvon
Donnybrook
Geraldton
Hedland
Kalgoorlie
Kununurra
Marble Bar
Moora
Mullewa
Narrogin
Newman
Nullagine
Northam
Paraburdoo
Roebourne

Kununurra
Broome

Hedland
Marble Bar
Nullagine
Roebourne

Paraburdoo
Newman

Carnarvon

Mullewa
Geraldton
Moora
Northam
Narrogin
Donnybrook
Bunbury
Albany

Kalgoorlie
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Joondalup

Balcatta
Metropolitan locations
Armadale
Balcatta
Cannington
Fremantle
Gordon Stephenson House (GSH)
Joondalup
Midland
Mount Lawley
Peel
Port Kennedy
South Lake

Midland

Mt Lawley
GSH

Cannington

Fremantle

South Lake
Armadale

Port Kennedy

Peel
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2.3 Legislative framework
As at 30 June 2012, Communities administered the following legislation on behalf of the Minister for
Community Services; Seniors and Volunteering; Women’s Interests; Youth:
Carers Recognition Act 2004
Child Care Services Act 2007
Volunteers and Food and Other Donors (Protection from Liability) Act 2002
Child Care Services (Child Care) Regulations 2006
Child Care Services (Family Day Care) Regulations 2006
Child Care Services (Outside School Hours Care) Regulations 2006
Child Care Services (Outside School Hours Family Day Care) Regulations 2006
Child Care Services Regulations 2007
Child Care Services (Rural Family Care) Regulations 2010

Other key legislation
In performing its functions Communities complies with the following laws:
Auditor General Act 2006
Corruption and Crime Commission Act 2003
Disability Services Act 1993
Equal Opportunity Act 1984
Electoral Act 1907
Financial Management Act 2006
Freedom of Information Act 1992
Industrial Relations Act 1979
Library Board of Western Australia Act 1951
Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984
Public and Bank Holidays Act 1972
Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003
Public Sector Management Act 1994
Salaries and Allowances Act 1975
State Records Act 2000
State Superannuation Act 2000
State Supply Commission Act 1991
Workers’ Compensation (Common Law Proceedings) Act 2004
Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981
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2.4 Performance management framework
The Department for Communities’ outcome-based management framework was updated in the
2011–12 Budget Statements following approval by the Department of Treasury. This included changes to
the service structure and to the effectiveness and efficiency indicators.
The work undertaken by Communities is covered by the state government goal: Outcome Based Service
Delivery. The link between the government goal and the department is outlined below:

State Government Goal
Outcome based service delivery
Greater focus on achieving results in key
service delivery areas for the benefit of
all Western Australians
Outcome 1
Communities are strengthened so that
individuals and families are better able
to meet their needs
Service 1
Child and family services
Service 2
Strategic policy and coordination
Service 3
Redress WA Scheme

Key effectiveness indicators
Ţ &YUFOUUPXIJDIDVTUPNFSTSFQPSU
their needs are met
Ţ &YUFOUUPXIJDITUBLFIPMEFSTSFQPSU
that policies/projects have an impact
on strengthening the community
Key efficiency indicators
Ţ $IJMEBOEGBNJMZTFSWJDFTřBWFSBHF
cost per service
Ţ $IJMEDBSFTFSWJDFTřBWFSBHFDPTUQFS
licensed service
Ţ "WFSBHFDPTUQFSQSPKFDUGPS
 ř ZPVUI
 ř DIJMESFOBOEGBNJMJFT
 ř TFOJPST
 ř WPMVOUFFST
 ř XPNFO
 ř DBSFST
Ţ "WFSBHFDPTUUPBENJOJTUFSB
Seniors Card
Ţ "WFSBHFDPTUUPBENJOJTUFSFBDI
Seniors Cost of Living Rebate
Ţ "WFSBHFDPTUUPBENJOJTUFSFBDI
Redress WA claim
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3.0 Significant trends and issues
Promoting the positive development
of children and families
The ‘Engaging Families’ research under the
national Childhood Development Strategy
confirms the need to deliver consistent and
evidence-based messages to parents and
carers regarding early brain development
and its practical implications for parenting.
The Department for Communities will provide
practical parenting strategies consistent
with these messages to inform and support
families, and will work in partnership with the
Departments of Education, Child Protection
and Health and the not-for-profit sector to
plan and establish the state government’s
ten Child and Parent Centres on school sites.
Children face a number of critical developmental
issues during their middle years (9–14 years).
There is growing evidence that well-targeted
programs engaging children in structured and
supervised activities during this time help
them develop confidence, team work and

leadership skills, thereby reducing the
likelihood of involvement in anti-social
behaviour. Communities will build on the
success of a two year pilot and will introduce
a new and expanded River Rangers junior
cadet program catering for an estimated
500 children.
The department will continue its partnership
with the Australian Research Alliance for
Children and Youth and the Commissioner for
Children and Young People to deliver seminars
for parents and professionals to support the
development and wellbeing of children in the
middle years.

Education and care services
Quality childcare supports children’s early
learning and development. A new legislated
national regulatory and quality assurance
system for the early education and care sector
will be introduced along with workforce planning,

Children aged 9-14 years
face a number of critical
development issues. The
department is working in
partnership with a range of
organisations to support
parents of children in the
middle years.
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information and support to assist child care
services transition to the requirements under
the National Quality Framework for Early
Childhood Education and Care.
Amendments to the Child Care Services Act 2007
and Regulations came into effect in January
2012, resulting in an expansion of the access
of both the Department for Communities and
licensees to the State Administrative Tribunal
for dealing with compliance issues in licensed
services. The Tribunal provides the opportunity
for a broader range of actions including
mediation of matters, imposing disciplinary
actions on the licensee, requiring education
or training to be undertaken or imposing
fines. This move has been well received by the
education and care services sector as it aligns
with other professional groups.

Involving young people in
community solutions
Western Australia has one of the fastest
growing populations of young people in the
country. By 2030 there will be over 550 000
young Western Australians aged between
12–25 years. Although most are doing well,
some young people face significant challenges.
Issues of concern to many young people include
study problems and coping with stress, alcohol
and drugs, bullying and safety in public spaces.
In 2011, 82 per cent of Western Australian 15
to 24 year olds were in education, training or
employment. The benefit of quality mentoring
programs to increasing participation in these

areas is well documented. Communities will
continue to support youth mentoring through
the Youth Mentoring Reform Project, in
partnership with community groups and the
private sector.
Research shows that young people want to
be involved in decisions, taken seriously and
recognised when they do well. Many young
people actively contribute to community life,
with 26 per cent of 18 to 24-year-olds in Western
Australia volunteering in 2010. The department
will continue to support young people to be
future leaders and to participate in developing
solutions to community issues, including
through the department’s Youth Friendly
Communities Grants Program, and will profile
the positive contributions young people make
to the community.

Planning for seniors
The proportion of Western Australians aged
60 years and over will increase by more than
150 per cent by 2050. The age range of
seniors now spans over forty years, from
60 to 100-plus, and within that range there
are increasing numbers of groups with special
needs, including migrants from non-English
speaking backgrounds and Indigenous people,
singles, those with complex health needs and
those under financial duress. These trends
point towards the need for ‘people centred’
services, that reflect the diversity within the
seniors population, and enable seniors to
make choices that fit their circumstances.
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The Seniors Wellbeing Indicators 2012 and
the Profile of Seniors, both released by the
department this year, inform the government’s
strategic and service planning for WA’s seniors.
Age-friendly planning at a local level continues
to be supported through funding and resource
development.

Increasing awareness and support
for carers
Over 310 000 carers in Western Australia assume
an essential role providing ongoing support
and care for family members and friends with a
disability, or who are chronically ill or frail. Caring
continues to be one of the most significant forms
of unpaid work undertaken by family members
BOEGSJFOETřUIFNBKPSJUZPGXIPNBSFXPNFO
Young carers remain a complex and often
hidden group who need to be identified and
supported to have the same educational and
social opportunities as other young people.
Communities will continue to promote increased
awareness of and support for carers through
funding to the community sector and by
supporting the Carers Advisory Council.

Advancing and supporting
volunteering
In 2011 the total value of volunteering to the
Western Australian community was estimated
to have reached $9.4 billion. Patterns of
volunteering are shifting and trends are varied.
Communities will continue to advance and
support volunteering through the strategic
direction of the ‘Vital Volunteering Strategy
2011-2016’. The department partners with state
and local governments and volunteer-involving
community groups to promote the development
of contemporary volunteer management
practices to meet the needs of today’s
volunteers. This includes contributing to sector
sustainability by funding volunteer resource
centres, service supports and reduced fee,
and free, volunteer police checks.
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Overcoming barriers to women’s full
participation in the community

Supporting innovation and enterprise
in the not-for-profit sector

Women make up almost half of the population
and yet continue to face substantial challenges
to their participation in paid work, ascension
to leadership roles and face particular health
issues including a high risk of mental illness.
Guided by Australia’s international obligations
as a signatory to the Beijing Declaration and
Platform for Action 1995 and the United Nations
Convention on the Elimination of all Forms of
Discrimination Against Women, Communities’
‘Women’s Interests Strategic Directions
2011–14’ identifies four priority areas of women
in leadership, safety and justice, economic
independence and health and wellbeing.

As part of the state government’s Sustainable
Funding and Contracting Services initiative,
the department will continue to work closely
with its community sector partners to
ensure fair and appropriate prices are paid
for purchased services. Procurement reforms
including outcome-based deliverables, longerterm service agreements and streamlined
reporting requirements will positively impact on
organisations across the sector. This includes the
140 organisations receiving recurrent funding
from Communities (40 per cent of which are
regionally based). The state government’s focus
on building innovation and enterprise within the
not-for-profit sector will continue to be advanced
through the department’s administration of
the Social Innovation Grants program and the
development and implementation of the new
Social Enterprise Fund Grants program.

Strategies to address these areas include
scholarships for women to attend courses at
the Australian Institute of Company Directors to
enhance their board readiness, conducting events
to promote women’s economic independence
through entrepreneurial opportunities and
supporting the entry of young women and girls
into non-traditional career paths.

26

Department for Communities: Annual Report 2011–12

Profile of key populations
The work of Communities touches on the lives of most Western Australians at some point during their
lives. The following table illustrates the size of the current population groups which are the focus of
the department.

Total
(no.)

Total
Proportion
(%)

64 084
61 416
125 500
119 958
115 558
235 516
236 701
222 616
459 317
194 940
216 279
411 219
ƺƺǁƼƼƼƿ ƺƺƿǁǁǀǂ ƻƼƾƻƻƺƾ
ƺƺƻƻƹƹ
ƺƼǂǁƹƹ
ƻƾƻƺƹƹ
ƺƾǀƹƹ
ƺƾƿƹƹ
Ƽƺƽƹƹ
296 600
293 900
590 500
ř
ř
ƻƼǁƹƹƹ
ř
ř
ƾƼƹƹƹ

5.3
10.0
19.5
17.5
ř
ř
ř
34.9
ř
ř

Males
(no.)
Young Children (0–3 y/o) a
Children (4–11 y/o) a
Youth (12–25 y/o) a
Seniors (60yrs and over) a
Gender a
Carers b
Young Carers (15–24 y/o) b
Volunteers c
Couple families with dependent children d
One parent families with dependent children d
a As at June 2011. ABS (2012), category number 3101.0
b As at December 2009. ABS (2010), category number 4430.0
c As at November 2010. ABS (2011), category number 4441.0
d As at June 2010. ABS (2011), category number 4442.0







Females
(no.)
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3.0 Significant trends and issues

Projected growth
The estimated change in representation of children, young people and seniors based on estimated
residential population in June 2011 and projections to 2031.
Percentage of total population

25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%
Children (0–11)
Youth (12–25)
Seniors (60+)

2011 (June)

2016

2021

2026

2031

15.3%
19.5%
17.5%

15.4%
18.1%
19.9%

15.2%
17.5%
21.5%

14.8%
17.3%
22.9%

14.4%
17.3%
24.1%
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4.0 Agency performance
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Delivery of services, funding and grants
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33
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39
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Delivery of services
4.4.1
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4.4.2
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4.4.3
Service 3 – Redress WA Scheme

40
40
46
57

Grants are an integral
part of the Department
for Communities’ strategy
to provide community
groups with resources
to foster innovation and
build strong, vibrant
communities.
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Communities contributes to the state
government’s development of social policy
in the areas of children, parents and their
families, young people, seniors, women, carers,
volunteers and non-government organisations.
The department is also responsible for the
delivery of programs and services to support
families, children, youth, women, carers,
volunteers and seniors. It achieves this
through direct service delivery and funding
to the not-for-profit sector.
The department’s 2011–12 funding was allocated
to three key service areas. Each of these service
areas supported Communities’ role in providing
strategic advice, leadership and advocacy to
strengthen communities. Performance and
achievements for each of these services are
reported in section 4.4.

The state government entrusted Communities
with administering and paying major concession
programs and payments to the public, including
the Redress WA Scheme, the Seniors Cost
of Living Rebate and the Seniors Safety and
Security Rebate. Together, these programs
accounted for 50 per cent of the department’s
expenditure in 2011–12.
Sections 4.1–4.3 provide information on funding
and grants to community organisations,
community recognition programs and
information services.

2011–12

Key Financial Indicators
Total cost of services*
Net cost of services
Total equity
State funding
Cost of payments and rebates*
Staffing levels
Approved full-time equivalent
staff level
*Note:

2010–11
$’000

Actual
$’000

Budget
target
$’000

161 342
159 411
58 115
155 867
101 411

134 904
130 816
70 284
134 452
67 336

108 199
106 689
53 124
100 942
45 684

26 705
24 127
17 160
33 510
21 652

237

222

222

0

Variation
$’000

Ţ *OŘUIFCVMLPGFYHSBUJB3FESFTT8"4DIFNFQBZNFOUTXFSFNBEF UIFDPTUPGXIJDIHSFBUMZJODSFBTFE
Communities’ expenditure relative to previous years.
Ţ 5IF3FESFTT8"4DIFNFXBTDPNQMFUFEMBUFBOENPSFQBZNFOUTXFSFDBSSJFEPWFSJOUPŘŻOBODJBM
year than originally projected.
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The chart below shows the relative spending by Communities on major areas for 2010–11 and 2011–12.
The top three largest expenses for both years were in the areas of funding to community organisations,
the Seniors Cost of Living and Safety and Security Rebates and Redress WA Scheme. The Redress WA
Scheme was completed late in 2011. The largest increase across years was the Cost of Living and Safety
and Security Rebates, followed by increased funding to community organisations. Overall, expenditure
increased in all areas, other than employee expenses and Redress payments.
160

$5.8 million
$7.9 million
$11.8 million

140

$13.1 million
120

$21.4 million

100

$6.4 million

Child care licensing

$8.0 million

Child and family services1

$12.0 million

Projects and operating
expenses

$11.6 million

Employee expenses2

$29.6 million

Funding to community
organisations

$37.6 million

Seniors Cost of
Living and Safety
and Security Rebates

$29.8 million

Redress WA Scheme
payments

$23.9 million

80

$77.5 million
60

40

20

0

2010–11 recast
1
2

Child and family services provided by Communities.
Employee expenses excluding child care licensing and child and family services.

2011–12
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4.1 Delivery of services, funding and grants
A significant increase in the amount of funding
occurred during 2011–12. Total funding available
for funded services, community grants and
Cadets WA was $29.6 million. This represented
a 38 per cent increase in funding managed and
administered by Communities to the not-forprofit sector. This included the Social Innovation
Grants Program to promote innovation in
social and community services and the Social
Enterprise Fund Grants Program.

The following bar graph shows the significant
increase in recurrent community funding
availability since the department was first
established in 2007. Recurrent funding of
community organisations has increased by
32 per cent from 2007–08 to 2011–12.

$17.9 million

2011–12

$15.7 million

2010–11

$15.4 million

2009–10

$14.7 million

2008–09

$13.6 million

2007–08
0

4

8

12
Millions ($)

16

20
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The table below shows the number of community organisations with recurrent funding in the past two
years. More details of funding per organisation are provided in Appendix 1.
Count of community organisations
Recurrent funding (’000)
Less than $20
$20–$50
$51–$100
$101–$200
$201–$500
More than $500
Total

2009–10

2010–11

2011–12

19
64
35
26
11
5

19
58
35
26
12
5

3
59
34
27
15
6

160

155

144*

*In 2011–12, due to the cessation of Commonwealth funding for the Western Australian Occasional Child Care program, a
number of services transitioned to the Commonwealth’s Long Day Care funding program. Additionally, the Department
for Communities prioritised funding for rural and regional services where there was limited or no other child care service
available. This has resulted in a reduced number of funded organisations.

In brief ...
$37.6 million

Total spent on the delivery of departmentally
delivered and funded services.

79 per cent

The percentage of the total spend on
the delivery of services that went to
community organisations.

96 per cent

The percentage of 1 771 surveyed service
users who were both happy with the service
they received and thought it met their needs.
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4.1.1 Grants to community groups
Grants are an important part of Communities’
strategy for providing community groups with
resources to build participation and inclusion in
community life and celebrate contributions to
the community. The strength of this approach
is in the flexibility it allows in supporting new
ideas or short-term projects with a focus on
building communities.
Each year, a range of grants programs are
developed and delivered to achieve strategic
priorities and they may vary in nature and
volume. In 2011–12, Communities provided a
total of $4 312 956 through nine grants programs
to community organisations:

In brief ...
$4 316 264

Total funding spent on community
grant programs.

$15 927

The average value of each grant.

271

The number of grants awarded.

242

The number of community organisations
to receive a grant.

Ţ JOEJWJEVBMHSBOUTXFSFQBJEUPEJƋFSFOU
community organisations at an average value
of $15 927 per grant
Ţ 5
 IFWBMVFPGHSBOUTSBOHFEGSPNUP
$338 483.
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Grant Programs

Number of Total funding
recipients
allocated

Beyond Gambling Grants Program
The Department for Communities and the Department of Racing, Gaming and
Liquor have partnered to provide the Beyond Gambling Grants Program. Grants are
available to enable not-for-profit community organisations and local governments
to deliver local solutions that address problem social gambling issues.

3

$479 820

Community Activity Grants
Funding of up to $2 500 is available to enable community organisations to
develop projects that meet the Department for Communities’ strategic
directions and priorities.

16

$35 576

Grants for Women
Funding of up to $5 000 is available for community organisations to develop
projects that strengthen the health and wellbeing of women, encourage
women’s economic independence, encourage women’s leadership and/or
encourage women’s sense of safety in the home or community.

29

$120 565

National Youth Week Grants
Funding of up to $1 000 is available for organisations to host a National Youth
Week event that brings young people together. Priority is given to applications
that provide opportunities for young people to express their ideas and views,
celebrate the positive contribution young people make to the community, or
encourage the participation of diverse groups such as Indigenous, culturally
and linguistically diverse, and young people with a disability.

82

$81 384

Regional Community Child Care Development Fund
The Regional Community Child Care Development Fund was established to support
the development of sustainable models of regional community-managed child
care that meet the needs of families living in regional Western Australia
28

$292 077

Social Innovation Grants
The Social Innovation Grants Program was established to promote innovation
in the delivery of social and community services.

18

$3 011 059

Thank A Volunteer Day Grants
Funding of up to $1 000 is available for community organisations to host
Thank a Volunteer Day events. Organisations may apply for a Thank a
Volunteer Day grant in order to host an event to thank and recognise
volunteers for their valuable contribution to the community.

40

$33 415

Youth Friendly Communities Grants
Funding of up to $10 000 for local government authorities to research
the views of young people, by engaging them in creative ways, to inform the
planning and development of their communities.

9

$81 500

Youth Activities Project Grants
Funding of up to $5 000 is offered for community organisations to develop
projects that encourage young people to get involved in innovative and
challenging community projects and activities. Projects must benefit young
people between 12–25 years.

46

$180 867
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4.2 Community recognition programs
The department organises and sponsors a wide range of award programs and events to promote,
celebrate and recognise Western Australia’s diverse and vibrant communities. Collectively, these events
bring people together to acknowledge the effort that goes into making the communities in which we
live more enjoyable and to highlight individuals and groups who act as positive role models.
Description

Department contribution

Date

The Bendigo Bank Seniors Week
Seniors Week acknowledges and
celebrates the outstanding contribution
seniors make to their local communities
and to Western Australia’s economic,
cultural and social life.

Coordinated the week, including
collating and promoting all registered
community events. The department
also coordinated, in partnership with its
sponsors, a number of major events,
such as the WA Seniors Awards, Seniors
on the Swan, and Grandparents Day at
Perth Zoo.

November
2011

Carers Week
The week promotes and raises
awareness of the valuable role carers
play in our community and to generate
discussion about carer issues.

Held an event for carers and
representatives from organisations
that make a significant contribution to
carer awareness to thank them for their
contribution and promote awareness of
carer issues to other stakeholders.

October 2011

Children’s Week
A week dedicated to celebrating children
and highlighting their achievements.

Provided funding to Meerilinga Young
Children’s Foundation to coordinate
a wide range of activities, including
the Children’s Week Awards and
provided additional funding to 16 WA
regional centres to enable community
organisations to host events throughout
the week.

October 2011

Families Week
The main annual celebration that
recognises the importance of families
in building strong communities. It is
held during National Families Week.

Hosted a Families Week geocaching
fun morning in which families shared
a modern day treasure hunt using
geo-positioning technology.

May 2012

International Women’s Day
The day is celebrated globally each
year and provides an opportunity
for the community to recognise
the achievements of women, past,
present and future, and to highlight
their economic, political and social
contribution to society.

March 2012
Held a Discussion Lounge on the eve of
International Women’s Day featuring
inspiring speakers who discussed the
theme ‘The mothers of invention: women
as innovators and agents of change’.
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Description

Department contribution

Date

National Youth Week
A youth-led series of events to celebrate
the skills, talents, creativity and
contribution of young people to the
community.

Employed a model of youth-led project
planning and event management, in
partnership with Propel Youth Arts WA,
the City of Bunbury, Investing in Our
Youth and others, to deliver a highly
successful series of events. These
included workshops in the months
leading up to National Youth Week, a
launch event in Bunbury, a week-long
Youth Hub in Northbridge and the
Kickstart Youth Markets and Music
Feedback Concert.

April 2012

Neighbour Day
The last Sunday in March each year has
been set aside to acknowledge Neighbour
Day as a day to promote neighbourly
behaviour and encourage contact with
people in the community who may be
isolated, vulnerable or lonely.

Developed a webpage featuring ideas
for celebrating Neighbour Day locally,
ideas for businesses and community
organisations and other practical
resources to encourage participation
in the day.

March 2012

Refugee Week
Young people from refugee backgrounds
shared their experiences at the
Restoring Hope Art Exhibition.

Partnered with Propel Youth Arts WA,
the Office of Multicultural Interests and
Red Cross to engage with schools and
organisations working with young people
from refugee and migrant backgrounds
to produce artworks that depict their
refugee and resettling experiences. This
resulted in a well-attended exhibition
in Perth, to be followed by a travelling
exhibition to the Great Southern and
South West regions.

June 2012

Thank a Volunteer
Celebrations across Western Australia on
Thank a Volunteer Day are designed to
recognise and thank volunteers and to
increase awareness of the contribution
volunteers make to our communities.

Provided funding to, and partnered
with, Volunteering WA to hold the main
celebratory event, which was a garden
party for volunteers at Government
House. This included the launch of the
new 50-Year Volunteer Service Badge for
those volunteers who have provided over
50 years of service to one organisation.

December
2011
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Awards
Awards

Purpose

Number of
nominations

Community Services
Excellence Awards

Recognise the important role the community services
sector and individuals play in making a positive
difference to people, families and communities
through their innovative and creative services.
Presented in partnership with the WA Council of Social
Services and supported by Lotterywest.

105

Positive Image Awards

To acknowledge groups of secondary school students
who have made a significant contribution to improving
the image of young people in their community.

15

WA Seniors Awards

To acknowledge and celebrate the outstanding
contribution seniors make to their local communities
and to Western Australia, particularly through
volunteer work.

62
Seniors Awards

The awards also include the Deborah Kirwan Media
Awards for the positive portrayal of seniors.

51
Deborah Kirwan
Media Awards

The awards showcase the talents young people
have demonstrated through leadership, citizenship,
caring for the environment, and as role models. This
includes the Communicate! WA Youth Media Awards.
The awards are presented in partnership with the
Youth Affairs Council of WA and are supported by
Lotterywest.

119
Youth Awards

WA Youth Awards

100
Communicate!
WA Youth
Media Awards
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The department gratefully acknowledges the generous support of our sponsors:
BHP Billiton

Catholic Education Office

beyondblue

Woodside

Fujifilm

Commissioner for Children
and Young People

6PR

Australian Super
Westscheme Division

West Television

Skywest

Edith Cowan University

United Community

Have a Go News

Propel Youth Arts WA

HESTA

The Senior Newspaper

Singapore Airlines

Perth Zoo

X-Press Magazine

Community Newspaper
Group

RTR FM 92.1

Bendigo Bank

Seniors Recreation Council WA

Channel 7

Burswood Entertainment
Complex

Belrose Care

COTA WA

Recognition
Recognition
Cadets

Description

Number of
people

Cadets uses three forms of recognition to
acknowledge service by Cadets WA adult instructors:
Ţ DFSUJŻDBUFBGUFSTJYZFBSTPGTFSWJDF
Ţ NFEBMBGUFSZFBSTPGTFSWJDF
Ţ DMBTQBGUFSZFBSTPGTFSWJDFBOEGPSFBDIŻWF
years thereafter.

15 certificates
23 medals
42 clasps

50–Year Volunteer
Service Badge

To acknowledge and celebrate the outstanding,
life-long service of volunteers to community
development outcomes.

200

Seniors Gold Card

Gold Cards are awarded to seniors who achieve the
milestone of 100 years of age.

61
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4.3 Information services
From resource kits, brochures and directories to
seminars, workshops and forums and on-line
mediums such as websites and email networks,
Communities aims to inform, educate and link
people to the services and information they need.
Communities operated four telephone information
and referral services in 2011–12. Both the seniors
and women’s information services are made
possible by over 50 dedicated volunteers who
answer calls throughout the year.
The Redress WA helpline operated until the
scheme’s call centre ceased in November 2011,
with the Redress WA Scheme coming to an end.

Number of calls taken

2009–10

2010–11

2011–12

Parenting WA
Seniors Telephone Information Service
Women’s Information Service
Redress WA Helpline*

7 836
22 678
2 173
12 265

11 681
27 369
3 221
31 030

12 356
67 789
2 277
9 964

Total

44 952

73 301

92 386

*Officially the Redress calls centre ceased 10 November 2011.
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4.4 Delivery of services
4.4.1 Service 1 – Child and family services
This service provides for the regulation and
quality assurance of early education and care
services and the provision of information,
services and programs to support children,
parents, families and communities.

Key strategies
Ţ 3FHVMBUJOHRVBMJUZDIJMEDBSFBOETVQQPSUJOHUIFDIJMEDBSFTFDUPSBOEGBNJMJFT
Ţ 1
 SPWJTJPOPGQBSFOUJOHJOGPSNBUJPOBOETVQQPSUTFSWJDFTBOEXPSLJOHXJUIUIFQBSFOUJOHTFDUPS
to address emerging issues.
Ţ 4VQQPSUJOH"CPSJHJOBMGBNJMJFTUISPVHIUIF#FTU4UBSUQSPHSBN
Ţ '
 VOEJOHDPNNVOJUZPSHBOJTBUJPOTUPQSPWJEFQBSFOUJOH FBSMZZFBST GBNJMZBOEDPNNVOJUZ
support services.
Ţ 1
 SPNPUJOHUIFDSJUJDBMJNQPSUBODFPGUIFFBSMZZFBST JODMVEJOHQSPWJTJPOPGFBSMZZFBSTBDUJWJUJFT
money.
Ţ 8
 PSLJOHBTBQBSUOFSUPJNQMFNFOUUIF$PVODJMPG"VTUSBMJBO(PWFSONFOUT&BSMZ$IJMEIPPE
Reform agenda.
Ţ 1SPWJEJOHDPNNVOJUZGBDJMJUJFTTVDIBTGBNJMZDFOUSFTBOEDPNNVOJUZOFJHICPVSIPPEDFOUSFT
Ţ %FWFMPQJOHSFTFBSDI QPMJDZBOEDPNNVOJUZJOGPSNBUJPO

4.0 Agency performance

Major achievements 2011–12
Ţ 4
 VDDFTTGVMMZSFHVMBUFEDIJMEDBSFTFSWJDFTJO8FTUFSO"VTUSBMJBUISPVHIJOTQFDUJPOWJTJUT 
assessment of applications, investigations of breaches and prosecutions of services.
Ţ )
 FMEƻƾQVCMJDJOGPSNBUJPOTFTTJPOTUISPVHIPVUUIFTUBUFUPTVQQPSUUIFJNQMFNFOUBUJPOPGUIF
new regulatory framework for education and care services. Over 700 participants attended sessions
held in Perth, the Pilbara, South West, Great Southern, Wheatbelt, Goldfields and Mid West.
Ţ %FWFMPQFEJOUFHSBUFETFSWJDFNPEFMTJOQBSUOFSTIJQXJUIHPWFSONFOUBOEDPNNVOJUZBHFODJFT
Ţ 1SPWJEFEƶƺƹƾƹƹƹUPTVQQPSUUIFJNQMFNFOUBUJPOPGUIF/BUJPOBM2VBMJUZ'SBNFXPSL
 ǋ ƶǂƹƹƹƹUPUIFSVSBMDIJMEDBSFGVOEFETFSWJDFT PDDBTJPOBMDBSFTFSWJDFT řƺǁTFSWJDFTBUƶƾƹƹƹ
per service to assist with working towards the national changes
– $15 000 to Child Australia to support the three year old kindergarten programs with working
towards the national changes.
Ţ $
 POUSJCVUFEUPUIFEFWFMPQNFOUPG*OEJHFOPVTDIJMEBOEGBNJMZDFOUSFTJOŻWFMPDBUJPOTXJUIUIF
Department of Education, the Department of Health and the Department of Indigenous Affairs.
Ţ %FWFMPQFEBOPOMJOFSFTPVSDFLJUUPTVQQPSU&BSMZ:FBST/FUXPSLT
Ţ 1
 SPWJEFEƶƻƼƿǂƾƾJO&BSMZ:FBST"DUJWJUZ.POFZUPTVQQPSUƻƹƹDPNNVOJUZJOJUJBUJWFTUPJNQSPWF
the wellbeing of young children aged 0–8 years. Examples of the types of activities include:
– $2 000 to Treloar Child Care Centre, South Hedland to increase young children’s cultural
awareness through experiencing local language and cultural experiences in partnership with the
Wangka Maya Aboriginal Language Centre
– $499 to Harvey Library to boost the variety of music and books for the weekly rhyme time and
story-time sessions to share ideas and increase language skills with families from non-English
speaking backgrounds and isolated parents
– $1 000 to provide equipment for the Gosnells Park and Play supported outdoor play group for
families and carers with children aged 0–5.
Ţ 1
 BSUJDJQBUFEJOUIFOBUJPOBM&OHBHJOH'BNJMJFTJOUIF&BSMZ$IJMEIPPE%FWFMPQNFOU4UPSZQSPKFDUUP
research and develop user-friendly resources for families with young children.
Ţ &
 TUBCMJTIFEBOJOUFSBHFODZQBSFOUJOHSFGFSFODFHSPVQUPCFUUFSDPPSEJOBUFQBSFOUJOHQPMJDZBOE
services across government agencies.
Ţ 6
 OEFSUPPLEFWFMPQNFOUPGUIF1BSFOUJOH8"(VJEFTGPSGBNJMJFT JODMVEJOHEFWFMPQJOHTQFDJŻD
guides for Aboriginal families.
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Major achievements 2011–12
Ţ $
 PNNFODFEBOPOMJOF1PTJUJWF1BSFOUJOH1SPHSBNUSJBMUISPVHI1BSFOUJOH8" XJUIUIF6OJWFSTJUZ
of Queensland to support families with children aged 2–9 years who find it hard to access regular
parenting programs due to time, distance or cost.
Ţ $POEVDUFEBMNPTUƺǀƹXPSLTIPQTGPSBCPVUƻƹƹƹQBSFOUTEVSJOHUIFZFBSUISPVHI1BSFOUJOH8"
Ţ 1
 SPWJEFEGVOEJOHPGƶƼƻNJMMJPOUPƺƻDPNNVOJUZPSHBOJTBUJPOTUPQSPWJEFQBSFOUJOHTFSWJDFT
throughout Western Australia.
Ţ "
 NFOEFEUIFChild Care Services Act 2007 to assist the early childhood sector with the transition
to the National Quality Framework.
Ţ $
 POUSJCVUFEUPUIFBOBQIZMBYJTQSPKFDUXJUIUIF%FQBSUNFOUTPG)FBMUI &EVDBUJPOBOE&EVDBUJPO
Services to further the aims of the Anaphylaxis Report.
Ţ $
 PNNFODFEJNQMFNFOUBUJPOPGUIF3FHJPOBM$PNNVOJUZ$IJME$BSF%FWFMPQNFOU'VOE 3$$$%' 
to support sustainable models of regional community-managed child care for families living in
regional Western Australia.
Ţ 1
 SPHSFTTFEUIFQBTTBHFPGUIF&EVDBUJPOBOE$BSF4FSWJDFT/BUJPOBM-BX 8" #JMMUPJNQMFNFOU
the National Quality Framework in Western Australia.
Ţ 1MBOOFEBOFXSFHVMBUPSZVOJUUPSFQMBDFUIFFYJTUJOH$IJME$BSF-JDFOTJOHBOE4UBOEBSET6OJU
Ţ 1
 SPWJEFEFYUFOTJWFUSBJOJOHUP$IJME$BSF-JDFOTJOHBOE4UBOEBSET6OJUTUBƋJOFBSMZDIJMEIPPE
quality issues.
Ţ 1
 SPWJEFEGVOEJOHPGƶƻƹƿƹƹƹƹUPVQHSBEFBOENBJOUBJODIJMEDBSF GBNJMZBOEDPNNVOJUZDFOUSFT
to ensure their ongoing suitability for community purposes.
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Measure

2008–09

2009–10

2010–11

2011–12

2011–12
target

Percentage of customers satisfied with Aboriginal Early Years, Parenting Services, Home Visiting
Services, Occasional Care and Family and Community Support Services
Percentage

97%

96%

98%

96%

95%

1.1 Average cost per child and family service
Total cost
Number of services
Average cost per
service provider

$26 250 169 $29 929 004 $30 435 073
202
201
214
$129 951

$148 901

$142 220

$5 788 692
828

$6 398 214
927

$6 376 150
900

$6 991

$6 902

$7 085

1.2 Average cost per licensed child care service
Total cost
Number of services
Average cost per
service provider
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The Child Care Licensing and Standards Unit
undertook significant work in 2011–12 with the
education and care sector in preparation for
the National Quality Framework and the new
national regulatory system while maintaining
a comprehensive licensing system.

Licensing information
Number of licensed child care places
Number of inspection visits
Number of applications for a new license
Number of new licenses granted
Number of license renewal applications
Number of license renewals granted
Number of investigations of a breach of regulations
under Child Care Services (Child Care) Regulations 2006
and Child Care Services (Outside School Hours Care)
Regulations 2006
Number of services prosecuted for breaches in
the Magistrates Court
Number of services where disciplinary action was
taken by the State Administrative Tribunal (and
number of matters pending)*

2009–10

2010–11

2011–12

44 684
2 205
360
316
485
387

46 466
2 149
323
275
429
507

51 727
2 033
356
320
220
199

127

89

79

4

7

1

n/a

n/a

4(1)

*By the Child Care Services Amendment Act 2011, the Tribunal was granted jurisdiction to hear applications for disciplinary
action. The jurisdiction became active as of 9 January 2012. In CEO of the Department for Communities and Camp Australia
Pty Ltd [2012] WASAT 56 the Tribunal found it could impose sanctions for breaches that had occurred prior to 9 January 2012.
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Looking forward to 2012–13
Ţ 1
 BSUOFSXJUIUIF%FQBSUNFOUTPG&EVDBUJPO $IJME1SPUFDUJPO )FBMUIBOEUIF8"$PVODJMPG4PDJBM
Service in planning for 10 Child and Parent Centres on school sites to commence 2014–15.
Ţ *ODMVEFBNJEEMFZFBSTDPNQPOFOUJOUIF1BSFOUJOH8"4USBUFHJD'SBNFXPSLUPGPDVTPOUIF
importance of effective parenting of 9–14 year olds.
Ţ %
 FWFMPQBOEQVCMJTI1BSFOUJOH8"(VJEFTGPSEJTUSJCVUJPOUP8FTUFSO"VTUSBMJBOGBNJMJFTXJUI
children pre-birth to 18 years in response to the most commonly requested information.
Ţ &
 YQBOEUIF$PNNVOJUJFTXFCTJUFUPJODMVEFBTUBUFJOUFSBHFODZQPSUBMGPSUIF1PTJUJWF1BSFOUJOH
Program and continue participation in the on-line research trial.
Ţ $
 POUJOVFQBSUJDJQBUJPOJOUIF&OHBHJOH'BNJMJFTSFTFBSDIVOEFSUIF/BUJPOBM$IJMEIPPE
Development Strategy to provide practical parenting strategies regarding early brain development.
Ţ *OUFHSBUFUIFOBUJPOBM&BSMZ:FBST-FBSOJOH'SBNFXPSLJOUP#FTU4UBSUQSPHSBNT
Ţ %FWFMPQBTUSBUFHJDGSBNFXPSLUPHVJEFGVUVSFQSBDUJDFJO"CPSJHJOBMFBSMZZFBSTQSPHSBNT
Ţ 1SPDMBJNUIFEducation and Care Services National Law (WA) Act 2012.
Ţ 5SBOTJUJPOUPUIF/BUJPOBM2VBMJUZ'SBNFXPSLGPS&BSMZ$IJMEIPPE&EVDBUJPOBOE$BSF
Ţ $
 PNQMFUFTUBHFUXPPGUIFBOBQIZMBYJTQSPKFDUXJUIUIF%FQBSUNFOUTPG)FBMUI &EVDBUJPOBOE
Education Services to further the aims of the Anaphylaxis Report.
Ţ *NQMFNFOUJOJUJBUJWFTBTQBSUPGUIF3FHJPOBM$PNNVOJUZ$IJME$BSF%FWFMPQNFOU'VOEJODMVEJOH
– provision of strategic grants of up to $25 000 to increase the viability and sustainability of
services and/or the sector
– development of regional children’s services plans in partnership with the non-government sector.
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4.4.2 Service 2 – Strategic policy and coordination
This service provides for the development,
planning and provision of information, programs
and support for seniors, volunteers, women,
carers and youth to build and promote strong
and vibrant communities, along with program
development to support services for children
and families.

Key strategies
Ţ 6
 OEFSUBLJOHSFTFBSDIBOEFWBMVBUJOH
programs to inform policy, program and
service development.
Ţ 1
 SPWJEJOHSFDVSSFOUBOEHSBOUGVOEJOHGPS
community organisations.
Ţ %
 FMJWFSJOHLFZQSPHSBNTBOETFSWJDFTUP
our communities of interest.
Ţ %
 FWFMPQJOHBOEEJTUSJCVUJOHSFMFWBOU
information for, and to, our communities
of interest.
Ţ %
 FWFMPQJOHTUSBUFHJDQSPKFDUTBOEJOJUJBUJWFT
with government and community sector
partners.

In brief ...
332 204

The number of WA Seniors Cards that
were managed in 2011–12, an increase
of six per cent from the previous year.

262 547

The number of Cost of Living Rebate
payments made, an increase of seven
per cent from the previous year.

20 647

The number of Safety and Security
Rebates paid, an increase of 141 per
cent from the previous year.

61

The number of Gold Cards issued to
centenarian Seniors Card holders.

14 028

The number of National Police Checks
and Working with Children Checks
of volunteers provided for free, or
subsidised, for 2011–12.

7 546

The number of secondary students
participating in 195 Cadets WA units.

4.0 Agency performance

Major achievements 2011–12
Community
Ţ *Oƻƹƺƺǋƺƻ UIF%FQBSUNFOUGPS$PNNVOJUJFTTVDDFTTGVMMZUSBOTJUJPOFEGPVSQSPHSBNBSFBT BOE
over 50 services) to new longer term, jointly developed outcome-based service agreements. The
department has also partnered with LinkWest, under the state government’s Fostering Partnership
initiative to transition an additional 88 services through the new procurement reform process.
Ţ "
 TQBSUPGUIFTUBUFHPWFSONFOUśT4VTUBJOBCMF'VOEJOHBOE$POUSBDUJOHXJUIUIFOPUGPSQSPŻU
sector, the department successfully delivered and processed an additional 15 per cent top up
funding by 1 July 2011. Over 90 per cent of Communities’ funded organisations and over 170
services benefitted from the additional funds.
Ţ 1
 SPWJEFEGVOEJOHPGƶƺǀǂNJMMJPOGPSTFSWJDFTQSPWJEFECZDPNNVOJUZPSHBOJTBUJPOTUPEFMJWFSB
wide range of programs and services throughout Western Australia.
Ţ %
 FWFMPQFEBOEIPTUFEB/FJHICPVS%BZXFCQBHFXIFSFNFNCFSTPGUIFDPNNVOJUZBOE
community organisations could access ideas about how they can do something locally to celebrate
Neighbour Day on 25 March 2012.
Ţ )
 PTUFEBTFNJOBSUJUMFEŚ4PDJBM4QJEFS6OUBOHMJOHUIFXFCśGPSDPNNVOJUZTFSWJDFPSHBOJTBUJPOT
to draw on the experiences of Mark Brown, a social entrepreneur from the United Kingdom. Social
enterprise and social entrepreneurship have long been recognised as the ‘next frontier’ in delivering
social aims by sustainable means.
Ţ )
 PTUFEUIFCJFOOJBM$PNNVOJUZ4FSWJDFT&YDFMMFODF"XBSETJOQBSUOFSTIJQXJUIUIF8"$PVODJMPG
Social Services.
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Major achievements 2011–12
Children and families
Ţ 1
 BSUOFSFEXJUIUIF"VTUSBMJBO3FTFBSDI"MMJBODFGPS$IJMESFOBOE:PVUIBOEUIF$PNNJTTJPOFS
for Children and Young People to produce the 2011 WA Middle Years Forum, which attracted
170 agency participants.
Ţ $
 POEVDUFEGPVSTFNJOBSTXIJDIGPDVTTFEPOUIFTPDJBMBOEFNPUJPOBMEFWFMPQNFOUPGDIJMESFO
aged nine to 14 years with keynote speaker Lyn Worsley. These included:
 ř Ś1SPNPUJOH3FTJMJFODF1SFQBSJOHZPVSDIJMEUPEFBMXJUIUIFVQTBOEEPXOTPGMJGFśXJUIBSPVOE
50 Aboriginal workers attending
 ř BOFWFOJOHQBSFOUJOGPSNBUJPOTFTTJPOGPSBCPVUƾƹQBSFOUTBOEDBSFST
 ř BTFNJOBSGPSƺƾƹHPWFSONFOUBOEOPUGPSQSPŻUPSHBOJTBUJPOTXIJDIGFBUVSFEGPVSQSFTFOUFST
 ř BNBTUFSDMBTTUPQSPWJEFƽƹQSBDUJUJPOFSTXJUIUIFTLJMMTUPVUJMJTFUIF3FTJMJFODF%PVHIOVUNPEFM
Ţ &
 TUBCMJTIFEUIF.JEEMF:FBST&NBJM/FUXPSLXIJDIIBTƽƹƹNFNCFSTBOEJODMVEFTSFQSFTFOUBUJPO
from government, not-for-profit organisations and the outside school hours care sector.
Ţ %
 FWFMPQFEBOEEJTUSJCVUFEUIF.JEEMF:FBST4USBUFHJD%JSFDUJPOTGPSƻƹƺƻǋƺƽXIJDIXJMMHVJEFUIF
department’s work over the next two years in this key area.
Ţ $
 PIPTUFEUXPNBKPSFWFOUTXJUIUIF$PNNJTTJPOFSGPS$IJMESFOBOE:PVOH1FPQMFśTƻƹƺƻ5IJOLFS
in Residence Dr Stuart Shanker.
Ţ $
 PNQMFUFEUIF3JWFS3BOHFSTQJMPUQSPHSBNBOETFDVSFEBEEJUJPOBMGVOEJOHUPFYQBOEUIFQSPHSBN
in 2012–13 and forward years.

4.0 Agency performance

Major achievements 2011–12
Youth
Ţ $FMFCSBUFEUIFƺƾUIBOOJWFSTBSZPG$BEFUT8"
Ţ '
 VOEFEBOETVQQPSUFEUIF$BEFUT8"QSPHSBNXJUIƺǂƾ$BEFUT8"VOJUTBUUSBDUJOHBSFDPSE
7 546 secondary students throughout the state, an increase of 10 per cent from last year.
Ţ 1
 SPWJEFEƶƺƾƻƾǁƻƼGVOEJOHUPLFZZPVUIPSHBOJTBUJPOT JODMVEJOHUIF:PVUI"ƋBJST$PVODJMPG
Western Australia, Girl Guides and Scouts.
Ţ 8
 PSLFEJOQBSUOFSTIJQXJUIHPWFSONFOUBOEDPNNVOJUZQBSUOFSTUPEFWFMPQUIFŚ8FTUFSO
Australian Youth Mentoring Reform Strategic Framework’.
Ţ '
 VOEFEGPVSNFOUPSJOHEFNPOTUSBUJPOQSPKFDUTBDSPTT8FTUFSO"VTUSBMJBUPJNQSPWFUIFRVBMJUZPG
mentoring available to young people.
Ţ - BVODIFEUIFVQEBUFEŚ'JU.JOEǋ'JU#PEZBOE4PVM,JUś BSFTPVSDFGPSZPVOHQFPQMFUPIFMQUIFN
deal with mental health issues, stress and bullying.
Ţ 3
 FMFBTFEUIFŚ.VTJD'FFECBDL5PPMLJUśUPIFMQZPVOHQFPQMFTUBHFNVTJDFWFOUTUPQSPNPUF
understanding of mental health issues and to remove the stigma associated with having mental
health problems.
Ţ &
 YQBOEFE/BUJPOBM:PVUI8FFLJOƻƹƺƻCZXPSLJOHXJUIUISFFZPVUIQMBOOJOHDPNNJUUFFT GVOEJOH
over 80 youth events across Western Australia, launching the week in Bunbury at the ‘Grassroots
Festival’, and holding key events such as a Youth Hub, Youth Forums and the Kickstart Youth Festival.
Ţ )
 PTUFEUIFBOOVBM8":PVUI"XBSETJOQBSUOFSTIJQXJUIUIF:PVUI"ƋBJST$PVODJMPG8FTUFSO
Australia and supported by Lotterywest.
Ţ '
 VOEFEOJOFMPDBMHPWFSONFOUBVUIPSJUJFTBTQBSUPGUIF:PVUI'SJFOEMZ$PNNVOJUJFT(SBOUT
program to engage with young people in planning and developing their communities.
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Major achievements 2011–12
Seniors
Ţ &YQBOEFEUIFFMJHJCJMJUZDSJUFSJBGPS4FOJPST$BSEBMMPXJOHTFOJPSTUPXPSLƻƾIPVSTPSMFTTQFSXFFL
Ţ '
 JOBMJTFEUIFƻƹƺƻǋƺƽ4FOJPST$BSE%JTDPVOU%JSFDUPSZXIJDIJOGPSNT4FOJPST$BSEIPMEFSTPG
generous government concessions and rebates and a wide range of discounts offered through the
private sector.
Ţ "
 ENJOJTUFSFEUIF$PTUPG-JWJOH3FCBUFQBZNFOUGPSTFOJPST QSPWJEJOHƻƿƻƾƽǀQBZNFOUT 
totalling $33.8 million.
Ţ &
 YUFOEFEUIF4FOJPST4BGFUZBOE4FDVSJUZ3FCBUF4DIFNF QSPWJEJOHƻƹƿƽǀQBZNFOUT 
totalling $3.7 million.
Ţ 6
 OEFSUPPLDPOTVMUBUJPOXJUITFOJPST JODMVEJOHBUIJOLUBOLPGDPNNVOJUZMFBEFSTUPJOGPSNUIF
development of a strategic framework for service planning.
Ţ 3FTFBSDIFEBOEQVCMJTIFEBŚ1SPŻMFPG8"4FOJPSTśUPCFUUFSJOGPSNGVUVSFQMBOOJOH
Ţ 'VOEFEOJOFMPDBMHPWFSONFOUTUPVOEFSUBLFQSPKFDUTGPDVTFEPODSFBUJOH"HF'SJFOEMZ$PNNVOJUJFT
Ţ %FWFMPQFEBOEEJTUSJCVUFEUIFŚ4FOJPST8FMMCFJOH*OEJDBUPSTƻƹƺƻśSFQPSU
Ţ "
 TQBSUPG8PSME&MEFS"CVTF"XBSFOFTT%BZƻƹƺƻ DPOEVDUFEBTFSJFTPGQVCMJDBOETFSWJDFTFDUPS
events with internationally renowned academic, Bridget Penhale, the Reader in Mental Health of
Older People with the University of East Anglia, UK. The main event, which was open to the public,
was attended by around 100 people.
Ţ '
 VOEFEUIF/PSUIFSO4VCVSC$PNNVOJUZ-FHBM$FOUSFƶƻƺƿǀƼǁUPQSPWJEFUIF0MEFS1FSTPOT
Rights Service to provide services around elder exploitation and abuse.
Ţ $
 PMMBCPSBUFEBOETVQQPSUFEBSBOHFPGTFDUPSFEVDBUJPOBOEEFWFMPQNFOUBDUJWJUJFT JODMVEJOH
the Council on the Ageing ‘Active Ageing’ conference, the WA Seniors Week and Seniors Awards
program, and a Seniors Housing Forum.
Ţ )PTUFEUIFBOOVBM8"4FOJPST"XBSETBOE4FOJPST8FFL

4.0 Agency performance

Major achievements 2011–12
Carers
Ţ 'VOEFEUIF:PVOH$BSFSTJO4DIPPMTQSPKFDUBOEDPNNFODFEBOJOEFQFOEFOUFWBMVBUJPO
Ţ '
 VOEFE$BSFST8"ƶƿǀƹǀǁƼUPEFMJWFSTVQQPSUBOEDPVOTFMMJOHUPDBSFSTBOEXPSLFEDPMMBCPSBUJWFMZ
with Carers WA to plan for the Carers Conference 2012.
Ţ "
 TTJTUFEUIF$BSFST"EWJTPSZ$PVODJMUPDPNQMFUFUIFJSBOOVBMSFQPSUUP1BSMJBNFOUPOUIF
compliance of agencies under the Carers Recognition Act 2004.
Ţ '
 PSNBMJTFEUIFSFQPSUJOHTUBUVTPGUIF.FOUBM)FBMUI$PNNJTTJPOVOEFSUIFCarers Recognition
Act 2004.
Ţ %FWFMPQFEBOFXDBSFSTśCSPDIVSFUPPVUMJOFUIFCarers Recognition Act 2004.

Major achievements 2011–12
Volunteering
Ţ 5
 SBOTJUJPOFEƺǁTFSWJDFT JODMVEJOH7PMVOUFFSJOH8"UPOFXMPOHFSUFSNTFSWJDFBHSFFNFOUTPG
five years as part of the state government’s Delivering Community Services in Partnership Policy.
Ţ 1
 VCMJTIFEUIFŚ)FMQJOH-PDBM$PVODJMT4VQQPSU7PMVOUFFSJOHśJOGPSNBUJPOCPPLMFUřBTVNNBSZPG
the key findings from commissioned research.
Ţ *OJUJBUFEUIFśƾƹ:FBS7PMVOUFFS4FSWJDF#BEHFśBXBSETXIJDISFDPHOJTFUIFPVUTUBOEJOH
contribution of volunteers who have provided a lifetime of service.
Ţ 8
 PSLFEJOQBSUOFSTIJQXJUITUBUF MPDBMHPWFSONFOUBOEOPOHPWFSONFOUBHFODJFTUPJNQMFNFOU
the Vital Volunteering Strategy 2011–16.
Ţ 1
 SPWJEFEDPSFGVOEJOHPGPWFSƶƺNJMMJPOUP7PMVOUFFS3FTPVSDF$FOUSFTBDSPTT8" BOEUPUIF
state’s peak body, Volunteering WA.
Ţ 1
 SPWJEFEƶƾƹƹƹƹHSBOUTGVOEJOHUPBSBOHFPGBHFODJFTUPTVQQPSUWPMVOUFFSJOHQSPKFDUTBOE
volunteer-recognition events.
Ţ *OQBSUOFSTIJQXJUI8"1PMJDF DPOEVDUFEBUPUBMPGƺƽƹƻǁGSFFPSTVCTJEJTFE/BUJPOBM1PMJDF
Checks for volunteers.
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The chart below shows the trend data for National Police Checks for volunteers over a five year period.
Free Police checks

16 000

Subsidised Police checks

12 000
8 000
4 000
$0
Free Police checks
Subsidised Police checks

2007–08
2 243
9 796

2008–09
2 860
9 308

2009–10
3 678
9 907

2010–11
3 084
10 391

2011–12
2 794
11 234

Major achievements 2011–12
Women’s Interests
Ţ %
 FWFMPQFE8PNFOśT*OUFSFTUT4USBUFHJD%JSFDUJPOTƻƹƺƺǋƺƽXJUIGPVSQSJPSJUZBSFBTPGXPNFOJO
leadership, safety and justice, economic independence and health and wellbeing.
Ţ 1
 BSUOFSFEXJUIUIF%FQBSUNFOUPG4UBUF%FWFMPQNFOUBOEUIF4NBMM#VTJOFTT%FWFMPQNFOU
Corporation to host a women’s event promoting entrepreneurship.
Ţ $
 POEVDUFEBTFNJOBSUPFODPVSBHFBOETVQQPSUXPNFOśTFDPOPNJDJOEFQFOEFODFUISPVHI
exploration of entrepreneurship as a viable alternative career path.
Ţ 6
 OEFSUPPLBOFYUFOTJWFTFMFDUJPOQSPDFTTBOEQSPWJEFETQPOTPSTIJQGPSXPNFOUPVOEFSUBLFUIF
Company Directors course at the Australian Institute of Company Directors.
Ţ 1
 SPWJEFEƶƺƻƹƾƿƾJOHSBOUGVOEJOHUPƻǂDPNNVOJUZPSHBOJTBUJPOTUPEFWFMPQQSPKFDUTUIBU
strengthen women’s health and wellbeing and encourage their economic independence.
Ţ 4
 VQQPSUFEUIF8PNFOśT"EWJTPSZ$PVODJMUPDPOEVDUBDPOTVMUBUJPOPOUIFUPQJDPGQPSUSBZBMPG
women in the media and a consultation in Albany on issues impacting women in regional areas.
Ţ $
 FMFCSBUFE*OUFSOBUJPOBM8PNFOśT%BZBOETVQQPSUFEUIF8FTUFSO"VTUSBMJBO8PNFOśT)BMMPG'BNF
and the introduction of the Roll of Honour to acknowledge the contribution of women posthumously.
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Average cost per community information, programs and strategy project.
2011–12
KPI

2010–11

Actual

Target
$940 764
17
$55 339

2.1 Average cost per children
and families project

Total Cost
Number of projects
Average per project

$2 180 226 $3 292 845
25
30
$87 209
$109 762

2.2 Average cost per youth
project

Total Cost
Number of projects
Average per project

$5 840 395 $7 292 763 $6 470 001
39
38
39
$149 754
$191 915
$165 897

2.3 Average cost per seniors
project

Total Cost
Number of projects
Average per project

$1 474 121 $2 095 403 $1 902 292
26
28
25
$56 697
$74 836
$76 092

2.4 Average cost per carers
project

Total Cost
Number of projects
Average per project

$1 195 507 $1 301 016 $1 349 704
11
10
10
$108 682
$130 102
$134 970

2.5 Average cost per seniors
card administered

Total Cost
Number of card holders
Average per card holder

2.6 Average cost per SCOLR
processed

Total Cost
Number of rebates
Average per rebate

$1 268 997 $1 720 412 $1 277 945
245 374
262 547
255 782
$5.17
$6.55
$5.00

2.8 Average cost per volunteers
project

Total Cost
Number of projects
Average per project

$1 652 390 $1 983 634 $1 829 830
31
33
29
$53 303
$60 110
$63 098

2.9 Average cost per women’s
project

Total Cost
Number of projects
Average per project

$1 253 518 $1 490 660 $1 603 534
22
22
24
$56 978
$67 757
$66 814

$736 834 $1 131 799 $1 360 707
313 603
332 204
324 253
$2.35
$3.41
$4.20
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Looking forward to 2012–13
Community
Ţ 1
 SPWJEFMFBEFSTIJQJOSBJTJOHDPNNVOJUZBXBSFOFTTPGUIFTPDJBMDPODFTTJPOTQSPWJEFEBDSPTTUIF
state government, including the delivery of a one-stop shop for social concessions information.
Children and families
Ţ 1
 VCMJTIBSFHJTUFSPGFYJTUJOHTFSWJDFTBOEQSPHSBNTGPSNJEEMFZFBSTBHFEDIJMESFOBOEUIFJSQBSFOUTTP
service providers and others will have a better understanding of what is available in Western Australia.
Ţ %FMJWFSBTFSJFTPGTFNJOBSTPOTFYVBMJTBUJPOPGDIJMESFOJOUIFNJEEMFZFBST
Ţ %FWFMPQBOEEFMJWFSTFNJOBSTPODZCFSTBGFUZJOUIF(SFBU4PVUIFSOSFHJPOGPSQBSFOUTBOEQSPGFTTJPOBMT
Ţ %
 JTUSJCVUFHVJEFTGPSQBSFOUTPOTPDJBMNFEJBBOEOFXUFDIOPMPHZPOWBSJPVTUPQJDT JODMVEJOH
parents and cyber safety.
Ţ %
 FWFMPQBGBDFCPPLQBHFGPSQBSFOUTUPJODSFBTFBXBSFOFTTPGHPWFSONFOUTFSWJDFTBOEUIF
programs available to them.
Ţ 1
 VCMJTIUISFF*OEJHFOPVT&BSMZ:FBST3FTFBSDIBOE1PMJDZQBQFST B1BSFOUJOH8"-JUFSBUVSF3FWJFX 
a ‘Father Inclusive Practice’ research paper, and a ‘Home Visiting and Volunteering’ literature review.
Ţ &YQBOEUIF3JWFS3BOHFSTQSPHSBNUPFJHIUQSJNBSZTDIPPMT
Youth
Ţ -BVODIŚ0VS:PVUIǋ0VS'VUVSFśřUIFTUBUFHPWFSONFOUśTDPNNJUNFOUUPZPVUI
Ţ '
 JOBMJTFGPVSZPVUINFOUPSJOHEFNPOTUSBUJPOQSPKFDUTBOEEJTTFNJOBUFUIFSFTVMUTUPQSPNPUFHPPE
practice in youth mentoring.
Ţ 1
 SPWJEFGVOEJOHUPMPDBMHPWFSONFOUBVUIPSJUJFTUISPVHIUIFŚ:PVUI'SJFOEMZ$PNNVOJUJFT(SBOU
Program’ so that they engage young people in creative ways to help plan their communities.
Ţ 4VQQPSUEFWFMPQNFOUPGOFXUFDIOPMPHJFTTVDIBTBNPCJMFQIPOFBQQGPSZPVUITFSWJDFJOGPSNBUJPO
Ţ &
 YQBOEPQQPSUVOJUJFTGPSZPVOHQFPQMFUPQBSUJDJQBUFJOBOEDPOUSJCVUFUPUIFJSDPNNVOJUJFT
through new engagement tools, expansion of ‘The Panel’ and social media.
Ţ '
 VSUIFSEFWFMPQCFTUQSBDUJDFBQQSPBDIFTGPSZPVUIMFEQSPHSBNTBOEQSPKFDUT JODMVEJOH/BUJPOBM
Youth Week and Refugee Week.
Ţ .BOBHFBSFHJPOBMUPVSPGUIF3FGVHFF8FFLBSUFYIJCJUJPO
Ţ 3
 FMFBTFUIF8":PVUI.FOUPSJOH3FGPSN4USBUFHJD'SBNFXPSLBTUIFCMVFQSJOUGPSDPNNVOJUZBOE
government action to promote and support sustainable, quality youth mentoring programs.
Ţ %
 FWFMPQBGBDFCPPLQBHFUPJNQSPWFFOHBHFNFOUXJUI8FTUFSO"VTUSBMJBOZPVOHQFPQMFJO
recognition of their prolific use of social media.

4.0 Agency performance

Looking forward to 2012–13
Seniors
Ţ 1VCMJTIBOEMBVODIBTFOJPSTTUSBUFHJDGSBNFXPSL
Ţ 1
 SPNPUF"HFGSJFOEMZ$PNNVOJUJFTBTBUPPMUPBTTJTUXJUIUIFQSFQBSBUJPOPGMPDBMQMBOTUISPVHI
the local government Integrated Planning Framework.
Ţ 1
 SPHSFTTDPNNVOJUZBXBSFOFTTBOEFEVDBUJPOBDUJWJUJFTBTTPDJBUFEXJUIFMEFSFYQMPJUBUJPOBOE
abuse with a set of new focus group tested messages.
Ţ 1
 VCMJTIBOEEJTUSJCVUFUIFŚ"HF'SJFOEMZ)PNFTśLJUBTBUPPMUPBTTJTUTFOJPSTBOEQSFTFOJPSTXJUI
planning their future household needs.
Ţ 1
 VCMJTIBOEEJTUSJCVUFUIFƻƹƺƻŚ(SBOEGBNJMJFT3FTPVSDF(VJEFśUPFOBCMFHSBOEQBSFOUTXIPIBWF
taken on the full time care of their grandchildren, to access information, services and supports.
Ţ 8PSLXJUI8BOTMFB'BNJMZ4FSWJDFTUPJNQMFNFOUBOFYQBOEFE(SBOEGBNJMJFT4VQQPSUJOJUJBUJWF
Ţ 1
 SPWJEFBTNBMMHSBOUTQSPHSBNGPSDPNNVOJUZPSHBOJTBUJPOTUPDFMFCSBUF8FTUFSO"VTUSBMJBśT
inaugural Grandparents Day, which will be held on Sunday, 28 October 2012.
Ţ &
 YQBOEUIFSBOHFPGEJTDPVOUTBWBJMBCMFGSPNUIFCVTJOFTTTFDUPSUP4FOJPST$BSEIPMEFSTBOE
promote the benefits of the card to seniors throughout Western Australia.
Ţ $POUJOVFUPQSPWJEFUIF$PTUPG-JWJOHBOE4BGFUZBOE4FDVSJUZ3FCBUFTUP4FOJPST$BSEIPMEFST
Ţ *NQMFNFOUBOFX4FOJPST$BSEEBUBNBOBHFNFOUBOEQBZNFOUTZTUFN
Ţ %
 FWFMPQBGBDFCPPLQBHFGPSTFOJPSTUPJODSFBTFBXBSFOFTTPGHPWFSONFOUTFSWJDFTBOEUIF
programs available to them.
Ţ 6OEFSUBLFDPNNVOJUZBXBSFOFTTJOSFMBUJPOUPFMEFSFYQMPJUBUJPOBOEBCVTF

55

56

Department for Communities: Annual Report 2011–12

Looking forward to 2012–13
Women’s Interests
Ţ %FMJWFSUIFTFDPOEJOBTFSJFTPG8PNFOJO&OUSFQSFOFVSTIJQFWFOUTUPQSPNPUFXPNFOśT
economic independence.
Ţ 3
 FMFBTFUIFƻƹƺƻ8PNFOśT3FQPSU$BSEQSPWJEJOHVQEBUFEEBUBPOLFZJOEJDBUPSTSFMBUJOHUP
women in Western Australia.
Ţ '
 VOETDIPMBSTIJQTGPSXPNFOUPBUUFOEDPVSTFTBUUIF"VTUSBMJBO*OTUJUVUFPG$PNQBOZ%JSFDUPSTUP
increase women’s board readiness.
Ţ 1SPNPUFBOETQPOTPSJOJUJBUJWFTUIBUFODPVSBHFZPVOHXPNFOUPDPOTJEFSOPOUSBEJUJPOBMDBSFFSQBUIT
Ţ $
 FMFCSBUFUIF6OJUFE/BUJPOT*OUFSOBUJPOBM%BZPGUIF(JSM$IJMEXJUIBOFWFOUGPSZPVOHQFPQMFUIBU
encourages discussion on the portrayal of women in the media.
Ţ 1
 VCMJTIJOGPSNBUJPOPOUPQJDBMJTTVFTTVDIBTUIFHFOEFSQBZHBQ XPNFOJOTQPSUBOEUIFQPSUSBZBM
of women in the media.
Carers
Ţ 8PSLJOQBSUOFSTIJQXJUI$BSFST8"UPSPMMPVUBDBSFSTBXBSFOFTTQSPHSBNBDSPTTUIFQVCMJDTFDUPS
and community organisations.
Ţ 4VQQPSUUIF$BSFST"EWJTPSZ$PVODJMUPIPMEBTZNQPTJVNGFBUVSJOHDVSSFOUSFTFBSDIPODBSFSTJTTVFT
Ţ 6OEFSUBLFBOFWBMVBUJPOPGUIF:PVOH$BSFSTJO4DIPPMTQSPKFDU
Ţ *NQMFNFOUSFDPNNFOEBUJPOTPGUIF3FWJFXPGUIFCarers Recognition Act 2004.
Ţ 4VQQPSUUIF:PVOH1FPQMF8IP$BSF"XBSET
Volunteering
Ţ $POUJOVFUPJNQMFNFOUUIFTUSBUFHJFTBSJTJOHGSPNUIFŚ7JUBM7PMVOUFFSJOH4USBUFHZƻƹƺƺǋƺƿś
Ţ 4
 USFOHUIFOGVOEFELFZTUBLFIPMEFSTUISPVHIUIFJNQMFNFOUBUJPOPGOFXDPNNVOJUZTFDUPS
funding models.
Ţ $
 PMMBCPSBUFXJUILFZTUBLFIPMEFSTBOEGPTUFSQBSUOFSTIJQTBDSPTTUIFOPUGPSQSPŻUTFDUPSJO
progressing ‘Employee Volunteering’ guidance and information.
Ţ 8
 PSLXJUIQBSUOFSBHFODJFTUPVQEBUFUIFTFDUPSPODIBOHFTBOUJDJQBUFEUPSFMFWBOUTUBUFBOE
federal legislation.
Ţ 1SPEVDFHVJEFMJOFTUPTVQQPSUQVCMJDTFDUPSWPMVOUFFSJOH
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4.4.3 Service 3 – Redress WA Scheme
Established in 2008 as a finite scheme to
provide ex gratia payments to those who as
children were abused and/or neglected in state
care, the Redress WA Scheme was completed
late in 2011. The state government approved
additional funding of $30 million in 2011–12
to allow the Department for Communities
to finalise all eligible payments under the
Redress WA Scheme. A total of 5 917 claims
were received for which close on $118 million
was offered to eligible claimants.
During the scheme, applicants were provided
with support and counselling services as well
as the opportunity to have their claims referred
to the police for investigation.
In addition, applicants were offered a personal
apology from the Premier and the Minister for
Community Services. This not only recognised
the abusive childhoods applicants had
experienced, it also honoured the courage
taken for them to tell their stories.

Major achievements for 2011–12
Ţ $
 PNQMFUFEŻOBMQBZNFOUTNBEFUP
eligible Redress applicants across the life
of the program. These payments totalled
$117.7 million.
Ţ $
 PNQMFUFEUIFEJTUSJCVUJPOPGBQPMPHZ
letters signed by the Premier and the Minister
for Community Services, bringing the total
number of apology letters to 4 013.
Ţ $
 PNQMFUFEQPMJDFSFGFSSBMTSFRVFTUFE
by applicants, bringing the total number of
referrals to police to 2 233
Ţ $
 PNQMFUFESFWJFXTPGDMBJNTBUUIFSFRVFTU
of applicants of which five were upheld and
15 dismissed. This brought the total number
of reviews requested for the entire project to
89 with 70 dismissed and 19 upheld
Ţ $
 PNQMFUJPOPGPQFSBUJPOTJODMVEJOHUIF
archiving of applicant and administrative files.

2011–12
KPI
3.1 Average cost per
Redress WA claim

Total admin Cost
Number of claims
Average per claim

2010–11

Actual

Target

$8 986 176
5 849
$1 536

$1 935 804
4 625
$419

$959 202
5 921
$162
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5.1 Financial statements

Auditor General
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Parliament of Western Australia
DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITIES
Report on the Financial Statements

Director General’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the

Auditor’s Responsibility

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial

Basis for Qualified Opinion
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Qualified Opinion

Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions.
Report on Controls

Director General’s Responsibility for Controls

2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant written law.
Auditor’s Responsibility

depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the de

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Qualified Opinion

Report on the Key Performance Indicators

Director General’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators
nt Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions

Auditor’s Responsibility

3
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Auditor General

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Parliament of Western Australia
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITIES
’s preparation
Report on the Financial Statements

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Director General’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the
Qualified Opinion

Auditor’s Responsibility
and appropriate to assist users to assess the Department’s performance and fairly represent
Independence

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and Key
Performance Indicators
’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the
’s
’s management
’s website.
’s website. The auditor’s

Basis for Qualified Opinion

3

3
3
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Financial Statements
Certification of Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2012
The accompanying financial statements of the Department for Communities have been prepared
in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and
records to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2012 and the
financial position as at 30 June 2012.
At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars
included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

Jenni Perkins
Accountable Authority
14 September 2012

Christopher Johnson
Chief Finance Officer
14 September 2012

63

5.0 Disclosures and legal compliance

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2012

Note

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Cost of services
Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies a
Funding for services
 -PTTPOEJTQPTBMPGOPODVSSFOUBTTFUT 
Other expenses



6
7
8
9
10
11
ƺƿ
12

Total cost of services

21 105
10 855
1 509
3 650
76 823
20 758
ř
204

21 220
11 176
1 933
3 834
104 715
18 286
ř
178

134 904

161 342

93
1 959
2 036

21
439
1 471

Total revenue

4 088

1 931

Total income other than income from state government

4 088

1 931

130 816

159 411

130 695
2 767
990

153 200
2 360
307

134 452

155 867

3 636

(3 544)

6 843
ř

3 520
ř

6 843

3 520

10 479

(24)

Income
Revenue:
User charges and fees
Commonwealth grants and contributions
Other revenue

13
14
15

Net cost of services
Income from state government
Service appropriation
Resources received free of charge
Royalties for Regions Fund

17

Total income from state government
Surplus/deficit for the period
Other comprehensive income
Changes in asset revaluation surplus
 (BJOTMPTTFTSFDPHOJTFEEJSFDUMZJOFRVJUZ
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the period



27



a The comparatives for Redress WA Scheme ex-gratia payments have been restated for comparability purposes. An
additional $5.628m in grant payments has been recognised in 2010–11.
See also the ‘Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service’.
The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2012

Note

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

28
18, 28
19
21

17 139
957
636
13

17 837
389
463
110

18 745

18 799

452
14 885
42 731
437

368
13 202
36 057
670

58 505

50 297

77 250

69 096

2 132
3 855

6 509
3 546

5 987

10 055

979

926

979

926

6 966

10 981

70 284

58 115

35 687
20 193
14 404

33 997
13 350
10 769

70 284

58 115

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other current assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Amounts receivable for services
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

18, 28
20
22
23

Total non-current sssets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Payables a
Provisions

25
26

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions

26

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity
Contributed equity
Reserves
Accumulated surplus/(deficiency) b

27

Total equity

a & b The comparatives for Redress WA Scheme ex-gratia payments have been restated for comparability purposes.
An additional $5.628m in grant payments has been recognised in 2010–11.
The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2012

Balance at 1 July 2010
Changes in accounting policy or
DPSSFDUJPOPGQSJPSQFSJPEFSSPST

Note

Contributed
equity
$’000

Reserves
$’000

Accumulated
surplus
$’000

Total
equity
$’000

27

34 397

9 830

14 312

58 539

ř

ř

ř

ř

34 397

9 830

14 312

58 539



Restated balance at 1 July 2010
Total comprehensive income for
UIFZFBS
Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners:
 $BQJUBMDPOUSJCVUJPO
 0UIFSDPOUSJCVUJPOTCZPXOFST
 %JTUSJCVUJPOUPPXOFST



ř











ř
ř
 

ř
ř
ř

ř
ř
ř

ř
ř


5PUBM



 

ř

ř

 

33 997

13 350

Balance at 30 June 2011
Correction of prior period errors
Redress WA Scheme ex-gratia
payment a



ř

 



10 768

58 115



ř












ř
ř

ř
ř
ř

ř
ř
ř


ř
ř

5PUBM





ř

ř



35 687

13 350

63 743

Restated balance at 1 July 2011
Total comprehensive income for
UIFZFBS
Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners:
 $BQJUBMDPOUSJCVUJPO
 0UIFSDPOUSJCVUJPOTCZPXOFST
 %JTUSJCVUJPOCZPXOFST
Balance at 30 June 2012

33 997

ř

16 396

20 193

14 404

a The comparatives for Redress WA Scheme ex-gratia payments have been restated for comparability purposes.
An additional $5.628m in grant payments has been recognised in 2010–11.
The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

70 284
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2012

Note

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

130 695
ƺƿǂƹ
990

150 537
ř
307

133 375

150 844

(20 855)
(7 407)
(2 856)
(82 451)
(20 779)
(3 591)
(204)

(20 714)
(9 563)
(3 811)
(99 065)
(18 266)
(3 066)
(182)

90
1 959
2 026
102
1 651

20
439
93
2 947
1 572

(133 367)

(149 597)

(1 106)

(41)

(54)

(41)

(46)
18 594

1 206
17 388

18 548

18 594

Cash flows from state government
Service appropriation
 $BQJUBMBQQSPQSJBUJPO
Royalties for Regions Fund





17


Net cash provided by state government
Utilised as follows:
Cash flows from operating activities
Payments
Employee benefits
Supplies and services
Accommodation
Grants and subsidies
Funding for services
GST payments on purchases
Other payments
Receipts
User charges and fees
Commonwealth grants and contributions
GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority
Other receipts
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

28

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of non-current physical assets
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period

28

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.

2 354

41 309
17 794

49 981

2011
$’000

40 742

696

ř
ƺƺƽ
ƾǁƻ

41 438

(2 849)

57 313

27 302

68 044

56 403 67 267
ǂƺƹ
ǀǀǀ
ř
ř

60 162

1 894

ƿǀ
ǂǀƹ
ǁƾǀ

62 056

7 253
5 754
4 956
2 864
4
41
618
749
41 972 25 836
7 183
6 141
ř
ř
ǀƹ
ƾƼ

2012
$’000

Strategic
policy and
coordination

The Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Surplus/deficit for the period

Total income from state government

38 462 48 091
ƺǁƾǀ ƺƾǁƼ
ǂǂƹ
Ƽƹǀ

Income from state government
Service appropriation
 3FTPVSDFTSFDFJWFEGSFFPGDIBSHF
 3PZBMUJFTGPS3FHJPOT'VOE

32 187

1 235

ƻƺ
Ƽƻƾ
ǁǁǂ

33 422

38 955

2 194

ƻƿ
ǂǁǂ
ƺƺǀǂ

41 149

12 918 11 324
5 191
4 467
1 499
1 887
2 838
2 532
5 088
1 383
13 481 11 716
ř
ř
ƺƼƽ
ƺƺƼ

2011
$’000

Net cost of services

Total income other than income
from state government

Income
 6TFSDIBSHFTBOEGFFT
 $PNNPOXFBMUIHSBOUTBOEDPOUSJCVUJPOT
 0UIFSSFWFOVF

Total cost of services

Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Funding for services
 -PTTPOEJTQPTBMPOOPODVSSFOUBTTFUT
 0UIFSFYQFOTFT

Costs of services

2012
$’000

Child and family
services
2011
$’000

86 482

—

ř
ř
ř

86 482

37 841
4 131 (48 641)

35 830

35 830 37 841
ř
ř
ř
ř

31 699

—

ř
ř
ř

31 699

934
4 142
708
3 845
6
5
194
553
29 763 77 496
94
429
ř
ř
ř
ƺƻ

2012
$’000

Redress WA
Scheme
2011
$’000

1 931

ƻƺ
ƽƼǂ
ƺƽǀƺ

3 636 (3 545)

134 452 155 866

130 695 153 199
ƻǀƿǀ ƻƼƿƹ
ǂǂƹ
Ƽƹǀ

130 816 159 411

4 088

ǂƼ
ƺǂƾǂ
ƻƹƼƿ

134 904 161 342

21 105 21 220
10 855 11 176
1 509
1 933
3 650
3 834
76 823 104 715
20 758 18 286
ř
ř
ƻƹƽ
ƺǀǁ

2012
$’000

Total
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Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service
for the year ended 30 June 2012

34 810

1 898

1 507
391

36 708

6 220

349

302
47

6 569

ƿƾƿƹ
9

2012
$’000

8 744

246

215
31

8 990

ǁǂǀǁ
12

2011
$’000

Strategic
policy and
coordination

6 327

6 167
160

21

ƺ
20

2011
$’000

(53) (6 306)

67

56
11

14

ř
14

2012
$’000

Redress
Scheme

The Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

40 668

2 452

Total liabilities

43 120

1 986
466

Net assets

2011
$’000

ƺƽ
ƻƺ
43 106 36 687

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total assets

Assets
 $VSSFOUBTTFUT
Non-current assets

2012
$’000

Child and family
services
2011
$’000

23 449

4 098

3 643
455

27 547

20 867

2 510

2 166
344

23 377

ƺƻƺǀƺ ǂǀǂǂ
15 376 13 578

2012
$’000

General – not
attributed
2011
$’000

70 284

6 966

5 987
979

77 250

58 115

10 981

10 055
926

69 096

ƺǁǀƽƾ ƺǁǀǂǂ
58 505 50 297

2012
$’000

Total
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Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service
as at 30 June 2012

1 690

1 690
ř

ř
ƾƼƹ
ř

ř
ƾƼƹ
ƻǂǂ

1 690

1 106
ƾǁƽ

130 695

130 816
(121)

134 904
(4 088)

41 150
62 056
31 698

132 385

ƺƿǂƹ

—

(584)
ƾǁƽ

32 591

24 127
8 464

26 705
(2 578)

1 243
5 412
20 050

32 591

ř

32 591

ř

Ƽǀƿ

130 695

32 061

Variance
$’000

129 490

2012
Actual
$’000

1 690

1 106
ƾǁƽ

130 695

130 816
(121)

134 904
(4 088)

41 150
62 056
31 698

132 385

ƺƿǂƹ

130 695

ƻǂǂ

ƾƼƹ

ř

Ƽǀƿ

129 490

2012
Actual
$’000

—

41
ƽƺ 

153 200

159 411
(6 211)

161 342
(1 931)

33 422
41 438
86 482

153 200

ř

153 200

ƻƽƼ

ř

ƻƹƿƹ

Ƽǀƿ

150 521

2011
Actual
$’000

1 690

1 065
ƿƻƾ

(22 505)

(28 595)
6 090

(26 438)
(2 157)

7 728
20 618
(54 784)

(20 815)

ƺƿǂƹ

(22 505)

ƾƿ

ƾƼƹ

ƻƹƿƹ

Note 33 ‘Explanatory statement’ provides details of any significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2012.

ř

(21 031)

Variance
$’000

Adjustments comprise movements in cash balances and other accrual items such as receivables, payables and superannuation. It also includes an adjustment
for appropriation provided under DTF Administered.

Capital appropriations

Capital expenditure
Purchase of non-current physical assets
 "EKVTUNFOUTGPSPUIFSGVOEJOHTPVSDFT

98 104

106 689
(8 585)

Net cost of services
Adjustments

Total appropriations provided to deliver service

108 199
(1 510)

39 907
56 644
11 648

Total cost of services
Less total income

Details of expenses by service
Child and family services
Strategic policy and coordination
Redress WA Scheme

99 794

ƺƿǂƹ

Capital
*UFNƺƾƼ$BQJUBM"QQSPQSJBUJPO

Grand total

98 104

Total appropriations provided to deliver service

Delivery of services
Item 92 Net amount appropriated to deliver services
97 429
Item 93 Contribution to the Western Australian Family
 'PVOEBUJPO5SVTU"DDPVOU
Ƽǀƿ
Section 25 transfer of Social Innovations Grant Program Service
 "QQSPQSJBUJPOGSPNUIF%FQBSUNFOU1SFNJFSBOE$BCJOFU
ř
Section 25 transfer of Social Enterprise Fund Service
 "QQSPQSJBUJPOGSPNUIF%FQBSUNFOU1SFNJFSBOE$BCJOFU
ř
Amount Authorised by Other Statutes
– Salaries and Allowances Act 1975
ƻǂǂ

2012
Estimate
$’000
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Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates
for the year ended 30 June 2012
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5.2 Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2012
1. Australian Accounting Standards
General

Early adoption of standards

The department’s financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2012 have been
prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards. The term ‘Australian
Accounting Standards’ includes Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

The department cannot early adopt an
Australian Accounting Standard unless
specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of
Australian Accounting Standards and Other
Pronouncements. There has been no early
adoption of Australian Accounting Standards
that have been issued or amended (but not
operative) by the department for the annual
reporting period ended 30 June 2012.

The department has adopted any applicable
new and revised Australian Accounting
Standards from their operative dates.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
a) General statement
The department is a not-for-profit reporting
entity that prepares general purpose financial
statements in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards, the Framework,
Statements of Accounting Concepts and
other authoritative pronouncements of
the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s
instructions. Several of these are modified
by the Treasurer’s instructions to vary
application, disclosure, format and wording.
The Financial Management Act 2006 and the
Treasurer’s Instructions impose legislative
provisions that govern the preparation of
financial statements and take precedence over
Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework,
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other
authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.
Where modification is required and has had a
material or significant financial effect upon the

reported results, details of that modification
and the resulting financial effect are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements.
b) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared
on the accrual basis of accounting using the
historical cost convention, except for land,
buildings and infrastructure which have been
measured at fair value.
The accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the financial statements have
been consistently applied throughout all periods
presented unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are presented in
Australian dollars and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand dollars ($’000).
Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management
in applying accounting policies’ discloses
judgements that have been made in the process
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of applying the department’s accounting policies
resulting in the most significant effect on
amounts recognised in the financial statements.
Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’
discloses key assumptions made concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.
c) Reporting entity
The reporting entity is solely comprised of the
Department for Communities.
Mission
The department’s mission is to provide a
focal point for policy development, program
delivery and community engagement with an
over-arching social inclusion framework.
The department is primarily funded by
Parliamentary appropriations. The financial
statements encompass all funds through
which the department controls resources to
carry on its functions.

Service 3: Redress WA Scheme
To manage the Redress Scheme for children and
young people abused in the care of the state.
d) Contributed equity
AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by
Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector
Entities requires transfers in the nature of
equity contributions, other than as a result of a
restructure of administrative arrangements, to
be designated by the Government (the owner) as
contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to
transfer) before such transfers can be recognised
as equity contributions. Capital appropriations
have been designated as contributions by owners
by TI 955 Contributions by Owners made to
Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities and have
been credited directly to Contributed equity.
The transfer of net assets to/from other
agencies, other than as a result of a restructure
of administrative arrangements, are designated
as contributions by owners where the transfers
are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.
e) Income
Revenue recognition

Services
The department provides the following services:
Service 1: Child and family services
To provide for the regulation and quality
assurance of early education and care services
and the provision of information, services and
programs to support children, parents, families
and communities.
Service 2: Strategic policy and coordination
To provide for the development, planning and
provision of information, programs and support
for seniors, volunteers, women, carers and
youth to build and promote strong and vibrant
communities, along with program development
to support services for children and families.

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair
value of consideration received or receivable.
Revenue is recognised for the major business
activities as follows:
Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods
and disposal of other assets when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the
purchaser and can be measured reliably.
Provision of services
Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of the transaction.
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Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.
Service appropriations
Service appropriations are recognised as
revenues at fair value in the period in which the
department gains control of the appropriated
funds. The department gains control of
appropriated funds at the time those funds are
deposited to the bank account or credited to
the ‘Amounts receivable for services’ (holding
account) held at Treasury.
See note 17 ‘Income from State Government’ for
further detail.
Net appropriation determination
The Treasurer may make a determination
providing for prescribed receipts to be retained
for services under the control of the department.
In accordance with the determination specified in
the 2011–12 Budget Statements, the department
retained $4.087 million in 2012 ($1.931 million in
2011) from the following:
– proceeds from fees and charges;
– sale of goods;
– Commonwealth specific purpose grants and
contributions; and
– one-off gains with a value of less than $10 000
derived from the sale of property other than
real property; and
– other departmental revenue.
Grants, donations, gifts and other
non-reciprocal contributions
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the
department obtains control over the assets
comprising the contributions, usually when cash
is received.
Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not
contributions by owners are recognised at their
fair value. Contributions of services are only
recognised when a fair value can be reliably
determined and the services would be purchased
if not donated.
Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as
revenue at fair value in the period in which the

department obtains control over the funds.
The department obtains control of the funds
at the time the funds are deposited into the
department’s bank account.
Gains
Realised or unrealised gains are usually
recognised on a net basis. These include gains
arising on the disposal of non current assets and
some revaluations of non current assets.
f) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.
g) Property, plant and equipment and leasehold
improvements
Capitalisation/expensing of assets
Items of property, plant and equipment and
leasehold improvements costing $5 000 or more
are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising
assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful
lives. Items of property, plant and equipment
and leasehold improvements costing less than
$5 000 are immediately expensed direct to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income [other than
where they form part of a group of similar items
which are significant in total].
Initial recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment and leasehold
improvements are initially recognised at cost.
For items of property, plant and equipment and
leasehold improvements acquired at no cost or
for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the
date of acquisition.
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the
revaluation model is used for the measurement
of land, buildings and leasehold improvements
and historical cost for all other property, plant
and equipment. Land, buildings and leasehold
improvements are carried at fair value less
accumulated depreciation (buildings and
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leasehold improvements only) and accumulated
impairment losses. All other items of property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.
Where market-based evidence is available, the
fair value of land and buildings is determined
on the basis of current market buying values
determined by reference to recent market
transactions. When buildings are revalued by
reference to recent market transactions, the
accumulated depreciation is eliminated against
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the
net amount restated to the revalued amount.
In the absence of market-based evidence, fair
value of land and buildings is determined on
the basis of existing use. This normally applies
where buildings are specialised or where land use
is restricted. Fair value for existing use assets is
determined by reference to the cost of replacing
the remaining future economic benefits
embodied in the asset, ie. the depreciated
replacement cost. Where the fair value of
buildings is determined on the depreciated
replacement cost basis, the gross carrying
amount and the accumulated depreciation are
restated proportionately.
Land and buildings are independently valued
annually by the Western Australian Land
Information Authority (Valuation Services)
and recognised annually to ensure that the
carrying amount does not differ materially
from the asset’s fair value at the end of the
reporting period.
Fair value of leasehold improvements has been
determined by reference to the depreciated
replacement cost (existing use basis) as the
assets are specialised and no market-based
evidence of value is available. Land under
leasehold improvements is included in land
reported under note 22 ‘Property, plant and
equipment’. Independent valuations are obtained
every 3 to 5 years.
When leasehold improvements are revalued,
the accumulated depreciation is restated

proportionately with the change in the gross
carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying
amount of the asset after revaluation equals its
revalued amount.
The most significant assumptions in
estimating fair value are made in assessing
whether to apply the existing use basis to
assets and in determining estimated useful life.
Professional judgement by the valuer is required
where the evidence does not provide a clear
distinction between market type assets and
existing use assets.
Derecognition
Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment and infrastructure,
any revaluation surplus relating to that asset is
retained in the asset revaluation surplus.
Asset revaluation reserve
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record
increments and decrements on the revaluation
of non-current assets as described in note 22
‘Property, plant and equipment’.
Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful
life are systematically depreciated over their
estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the
consumption of their future economic benefits.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight
line method, using rates which are reviewed
annually. Estimated useful lives for each class of
depreciable asset are:
Buildings
Office machines, furniture
and equipment
Software
Computer equipment

25 years
5 years
5 years
4 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on a
straight line basis over the life of the lease or the
life of the asset, whichever is less.
Land is not depreciated.
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h) Intangible assets
Capitalisation/expensing of assets
Acquisitions of intangible assets costing
$5 000 or more and internally generated
intangible assets costing $50 000 or more are
capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is
expensed (amortised) over their useful life.
Costs incurred below these thresholds are
immediately expensed directly to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal
cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of
acquisition.
The cost model is applied for subsequent
measurement requiring the asset to be carried
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is calculated for the period of the
expected benefit (estimated useful life which is
reviewed annually) on the straight line basis. All
intangible assets controlled by the department
have a finite useful life and zero residual value.
The expected useful lives for each class of
intangible asset are:
Software a

5 years

a Software that is not integral to the operation
of any related hardware.
Computer software
Software that is an integral part of the related
hardware is recognised as property, plant and
equipment. Software that is not an integral
part of the related hardware is recognised as
an intangible asset. Software costing less than
$5 000 is expensed in the year of acquisition.
i) Impairment of assets
Property, plant and equipment, leasehold
improvements and intangible assets are
tested for any indication of impairment at the

end of each reporting period. Where there is
an indication of impairment, the recoverable
amount is estimated. Where the recoverable
amount is less than the carrying amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down
to the recoverable amount and an impairment
loss is recognised. As the department is a
not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been
identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.
The risk of impairment is generally limited to
circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is
materially understated, where the replacement
cost is falling or where there is a significant
change in useful life. Each relevant class of
assets is reviewed annually to verify that the
accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects
the level of consumption or expiration of asset’s
future economic benefits and to evaluate any
impairment risk from falling replacement costs.
Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life
and intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at the end of each
reporting period irrespective of whether there is
any indication of impairment.
The recoverable amount of assets identified as
surplus assets is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of future
cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have
no risk of material impairment where fair value
is determined by reference to market-based
evidence. Where fair value is determined by
reference to depreciated replacement cost,
surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the
recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets
at cost are tested for indications of impairment
at the end of each reporting period.
j) Leases
The department has no finance lease
commitments at this time.
The department holds operating leases for motor
vehicles, head office and a number of branch
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office buildings. Operating leases are expensed
on a straight line basis over the lease term as
this represents the pattern of benefits derived
from the leased properties.
k) Financial instruments
In addition to cash, the department has two
categories of financial instrument:
– Receivables; and
– Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
Financial instruments have been disaggregated
into the following classes:
– Financial Assets
– Cash and cash equivalents
– Restricted cash and cash equivalents
– Receivables
– Amounts receivable for services
– Financial Liabilities
– Payables
Initial recognition and measurement of financial
instruments is at fair value which normally
equates to the transaction cost or the face value.
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
The fair value of short-term receivables and
payables is the transaction cost or the face value
because there is no interest rate applicable and
subsequent measurement is not required as the
effect of discounting is not material.
l) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows,
cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash
and cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on
hand and short-term deposits with original
maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts.
m) Accrued salaries
Accrued salaries [see note 25 ‘Payables’]
represent the amount due to staff but unpaid

at the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries
are settled within a fortnight of the financial
year end. The department considers the carrying
amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to
its net fair value.
The accrued salaries suspense account [See
note 18 ‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents’]
consists of amounts paid annually into a
suspense account over a period of 10 financial
years to largely meet the additional cash outflow
in each eleventh year when 27 pay days occur
instead of the normal 26. No interest is received
on this account.
n) Amounts receivable for services
(holding account)
The department receives funding on an accrual
basis. The appropriations are paid partly in
cash and partly as an asset (holding account
receivable). The accrued amount receivable is
accessible on the emergence of the cash funding
requirement to cover leave entitlements and
asset replacement.
o) Receivables
Receivables are recognised at original invoice
amount less an allowance for any uncollectible
amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability of
receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and
any receivables identified as uncollectible are
written off against the allowance account. The
allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful
debts) is raised when there is objective evidence
that the department will not be able to collect
the debts. The carrying amount is equivalent to
fair value as it is due for settlement within 30
days.
p) Payables
Payables are recognised at the amounts payable
when the department becomes obliged to
make future payments as a result of a purchase
of assets or services. The carrying amount
is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is
generally within 30 days.
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q) Provisions

Long service leave

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount and are recognised where there is
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event and when the outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is
probable and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

The liability for long service leave that is
expected to be settled within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period is recognised
and measured at the undiscounted amounts
expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

Provisions – employee benefits
All annual leave and long service leave provisions
are in respect of employees’ services up to the
end of the reporting period.
Annual leave
The liability for annual leave that is expected to
be settled within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period is recognised and measured at
the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid
when the liability is settled.
Annual leave that is not expected to be
settled within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period is recognised and measured at
the present value of amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled using the
remuneration rate expected to apply at the time
of settlement.
When assessing expected future payments
consideration is given to expected future
wage and salary levels including non salary
components such as employer superannuation
contributions, as well as the experience of
employee departures and periods of service. The
expected future payments are discounted using
market yields at the end of the reporting period
on national government bonds with terms to
maturity that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows.
The provision for annual leave is classified as a
current liability as the department does not have
an unconditional right to the defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.

Long service leave that is not expected to be
settled within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period is recognised and measured at
the present value of amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled using the
remuneration rate expected to apply at the
time of settlement.
When assessing expected future payments
consideration is given to expected future
wage and salary levels including non salary
components such as employer superannuation
contributions, as well as the experience of
employee departures and periods of service.
The expected future payments are discounted
using market yields at the end of the reporting
period on national government bonds with
terms to maturity that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
Unconditional long service leave provisions
are classified as current liabilities as the
department does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. Pre-conditional and conditional long
service leave provisions are classified as
non-current liabilities because the department
has an unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability until the employee
has completed the requisite years of service.
Sick leave
Liabilities for sick leave are recognised when
it is probable that sick leave paid in the future
will be greater than the entitlement that will
accrue in the future.
Past history indicates that on average, sick leave
taken each reporting period is less than the
entitlement accrued. This is expected to continue
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in future periods. Accordingly, it is unlikely that
existing accumulated entitlements will be used
by employees and no liability for unused sick
leave entitlements is recognised. As sick leave
is non vesting, an expense is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income for this
leave as it is taken.
Deferred leave
The provision for deferred leave relates to Public
Service employees who have entered into an
agreement to self-fund an additional twelve
months leave in the fifth year of the agreement.
The provision recognises the value of salary set
aside for employees to be used in the fifth year.
This liability is measured on the same basis as
annual leave. Deferred leave is reported as a noncurrent provision until the fifth year.
Purchased leave
The provision for purchased leave relates to
Public Service employees who have entered into
an agreement to self-fund up to an additional
ten weeks leave per calendar year. The provision
recognises the value of salary set aside for
employees and is measured at the nominal
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled. This liability is measured on the
same basis as annual leave.
Superannuation
The Government Employees Superannuation
Board (GESB) administers public sector
superannuation arrangements in Western
Australia in accordance with legislative
requirements.
Eligible employees contribute to the Pension
Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme
closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold
State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined
benefit lump sum scheme closed to new
members since 1995.
The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for
the purposes of employees and whole of

government reporting. However, it is a
defined contribution plan for agency purposes
because the concurrent contributions (defined
contributions) made by the department to GESB
extinguishes the agency’s obligations to the
related superannuation liability.
The department has no liabilities under the
Pension Scheme or the GSS. The liabilities for the
unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded
GSS transfer benefits attributable to members
who transferred from the Pension Scheme,
are assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS
obligations are funded by concurrent contributions
made by the department to the GESB.
Employees commencing employment prior to
16 April 2007 who were not members of either
the Pension or the GSS became non contributory
members of the West State Superannuation
Scheme (WSS). Employees commencing
employment on or after 16 April 2007 became
members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS).
Both of these schemes are accumulation
schemes. The department makes concurrent
contributions to GESB on behalf of employees
in compliance with the Commonwealth
Government’s Superannuation Guarantee
(Administration) Act 1992. These contributions
extinguish the liability for superannuation
charges in respect of the WSS and GESBS.
The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect
of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is recouped
from the Treasurer for the employer’s share.
Provisions – other
Employment on-costs
Employment on-costs, including workers’
compensation insurance, are not employee
benefits and are recognised separately as
liabilities and expenses when the employment
to which they relate has occurred. Employment
on-costs are included as part of ‘Other expenses’
and are not included as part of the department’s
‘Employee benefits expense’. The related liability
is included in ‘Employment on-costs provision’.
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r) Superannuation expense
The superannuation expense in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income comprises of employer
contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent
contributions), the WSS, and the GESBS.
The employer contribution paid to the GESB
in respect of the GSS is paid back into the
Consolidated Account by the GESB.

the resource received represents a service that
the department would otherwise pay for, a
corresponding expense is recognised. Receipts
of assets are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position.
Assets or services are received from other state
government agencies are separately disclosed
under Income from state government in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

s) Resources received free of charge or for
nominal cost

t) Comparative figures

Resources received free of charge or for
nominal cost that can be reliably measured
are recognised as income at fair value. Where

Comparative figures are, where appropriate,
reclassified to be comparable with the figures
presented in the current financial year.

3. Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies
The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements about the
application of accounting policies that have a
significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements. The department
evaluates these judgements regularly.
Operating lease commitments
The department has entered into a number
of leases for buildings for branch office
accommodation. Some of these leases relate
to buildings of a temporary nature and it
has been determined that the lessor retains

substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership. Accordingly, these leases
have been classified as operating leases.
Intangible assets
The department recognises an internally
generated intangible asset for the Regulation
Enforcement and Licensing Management
system. The amortisation and estimated
useful life reflects the pattern in which the
asset’s future economic benefits are expected
to be consumed by the department.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Key estimates and assumptions concerning the
future are based on historical experience and
various other factors that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Long service leave
Several estimations and assumptions used in
calculating the Department’s long service leave
provision include expected future salary rates,
discount rates, employee retention rates and
expected future payments. Changes in these
estimations and assumptions may impact on the
carrying amount of the long service leave provision.

5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates
Initial application of an Australian
Accounting Standard
The Department has applied the following
Australian Accounting Standards effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 July 2011 that impacted on the Department.

AASB 1054

Australian Additional Disclosures
This Standard, in conjunction with AASB 2011-1 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman Convergence Project, removes
disclosure requirements from other Standards and incorporates them in a single
Standard to achieve convergence between Australian and New Zealand Accounting
Standards. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2009–12

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 5, 8, 108, 110, 112, 119, 133,
137, 139, 1023 & 1031 and Int 2, 4, 16, 1039 & 1052]
This Standard makes editorial amendments to a range of Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2010–4

Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual
Improvements Project [AASB 1, 7, 101 & 134 and Int 13]
The amendments to AASB 7 clarify financial instrument disclosures in relation to
credit risk. The carrying amount of financial assets that would otherwise be past
due or impaired whose terms have been renegotiated is no longer required to be
disclosed. There is no financial impact.
The amendments to AASB 101 clarify the presentation of the statement of changes
in equity. The disaggregation of other comprehensive income reconciling the
carrying amount at the beginning and the end of the period for each component of
equity is no longer required. There is no financial impact.

80

Department for Communities: Annual Report 2011–12

AASB 2010–5

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 101, 107, 112, 118,
119, 121, 132, 133, 134, 137, 139, 140, 1023 & 1038 and Int 112, 115, 127, 132 & 1042]
This Standard makes editorial amendments to a range of Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2010–6

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures on Transfers of
Financial Assets [AASB 1 & 7]
This Standard introduces additional disclosure relating to transfers of financial
assets in AASB 7. An entity shall disclose all transferred financial assets that are
not derecognised and any continuing involvement in a transferred asset, existing at
the reporting date, irrespective of when the related transfer transaction occurred.
There is no financial impact.

AASB 2010–6

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures on Transfers of
Financial Assets [AASB 1 & 7]
This Standard introduces additional disclosure relating to transfers of financial
assets in AASB 7. An entity shall disclose all transferred financial assets that are
not derecognised and any continuing involvement in a transferred asset, existing at
the reporting date, irrespective of when the related transfer transaction occurred.
There is no financial impact.

AASB 2011–1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman
Convergence Project [AASB 1, 5, 101, 107, 108, 121, 128, 132 & 134 and Int 2, 112 & 113]
This Standard, in conjunction with AASB 1054, removes disclosure requirements
from other Standards and incorporates them in a single Standard to achieve
convergence between Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards. There is
no financial impact.

AASB 2011–5

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Relief
from Consolidation, the Equity Method and Proportionate Consolidation
[AASB 127, 128 & 131]
This Standard extends the relief from consolidation, the equity method and
proportionate consolidation by removing the requirement for the consolidated
financial statements prepared by the ultimate or any intermediate parent entity
to be IFRS compliant, provided that the parent entity, investor or venturer and the
ultimate or intermediate parent entity are not-for-profit non-reporting entities that
comply with Australian Accounting Standards. There is no financial impact.
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Future impact of Australian Accounting
Standards not yet operative
The Department cannot early adopt an
Australian Accounting Standard unless
specifically permitted by TI 1101 ‘Application
of Australian Accounting Standards and Other

Pronouncements’. Consequently, the Department
has not applied early any of the following
Australian Accounting Standards that have been
issued that may impact the Department. Where
applicable, the Department plans to apply these
Australian Accounting Standards from their
application date.
Operative for
reporting periods
beginning on/after

AASB 9

Financial Instruments

1 January 2013

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, introducing a number of
changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was reissued on 6 Dec 2010 and the Department
is currently determining the impact of the Standard. DTF has
not yet determined the application or the potential impact of
the Standard for agencies.
AASB 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

1 January 2013

This Standard supersedes requirements under AASB 127
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and Int 112
Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities, introducing a number
of changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was issued in August 2011. The Department has
not yet determined the application or the potential impact of
the Standard.
AASB 13

Fair Value Measurement
This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for
measuring fair value and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. There is no financial impact.

AASB 119

Employee Benefits
This Standard supersedes AASB 119 Employee Benefits,
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was issued in September 2011. The Department
has not yet determined the application or the potential impact
of the Standard.

AASB 1053

Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards
This Standard establishes a differential financial reporting
framework consisting of two tiers of reporting requirements
for preparing general purpose financial statements. There is no
financial impact.

1 July 2013
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Operative for
reporting periods
beginning on/after
AASB 2009–11

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127,
128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Interpretations 10 & 12].

1 January 2013

[Modified by AASB 2010-7]
AASB 2010–2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7,
8, 101, 102, 107, 108, 110, 111, 112, 116, 117, 119, 121, 123, 124, 127,
128, 131, 133, 134, 136, 137, 138, 140, 141, 1050 & 1052 and
Int 2, 4, 5, 15, 17, 127, 129 & 1052]

1 July 2013

This Standard makes amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations to introduce reduced disclosure
requirements for certain types of entities. There is no financial
impact.
AASB 2010–7

1 January 2013
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102,
108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038
and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]
This Standard makes consequential amendments to other
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a
result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. The Department
has not yet determined the application or the potential impact
of the Standard.

AASB 2011–2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from the Trans-Tasman Convergence Project – Reduced
Disclosure Requirements [AASB 101 & 1054]

1 July 2013

This Standard removes disclosure requirements from other
Standards and incorporates them in a single Standard to
achieve convergence between Australian and New Zealand
Accounting Standards for reduced disclosure reporting. There
is no financial impact.
AASB 2011–8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009–11, 2010–7, 101,
102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134,
136, 138, 139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13,
14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]
This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value
guidance in other Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations as the result of issuing AASB 13 in September
2011. There is no financial impact.

1 July 2013
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Operative for
reporting periods
beginning on/after
AASB 2011–10

1 July 2013

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from AASB 119 (September 2011) [AASB 1, 8, 101, 124, 134, 1049
& 2011-8 and Int 14]
This Standard makes amendments to other Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of
issuing AASB 119 Employee Benefits in September 2011. The
Department has not yet determined the application or the
potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 2011–11

Amendments to AASB 119 (September 2011) arising from
Reduced Disclosure Requirements
This Standard gives effect to Australian Accounting Standards
– Reduced Disclosure Requirements for AASB 119 (September
2011). There is no financial impact.

6. Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries a
Superannuation – defined contribution plans b
Long service leave c
Annual leave c
Other related expenses

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

16 012
1 753
1 302
1 149
889

16 939
1 810
541
1 629
300

21 105

21 220

a Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component.
b Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State and the GESB Super Scheme (contributions paid).
c Includes a superannuation contribution component.
Employment on-costs such as workers’ compensation insurance are included at note 12 ‘Other expenses’.
The employment on-costs liability is included at note 26 ‘Provisions’.
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7. Supplies and services

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Communications
Consultants and contractors
Consumables
Facilities
Leased equipment
Motor vehicle costs
Resources received free of charge
Staffing costs
Training
Travel
Other

499
4 236
1 573
44
42
554
2 767
263
335
493
49

375
5 958
844
50
26
522
2 359
319
234
435
54

10 855

11 176

8. Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation
Buildings
Office machines, furniture and equipment
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
3FTUSJDUFEBTTFUTǋCVJMEJOHT
3FTUSJDUFEBTTFUTǋMFBTFIPMEJNQSPWFNFOUT
Total depreciation

482
21
1
772
ř
ř

483
23
1
1 194
ř
ř

1 276

1 701

Amortisation
Computer software

233

232

Total amortisation

233

232

1 509

1 933

1 816
1 431
127
11
174
91

1 817
1 415
142
206
150
103

3 650

3 834

Total depreciation and amortisation

9. Accommodation expenses
Lease rentals
Repairs and maintenance – buildings
Insurance – general
Minor works
Cleaning, gardening, security, rates and taxes
Power, water and gas
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10. Grants and subsidies
Recurrent
$PNNVOJUZTFSWJDFHSBOUT
Charitable bodies
'PPECBOL8"ƻƹƼƹ1SPKFDU
Grants and subsidies – private bodies
Instructor recognition grants
Redress WA Scheme ex-gratia payments a, b
Seniors Cost of Living Rebate
Seniors Security Rebate
Volunteering grants
Womans grants
Youth/Cadets grants
:PVUIDPPSEJOBUJOHOFUXPSLHSBOUT

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

ř
214
ř
5 650
743
29 763
33 849
3 724
31
121
728
ř

ř
12
ƺƹƹƹ
983
713
77 496
22 299
1 616
50
129
417
ř

76 823

104 715

a Redress WA Scheme for those adults who, as children, were abused and/or neglected in WA state care in Western Australia.
b The comparatives for Redress WA Scheme ex-gratia payments have been restated for comparability purposes. An
additional $5 628m in grant payments has been recognised in 2010–11.

11. Funding for services
Funding to non-government agencies under contract for services
provided directly to the community including to organisations
such as Anglicare, Centrecare and local government shires.

20 758

18 286

This note reflects the department’s funding to non-government bodies and is disclosed in
accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 951.

12. Other expenses
Repairs and maintenance – equipment
%PVCUGVMEFCUTFYQFOTF
Employment on-costs a [refer note 6]
Audit fees b

4
ř
149
51

6
ƺ
120
51

204

178

a Includes workers’ compensation insurance and other employment on costs. The on costs liability associated with the
recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included at note 26 ‘Provisions’. Superannuation contributions accrued
as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.
b Audit fee, see also note 35 ‘Remuneration of auditor’.

13. User charges and fees
Sale of products
Child Care Qualification Assessment Fees

67
26

1
20

93

21
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14. Commonwealth grants and contributions

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Recurrent
National quality agenda for early childhood education and care
Indian Ocean Territory Service Delivery Programs a
WA Youth Grants

1 568
355
36

37
236
166

1 959

439

a The Australian Government has a service delivery agreement with the State Government of Western Australia for the
provision of services to Indian Ocean Territory (formally known as Christmas and Cocos (Keeling) Island program). Refer to
note 38 ‘Special Purpose Accounts’ for Statement of Receipts and Payments.

15. Other revenue
Contributions by officers to the Executive Motor Vehicle Scheme
1SJPSQFSJPEBEKVTUNFOU
#BE%FCU3FDPWFSZ
Sponsorship revenue
Miscellaneous

23
ř
ř
161
1 852

24
ř
ř
175
1 272

2 036

1 471

16. Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets
-BOE
#VJMEJOHT
0ƌDFNBDIJOFT GVSOJUVSFFRVJQNFOU
$PNQVUFSFRVJQNFOU
-FBTFIPMEJNQSPWFNFOUT
3FTUSJDUFEBTTFUTǋMBOE
3FTUSJDUFEBTTFUTǋCVJMEJOHT
3FTUSJDUFEBTTFUTǋMFBTFIPMEJNQSPWFNFOUT

ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř

ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř

Costs from disposal of non-current assets
-BOE
#VJMEJOHT
0ƌDFNBDIJOFT GVSOJUVSFFRVJQNFOU
$PNQVUFSFRVJQNFOU
-FBTFIPMEJNQSPWFNFOUT
3FTUSJDUFEBTTFUTǋMBOE
3FTUSJDUFEBTTFUTǋCVJMEJOHT
3FTUSJDUFEBTTFUTǋMFBTFIPMEJNQSPWFNFOUT

ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř

ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř

Net gain/(loss)

—

—
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17. Income from state government
Appropriations received during the year:
Cash received from government a
Amount receivable for services a

"ENJOJTUFSFEBQQSPQSJBUJPOT

Resources received free of charge b
Determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by agencies:
State Solicitor’s Office – legal services
Landgate – land information & valuation services
Department of Treasury and Finance – leasing services
Department for Child Protection – corporate support
Royalties for Regions Fund:
– Regional Infrastructure and Headworks Account c
– Regional Community Services Account c

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

129 012
1 683

150 537
2 663

130 695

153 200

ř

ř

130 695

153 200

24
12
395
2 336

46
6
108
2 200

2 767

2 360

ř
990
134 452

ř
307
155 867

a Service appropriations are accrual amounts reflecting the full cost of services delivered. The appropriation revenue
comprises a cash component and a receivable (asset). The receivable (holding account) comprises the depreciation expense
for the year and any agreed increase in leave liability during the year.
b Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal cost, the department recognises revenues
equivalent to the fair value of the assets and/or the fair value of those services that can be reliably measured and which
would have been purchased if they were not donated, and those fair values shall be recognised as assets or expenses, as
applicable. Where the contribution of assets or services are in the nature of contributions by owners, the department makes
the adjustment direct to equity.
c This is a sub-fund within the over-arching ‘Royalties for Regions Fund’. The recurrent funds are committed to projects and
programs in WA regional areas.
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18. Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Current
Royalties for Regions Fund a
Indian Ocean Territory b, c
WA Family Foundation b
Unclaimed Monies d

Non-current
Accrued salaries suspense account e

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

377
22
312
ƻƽƿ

26
26
337
ř

957

389

452

368

452

368

a Unspent funds are committed to projects and programs in WA regional areas.
b Cash held in the controlled trust accounts can only be used for specific designated purposes.
c Formerly known as Christmas and Cocos (Keeling) Island program.
d Amounts representing Unclaimed Seniors Rebates.
e Amount held in the suspense account is only to be used for the purpose of meeting the 27th pay in a financial year that
occurs every 11 years.

19. Receivables
Current
Receivables
Salary overpayments
Other
GST recoverable

10
247
379

5
226
232

Total current

636

463

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables:
#BMBODFBUTUBSUPGQFSJPE
5SBOTGFSGSPNUIF%FQBSUNFOUGPS$IJME1SPUFDUJPO
%PVCUGVMEFCUTFYQFOTFSFDPHOJTFEJOUIFJODPNFTUBUFNFOU
"NPVOUTXSJUUFOPƋEVSJOHUIFQFSJPE
"NPVOUTSFDPWFSFEEVSJOHUIFQFSJPE

ř
ř
ř
ř
ř

ř
ř
ƺ
ƺ
ř

Balance at end of period

—

—

ř
14 885

ř
13 202

14 885

13 202

20. Amounts receivable for services
$VSSFOU
Non-current

Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations. It is restricted in that it can only be
used for asset replacement or payment of leave liability.
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21. Other assets

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Current
Prepayments
0UIFS

13
ř

110
ř

Total current

13

110

22. Property, plant and equipment
Land
At fair value a
"DDVNVMBUFEJNQBJSNFOUMPTTFT
Buildings
At fair value a
"DDVNVMBUFEJNQBJSNFOUMPTTFT
Leasehold improvements
At fair value a
Accumulated depreciation
"DDVNVMBUFEJNQBJSNFOUMPTTFT

24 310
ř

22 851
ř

24 310

22 851

17 470
ř

11 516
ř

17 470

11 516

6 619
5 758
ř

6 619
4 986
ř

861

1 633

Computer equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

44
11

10
10

0ƌDFNBDIJOFT GVSOJUVSFBOEFRVJQNFOU

ƼƼ

ř

Office machines, furniture and equipment
Computer equipment
Accumulated depreciation

149
92

129
72

57

57

Work in progress
Work in progress has been included at cost:
 0ƌDFBDDPNNPEBUJPO
 'BNJMZDFOUSFT

ř
ř

ř
ř



ř

ř

42 731

36 057

a Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2011 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). The
valuations were performed during the year ended 30 June 2012 and recognised at 30 June 2012. In undertaking the revaluation, fair
value was determined by reference to market values for land: $24 310 000 and buildings: $16 418 000. For the remaining balance,
fair value of land and buildings was determined on the basis of depreciated replacement cost.

24 310

ƺǂǀƾƺ
ř
ř
ƽƹƹ 
ř
Ƽƾƹƹ
ř
22 851

Carrying amount at end of year

2011
$BSSZJOHBNPVOUBUTUBSUPGZFBS
"EEJUJPOT
5SBOTGFST*O
5SBOTGFST0VU
%JTQPTBMT
3FWBMVBUJPO*ODSFNFOUT
%FQSFDJBUJPOBOE"NPSUJTBUJPO

Carrying amount at end of year

11 516

ƺƺǂƽǂ
Ƽƹ
ř
ř
ř
ƻƹ
ƽǁƼ 

17 470

ƺƺƾƺƿ
ƺƹƾƻ
ř
ř
ř
ƾƼǁƽ
ƽǁƻ 

57

ƾƺ
ƻǂ
ř
ř
ř
ř
ƻƼ 

57

ƾǀ
ƻƺ
ř
ř
ř
ř
ƻƺ 

—

ƺ
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ƺ

33

ř
Ƽƽ
ř
ř
ř
ř
ƺ

1 633

ƻǁƻǀ
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ƺƺǂƽ 

861

ƺƿƼƼ
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ǀǀƻ 

Leasehold
improvements
$’000

670

ǂƹƻ
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ƻƼƻ 

437

ƿǀƹ
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ƻƼƼ 

Intangible
assets
$’000

—

ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř

—

ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř

Work in
progress
b
$’000

36 727

Ƽƾƽǁƺ
ƾǂ
ř
ƽƹƹ
ř
Ƽƾƻƹ
ƺǂƼƼ

43 168

Ƽƿǀƻǀ
ƺƺƹǀ
ř
ř
ř
ƿǁƽƼ
ƺƾƹǂ

Total
$’000

a The Department of Regional Development and Lands (DRDL) is the only agency with the power to sell Crown land. The land is transferred to DRDL for sale
and the department accounts for the transfer as a distribution to owners.
b The Work in Progress includes capitalisation of assets.

ƻƻǁƾƺ
ř
ř
ř
ř
ƺƽƾǂ
ř

2012
$BSSZJOHBNPVOUBUTUBSUPGZFBS
"EEJUJPOT
5SBOTGFST*O
5SBOTGFST0VU
%JTQPTBMT
3FWBMVBUJPO*ODSFNFOUT
%FQSFDJBUJPOBOE"NPSUJTBUJPO

Land a
$’000

Machines,
furniture & Computer
Buildings equipment equipment
$’000
$’000
$’000

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant, equipment, leasehold improvements, intangible assets
and works in progress at the beginning and end of the current financial year are set out below.
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22. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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23. Intangible assets

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Licences
At At cost
Accumulated amortisation
"DDVNVMBUFEJNQBJSNFOUMPTTFT

1 162
725
ř

1 162
492
ř

Total intangible assets

437

670

Reconciliations:
Computer software
Carrying amount at start of period
"EEJUJPOT
$MBTTJŻFEBTIFMEGPSTBMF
3FWBMVBUJPOJODSFNFOUT
*NQBJSNFOUMPTTFTSFDPHOJTFEJO4UBUFNFOUPG$PNQSFIFOTJWF*ODPNF
*NQBJSNFOUMPTTFTSFWFSTFEJO4UBUFNFOUPG$PNQSFIFOTJWF*ODPNF
Amortisation expense

670
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
233

902
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
232

Carrying amount at end of period

437

670

24. Impairment of assets
There were no indications of impairment of property, plant and equipment, leasehold improvements and
intangible assets at 30 June 2012.
The department held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting
period. At the end of the reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.
All surplus assets at 30 June 2012 have either been classified as assets held for sale or written off.

25. Payables
Current
Accounts Payables
Accrued Expenses b
Accrued Salaries a
Unclaimed Monies c
Total current

565
936
385
ƻƽƿ
2 132

a Amounts owing for six working days from 22 June to 30 June 2012 (2011: five working days).
b The comparatives for Redress WA Scheme ex-gratia payments have been restated for comparability purposes. An
additional $5 628m in grant payments has been recognised in 2010–11.
c Amounts representing Unclaimed Seniors Rebates.

94
5 902
514
ř
6 509
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26. Provisions

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Current
Employee benefits provision
Annual leave a
Long service leave b
Free passes to the coast and travel days
Time off in lieu
 1VCMJDIPMJEBZT
Purchased leave

1 559
2 185
2
55
ř
33

1 417
2 041
11
61
ř
1

3 834

3 531

21

15

21

15

3 855

3 546

955
19

888
24

974

912

5

14

979

926

4 834

4 472

Other provisions
Employment on-costs c

Non-current
Employee benefits provision
Long service leave b
Deferred leave

Other provisions
Employment on-costs c
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26. Provisions (continued)

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

a Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to
occur as follows:

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the reporting period

1 114
445

1 417

1 559

1 417

b Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is
expected to occur as follows:

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the reporting period

771
2 369

404
2 525

3 140

2 929

c The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs including
workers’ compensation insurance. The provision is the present value of expected future payments. The associated expense is
disclosed in note 12 ‘Other Expenses’.

Movements in other provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set
out below.
Employee on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of period
Additional provisions recognised
Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits
Carrying amount at end of period

28
26
(28)

44
28
(44)

26

28
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27. Equity
Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the department. The Government holds
the equity interest in the department on behalf of the community. The asset revaluation reserve
represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.

Contributed equity
Balance at the start of the period
Contributions to owners
  $BQJUBMDPOUSJCVUJPO
Transfer of net assets from the Department for Child Protection
Transfer of net assets from the Department of
  3FHJPOBM%FWFMPQNFOUBOE-BOET

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

33 997

34 397

ƺƿǂƹ

ř

ř

ř

1 690

—

ř

ř

ř

ƽƹƹ 

—

(400)

35 687

33 997

13 350

9 830

5 384
1 459
ř

3 500
20
ř

20 193

13 350

Balance at the start of the period
Result for the period a

10 768
3 636

14 312
(3 544)

Balance at end of period

14 404

10 769

Total contributions by owners
Distributions to owners
  5SBOTGFSPGOFUBTTFUTUPPUIFSBHFODJFT
Transfer of assets and liabilities to the Department of
  -PDBM(PWFSONFOUBOE3FHJPOBM%FWFMPQNFOU
Total distributions to owners
Balance at end of period
Reserves
Asset revaluation surplus
Balance at the start of the period
Net revaluation increments/(decrements)
Land
Buildings
  -FBTFIPMEJNQSPWFNFOUT
Balance at end of period
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)

a The comparatives for Redress WA Scheme ex-gratia payments have been restated for comparability purposes. An
additional $5 628m in grant payments has been recognised in 2010–11.
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28. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

17 139
1 409

17 837
757

18 548

18 594

(130 816)

(159 411)

Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the
Cash Flow Statement is reconciled to the related items
in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 2(l))
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (see note 2 (l) & 18)

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows
provided by/(used in) operating activities
Net cost of services
Non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation expense
%PVCUGVMEFCUTFYQFOTF OPUFƺƻ 
Resources received free of charge (note 17)
/FU HBJO MPTTPOEJTQPTBMPGQSPQFSUZ QMBOUBOEFRVJQNFOU OPUFƺƿ 
"EKVTUNFOUGPSPUIFS/PO$BTI*UFNT
Other Assets transferred from other sources

1 509
ř
2 767
ř
ř
20

1 933
ƺ
2 360
ř
ƺƺƺ
168

(26)
97
ř
ƺƿǂƹ 

162
(57)
ř
ř

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
Current payables a
Current provisions
$VSSFOUSFWFOVFSFDFJWFEJOBEWBODF
Current liabilities transferred to other sources a
0UIFSDVSSFOUMJBCJMJUJFT
Non-current provisions
0UIFSOPODVSSFOUMJBCJMJUJFT
Non-current liabilities transferred to other sources a
Net GST receipts/(payments) b
Change in GST in receivables/payables c

(4 360)
308
ƻǂ 
ř
ř
53
ř
ř
ř
(148)

5 009
270
ř
ř
ř
53
ř
ř
ř
26

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

(132 315)

(149 597)

(Increase)/decrease in assets
Current receivables a
Current prepayments
Current assets transferred to other sources a
/PO$VSSFOU"TTFUT

a The comparatives for Redress WA Scheme ex-gratia payments have been restated for comparability purposes. An additional
$5.628m in grant payments has been recognised in 2010–11.
b This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions.
c This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables.
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29. Resources provided free of charge

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Resources provided free of charge
During the period the following resources were provided to other
agencies free of charge for functions outside the normal operations
of the Department:
$JUZPG$PDLCVSO
$JUZPG(SFBUFS(FSBMEUPO
$JUZPG4XBO
$JUZPG.BOEVSBI
$JUZPG$BOOJOH
4IJSFPG$PMMJF
1VCMJD5SBOTQPSU"VUIPSJUZPG8FTUFSO"VTUSBMJB
5PXOPG7JDUPSJB1BSL

ƻƿ
ƻǀ
ƻǁ
Ƽƹ
ƻƺǀ
ǂ
ƻƹƻ
ƺƼƺ

ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř

670

—

1 ƹƺƹ
ř
ř

ř
ř
ř

1 010

—

30. Commitments
Capital expenditure commitments
Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital
expenditure additional to the amounts reported in the financial
statements, are payable as follows:
– Within one year
ǋ -BUFSUIBOPOFZFBSBOEOPUMBUFSUIBOŻWFZFBST
ǋ -BUFSUIBOŻWFZFBST

The capital commitments include amounts for:
 3FGVSCJTINFOUT
 $IJMEDBSFDFOUSFVQHSBEF

ƽǀƹ
ƾƽƹ

ř
ř

1 010

—

2 041
3 351
ř

1 888
5 258
ř

5 392

7 146

4 612
780

6 314
832

5 392

7 146

Lease commitments
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the end
of the reporting period but not recognised in the financial
statements are payable as follows:
– Within one year
– Later than one year and not later than five years
ǋ -BUFSUIBOŻWFZFBST

Representing:
Cancellable operating leases
Non-cancellable operating leases
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30. Commitments (continued)

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

546
234
ř

474
358
ř

780

832

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments
Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:
– Within one year
– Later than one year and not later than five years
ǋ -BUFSUIBOŻWFZFBST

The department has entered into a property lease which is a non-cancellable lease with a five
year term, with rent payable monthly in advance. Contingent rent provisions within a lease
agreement require that the minimum lease payments shall be increased by the lower of CPI
or 4% per annum. An option exists to renew the lease at the end of the five year term for an
additional term of five years.
The department leases its motor vehicle fleet and certain office premises. The lease expenditure
is expensed as it is incurred. Motor vehicle leasing arrangements are under the terms of the
State Fleet Funding Facility Contract administered by State Fleet – State Supply Commission.

Other expenditure commitments
Other expenditure commitments [consumables] contracted for at
the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities,
are payable as follows:
– Later than one year and not later than five years
ǋ -BUFSUIBOŻWFZFBST

1 080
ř

40
ř

1 080

40
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31. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

90

155

ř

ƽƹ

90

195

ƻǁ

ř

28

—

Contingent liabilities
The department’s policy is to disclose as a contingency any
obligations which may arise due to special circumstances or events.
At the date of this report the Department is not aware of any
material future obligations, except for the following:
Commonwealth contributions made for child care centres which the
Department is required to repay if the centres cease to function for
the purpose for which they were built amount to:
Liability for payments to Riskcover for adjustments in insurance cover
JOSFMBUJPOUP8PSLFST$PNQFOTBUJPOBOE.PUPSWFIJDMF1FSGPSNBODF

Contingent assets
Asset for refunds from Riskcover for adjustments in insurance
cover in relation to Workers Compensation and Motor vehicle
1FSGPSNBODF"EKVTUNFOUT

32. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period
There were no events occurring after the reporting date that impact on the financial statements.

33. Explanatory statement
Significant variations between estimates and actual results for income and expense as presented in the
financial statement titled ‘Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates’ are
shown below. Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10 percent and $1 million.
Total appropriation provided to deliver service
Significant variances between estimate and actual for 2012

Total appropriations provided to deliver services for the period

2012
Estimate
$’000

2012
Actual
$’000

Variance
$’000

98 104

130 695

32 591

The variance is mainly due to the receipt in supplementary funding to meet the shortfall
in Redress WA Scheme ex gratia payments and additional indexation funding associated with the
not-for-profit sustainable and contracting initiative.
Significant variances between actual results for 2012 and 2011

Total appropriations provided to deliver services for the period

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Variance
$’000

130 695

153 200

(22 505)
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33. Explanatory statement (continued)
The variance is mainly due to a decrease in funding associated with the conclusion of the Redress
WA Scheme in 2012. This is partially offset by increases in funding associated with the expansion of
the Western Australian Seniors Card and the Seniors Cost of Living Rebate, an increase in indexation
funding associated with the sustainable funding and contracting with the not-for-profit sector, an
increase in funding associated with the Foodbank Western Australia 2030 Project and an increase in
funding associated with the Social Innovation Program.
Service expenditure
Significant variances between estimate and actual for 2012

Redress WA Scheme

2012
Estimate
$’000

2012
Actual
$’000

Variance
$’000

11 648

31 698

20 050

The variance is mainly due to additional ex-gratia payments to eligible applicants to finalise the Scheme.
Significant variances between actual results for 2012 and 2011

Child and family services a
Strategic policy and coordination b
Redress WA Scheme c

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Variance
$’000

41 150
62 056
31 698

33 422
41 438
86 482

7 728
20 618
(54 784)

a The variance is mainly due to an increase in grant payments associated with government initiatives such as the Social
Innovation Grants Program, Foodbank WA 2030, Beyond Gambling Grants Program and the Regional Community Child Care
Development Fund. In addition, the-not-for-profit community sector received a 15% across-the-board price adjustment on all
eligible not-for-profit community service agreements.
b The variance is mainly due to the expansion of the Western Australian Seniors Card and the resulting increase in the payment
of Seniors Cost of Living Rebates to eligible card holders, the extension of the Safety and Security Rebate, an increase in grant
payments associated with the Social Innovation Grants Program and increases in expenditure associated with the production
of the Seniors Discount Directory, implementing the National Framework for child care and payment to the-not-for-profit
community sector of a 15% across-the-board price adjustment on all eligible not-for-profit community service agreements.
c The variance is mainly due to the winding down of the Redress WA Scheme in 2012 resulting in a decrease in ex gratia
payments to Scheme recipients and associated administrative expenses.

Capital contribution
Significant variances between estimate and actual for 2012
No significant variance in capital contribution
Significant variances between actual results for 2012 and 2011
Significant variance in service expenditures is as follows:
2012
$’000
$BQJUBMDPOUSJCVUJPO

ƺƿǂƹ

2011
$’000
ř

Variance
$’000
ƺƿǂƹ

The variance is mainly due to the receipt in 2012 only of capital funding to upgrade the department’s
Child Care Centres kitchens to meet current Health Act and Regulations and Local Government
Regulations and Standards.
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34. Financial instruments
(a) Financial risk management objectives
and policies
Financial instruments held by the department
are cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash and cash equivalents, receivables,
and payables. The department has limited
exposure to financial risks. The department’s
overall risk management program focuses
on managing the risks identified below.
Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility
of the department’s receivables defaulting on
their contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the department.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
end of the reporting period in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the gross
carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any
allowance for impairment as shown in the table
at note 34(c) ‘Financial instruments disclosures’
and note 19 ‘Receivables’.
Credit risk associated with the department’s
financial assets is minimal because the main
receivable is the amounts receivable for services
(holding account). For receivables other than
government, the department trades only with
recognised, creditworthy third parties. The
department has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products and services are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis with the result that the
department’s exposure to bad debts is minimal.
At the end of the reporting period there were
no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the department is
unable to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due.
The department is exposed to liquidity risk
through its trading in the normal course of
business.
The department has appropriate procedures
to manage cash flows including drawdowns of
appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows
to ensure that sufficient funds are available to
meet its commitments.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market
prices such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates will affect the department’s
income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The department does not trade in
foreign currency and is not materially exposed to
other price risks.
Other than as detailed in the interest rate
sensitivity analysis table at note 34(b), the
department is not exposed to interest rate risk
because apart from minor amounts of restricted
cash, all other cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash are non-interest bearing.
(b) Categories of financial instruments
In addition to cash, the carrying amounts of
each of the following categories of financial
assets and financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:
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Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables a
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
a The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

(c) Financial instrument disclosures
Credit risk
The following table details the department’s
maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing
analysis of financial assets. The department’s
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end
of the reporting period is the carrying amount
of financial assets as shown below. The table
discloses the ageing of financial assets that are
past due but not impaired and impaired financial
assets. The table is based on information provided
to senior management of the department.
The department does not hold any collateral as
security or other credit enhancement relating to
the financial assets it holds.

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

17 139
1 409
15 142

17 837
757
13 433

2 132

6 509
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(c) Financial instrument disclosures (continued)
Past due but not impaired
Not
past due
Carrying and not
Amount imparied
$’000
$’000
Financial assets
2012
$BTIBOEDBTIFRVJWBMFOUT
Restricted cash and
DBTIFRVJWBMFOUT
Receivables a
Amounts receivable
GPSTFSWJDFT

1–5
years
$’000

More Impaired
than financial
5 years assets
$’000
$’000

ƺǀƺƼǂ ƺǀƺƼǂ

ř

ř

ř

ř

ř

ř

ƺƽƹǂ ƺƽƹǂ
ƻƾǀ
ƺƺǂ

ř
ƺƼ

ř
ƾƻ

ř
ǀƼ

ř
ř

ř
ř

ř
ř

ƺƽǁǁƾ ƺƽǁǁƾ

ř

ř

ř

ř

ř

ř

13

52

73

—

—

—

ř

ř

ř

ř

ř

ř

ǀƾǀ
ƻƹǁ

ř
ƺƽ

ř
ǂ

ř
ř

ř
ř

ř
ř

ř
ř

ƺƼƻƹƻ ƺƼƻƹƻ

ř

ř

ř

ř

ř

ř

14

9

—

—

—

—

33 690 33 552
2011
$BTIBOEDBTIFRVJWBMFOUT
Restricted cash and
DBTIFRVJWBMFOUT
Receivables a
Amounts receivable
GPSTFSWJDFT

Up to 1
1 to 3
3–11
month months months
$’000
$’000
$’000

ƺǀǁƼǀ ƺǀǁƼǀ
ǀƾǀ
ƻƼƺ

32 027 32 004

a The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure
The following table details the department’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity
analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities. The maturity analysis section includes interest and
principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.
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Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities
Interest Rate Exposure

Maturity Dates

Variable
NonCarrying Interest interest Nominal
Amount
Rate bearing Amount
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
Financial assets
2012
Cash and cash
FRVJWBMFOUT
Restricted cash and
DBTIFRVJWBMFOUT
Receivables a
Amounts receivable
GPSTFSWJDFT
Financial liabilities
2012
1BZBCMFT

Financial assets
2011
Cash and cash
FRVJWBMFOUT
Restricted cash and
DBTIFRVJWBMFOUT
Receivables a
Amounts receivable
GPSTFSWJDFT
Financial liabilities
2011
1BZBCMFT

Up to 1
1 to 3
3–12
month months months
$’000
$’000
$’000

1–5
years
$’000

More
than
5 years
$’000

ƺǀƺƼǂ

ř ƺǀƺƼǂ ƺǀƺƼǂ

ř

ř

ř

ř

ř

ƺƽƹǂ
ƻƾǀ

ř ƺƽƹǂ ƺƽƹǂ
ř
ƻƾǀ
ƻƾǀ

ř
ƻƾǀ

ř
ř

ř
ř

ř
ř

ř
ř

ƺƽǁǁƾ

ř ƺƽǁǁƾ ƺƽǁǁƾ

ř

ř

ř

ř

ř

33 690

— 33 690 33 690

257

—

—

—

—

ƻƺƼƻ

ř ƻƺƼƻ ƻƺƼƻ ƻƺƼƻ

ř

ř

ř

ř

2 132

—

—

—

—

—

ř

ř

ř

ř

ř

ǀƾǀ
ƻƼƺ

ř
ƻƼƺ

ř
ř

ř
ř

ř
ř

ř
ř

ƺƼƻƹƻ

ř ƺƼƻƹƻ ƺƼƻƹƻ

ř

ř

ř

ř

ř

32 027

— 32 027 32 027

231

—

—

—

—

ƺǀǁƼǀ
ǀƾǀ
ƻƼƺ

2 132

2 132

ř ƺǀǁƼǀ ƺǀǁƼǀ
ř
ř

ǀƾǀ
ƻƼƺ

2 132

ƿƾǂƹ

ř

ƿƾƹǂ

ƿƾƹǂ

ƿƾƹǂ

ř

ř

ř

ř

881

—

881

881

881

—

—

—

—

a The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The department is not exposed to interest rate risk because cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash are non-interest bearing.
Fair values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are
carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of
fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.
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35. Remuneration of senior officers
Remuneration
The number of senior officers, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits
and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:
$

ƹ ǋ ǀƹƹƹƹ
 ǀƹƹƹƺ ǋ ǁƹƹƹƹ
 ǁƹƹƹƺ ǋ ǂƹƹƹƹ
 ǂƹƹƹƺ ǋ ƺƹƹƹƹƹ
ƺƹƹƹƹƺ ǋ ƺƺƹƹƹƹ
ƺƺƹƹƹƺ ǋ ƺƻƹƹƹƹ
ƺƻƹƹƹƺ ǋ ƺƼƹƹƹƹ
ƺƼƹƹƹƺ ǋ ƺƽƹƹƹƹ
ƺƽƹƹƹƺ ǋ ƺƾƹƹƹƹ
150 001 – 160 000
ƺƿƹƹƹƺ ǋ ƺǀƹƹƹƹ
ƺǀƹƹƹƺ ǋ ƺǁƹƹƹƹ
180 001 – 190 000
ƺǂƹƹƹƺ ǋ ƻƹƹƹƹƺ
ƻƼƹƹƹƺ ǋ ƻƽƹƹƹƹ
ƻǀƹƹƹƺ ǋ ƻǁƹƹƹƹ
Ƽƹƹƹƹƺ ǋ Ƽƺƹƹƹƹ
Ƽǁƹƹƹƺ ǋ Ƽǂƹƹƹƹ

The total remuneration of senior officers is:

2012
ř
ř
ř
ƺ
ř
ƺ
ř
ř
ř
1
ř
ř
1
ƺ
ř
ƺ
ƺ
ƺ
$’000
1 692

2011
ř
ƺ
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
ř
1
ř
Ƽ
1
ř
ƺ
ř
ř
ř
$’000
1 182

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the department in respect of
senior officers. Two redundancy payments were made to senior officers in 2011–12.
No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme.
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36. Remuneration of auditor
2012
$’000

2011
$’000

66

51

66

51

Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect
of the audit for the current financial year is as follows:
Auditing the accounts, financial statements and key
performance indicators

37. Related bodies
The department did not have any related bodies during the financial year.

38. Affiliated bodies
The following are government affiliated bodies that received grants from the department. They are not
subject to operational control by the department.
Amount received
Organisation name
$’000
Bridgetown Family and Community
Brockman House Inc
City of Wanneroo
CLAN Midland Inc
ConnectGroups – Support Groups Association WA Inc
East Victoria Park Family Centre Inc
Fluffy Ducklings Day Care Inc
Forest Lakes/Thornlie Family Centre Inc
Frank Konecny Community Centre Inc
Golden Mile Community House Inc
Greensfields Family and Community Centre
High Wycombe Family Centre
Joondalup Family Centre Inc
Linkwest Incorporated
Manjimup Family Centre Inc
Meerilinga Young Children’s Services Inc
Mt Marshall Family and Community Support Service
Newman Neighbourhood Centre Inc
Parents Without Partners (WA) Inc
Rostrata Family Centre Inc
Sandalwood Family Centre Inc
Sudbury Community House Association
Waratah Christian community Inc
Waroona Community Resource Centre Inc
Westerly Family Centre
West Stirling Neighbourhood House Inc
Yilgarn Occasional Child Care Centre Inc

70 701
148 000
83 491
130 464
286 971
46 545
38 879
46 545
117 245
148 000
46 545
26 004
46 545
234 646
147 999
866 339
37 677
111 110
71 582
46 545
46 599
148 000
44 830
63 687
71 545
71 001
22 887
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39. Special purpose accounts
Special purpose accounts
Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit for the current financial
year is as follows:
Western Australian Family Foundation

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

337
376
(401)

232
376
(271)

Balance at end of period

312

337

Indian Ocean Territory a

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Balance at start of period
Receipts
Payments

26
355
(359)

44
236
(254)

22

26

The purpose of the special purpose account is to hold funds for
development, implementation and administration of initiatives
and activities regarding the family and the community.
Balance at start of period
Receipts
Payments

Balance at end of period
a Formerly known as Christmas and Cocos (Keeling) Island program.

40. Supplementary financial information
(a) Write offs
During the financial year nil (2011: $0) was written off the department’s asset register.
(b) Losses through theft, defaults and other causes
There were no losses of public moneys and other property through theft or default.
There were no amounts recovered.
(c) Gifts of public property
There were no gifts of public property provided by the department.

107

5.0 Disclosures and legal compliance

5.3 Performance indicators
Certification of Key Performance Indicators
I hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate
for assisting users to assess the Department for Communities’ performance, and fairly represent the
performance of the Department for Communities for the financial year ended 30 June 2012.

Jenni Perkins
Accountable Authority
14 September 2012

5.3.1 Indicators of effectiveness
The Department for Communities has two
effectiveness indicators that measure the
following outcome:
Outcome 1
Communities are strengthened so that
individuals and families are able to better
meet their needs.

Communities’ effectiveness indicators are
drawn from two main sources: an annual
customer perception survey and surveys of
external stakeholders involved in projects
undertaken by the department. The titles of
the effectiveness indicators changed in the
2011–12 Budget Statements to better describe
their meaning and are updated in this report
for the first time. There was no change to
methodology or analysis.
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KPI 1.1 Extent to which customers report their needs are met
Communities promotes children’s early learning
and development through a range of services
designed to support parents and children. This
indicator encompasses services delivered to
support parents and children including:

assess how satisfied they were with the service
provided and whether it met their needs. This
indicator was calculated by:

"CPSJHJOBM&BSMZ:FBST
1BSFOUJOHTFSWJDFT
3VSBMDIJMEDBSF
'BNJMZBOE$PNNVOJUZ4VQQPSUTFSWJDFT

Ţ D PVOUJOHSFTQPOEFOUTXIPTFMFDUFEUIF
two positive ratings (from the satisfaction
question’s five point response scale of two
positive and two negative ratings around a
neutral mid-point) to calculate the percentage
of satisfied respondents, and

All people who used these services during a
specified two week survey period were invited
to complete a confidential survey form to

Ţ S FWJFXJOHUIFEBUBUPJEFOUJGZUIFQFSDFOUBHF
of satisfied respondents who indicated the
service also met their needs.

Ţ
Ţ
Ţ
Ţ

Percentage of people who reported they were satisfied with the service and had their needs met
100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0

Note:

2007–08

2008–09

2009–10

2010–11

2011–12
(Actual)

2011–12
(Target)

97%

97%

96%

98%

96%

90%

Ţ U IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻSFTVMUXBTTJYQFSDFOUIJHIFS
than the target and two per cent lower
than the previous year
Ţ UIFTVSWFZEJTUSJCVUJPOXBTƿƼƺƾ

Ţ OVNCFSPGSFTQPOTFTSFDFJWFEXBTƺǀǂƿ
Ţ SFTQPOTFSBUFXBTƻǁQFSDFOU
Ţ UPUBMTVSWFZSFTVMUTIBWFBǂƾQFSDFOU
confidence interval of +/– 1.40 per cent.

109

5.0 Disclosures and legal compliance

KPI 1.2 Extent to which stakeholders report that policies/projects have an impact
on strengthening the community
Ţ D PVOUJOHSFTQPOEFOUTXIPTFMFDUFEUIF
positive ratings (from the satisfaction
question’s five point response scale of
two positive and two negative ratings
around a neutral mid-point) to calculate the
percentage of satisfied respondents, and

Communities undertakes a range of strategic
policy, programs and coordination projects
relating to children and families, youth,
seniors, women, carers and volunteering.
External stakeholders involved with these
projects were surveyed to identify whether
or not they were satisfied with the projects
and their perception of the projects’ impact.
This indicator was calculated by:

Ţ S FWJFXJOHUIFEBUBUPJEFOUJGZUIFQFSDFOUBHF
of satisfied respondents who perceived
the project had a positive impact.

Percentage of stakeholders who reported both satisfaction and positive impact
100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0

Note:

2007–08

2008–09

2009–10

2010–11

2011–12
(Actual)

2011–12
(Target)

88%

96%

95%

94%

96%

90%

Ţ U IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻSFTVMUXBTTJYQFSDFOUIJHIFS
than the target and two per cent higher
than last year

Ţ OVNCFSPGSFTQPOTFTXBTƽƼƿƼ
Ţ UPUBMTVSWFZSFTVMUTIBWFBǂƾQFSDFOU
confidence interval of +/– 0.90 per cent.
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5.3.2 Indicators of efficiency
Communities’ efficiency indicators mostly
relate to unit costs of its activities. Much of
the department’s work cannot be distilled into
equivalent units of output. Therefore, average
costs of projects and services should be treated
as broadly indicative of performance.
In the 2011–12 Budget Statements, the service
structure of Communities was changed from
four services to the three reported here.
According to the old service structure reported
prior to the 2011–12 Budget Statements, service
1 and service 2 were merged and services 3 and 4
were unchanged. Additionally, there were some
changes to the composition and calculation of
efficiency indicators.
Specifically, according to the structure and
labelling used in this report, the following key
performance indicators (KPI) were changed:
KPI 1.1 average cost per child and family service;
KPI 1.2 average cost per licenced child care
service; KPI 2.1 average cost per strategic policy/
coordination project for children and families;
KPI 2.3 average cost per strategic policy/
coordination project for seniors; and the newly
created KPI 2.4 average cost per strategic policy/
coordination project for carers. Results from
2010–11 have been recast from prior reports to
the new reporting methods.

Service 1
Child and family services
The regulation and quality assurance of early
education and care services and the provision of
information, services and programs to support
children, parents, families and communities.
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KPI 1.1 Average cost per service
Communities provides and funds a number of types of service to support children and families. These
include: Parenting services; Children’s Services Officers; Youth Development Officers; Aboriginal Early
Years services; Family Centres; Family and Community Support; Sector Support; and Rural childcare.

Total cost, number of service providers, and average cost per service
$150 000

Average cost per service

$120 000
$90 000
$60 000
$30 000
$0

Total cost (’000)
Number of service providers
Average cost per service
Variation
Total cost
Number of service providers
Average cost per service
Note:

2010–11

2011–12
(Actual)

2011–12
(Target)

$26 250
202
$129 951

$29 929
201
$148 901

$30 435
214
$142 220

From 2011–12
(Target)

From 2010–11
(Actual)

–2%
–6%
5%

14%
0%
15%

Ţ 5
 IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻBWFSBHFDPTUQFSDIJMEBOEGBNJMZTFSWJDFBDUVBMXBTƺƾQFSDFOUNPSFUIBO
the actual for 2010–11 reflecting an increase in funding to the community sector.
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KPI 1.2 Average cost per licensed service
As at 30 June 2012, there were 927 licensed child care services in Western Australia1, consisting of
593 child care centres, 311 outside school hours care centres and 23 family day care schemes covering
846 family day care centres. Combined, these services offered 51 727 child care places throughout the
state at any one time.

Total cost, number of licensed services, and average cost per licensed service
$10 000

Average cost per licensed service

$8 000
$6 000
$4 000
$2 000
$0

Total cost (’000)
Number of licensed services
Average cost per licensed service
Variation
Total cost
Number of licensed services
Average cost per licensed service

1

2010–11

2011–12
(Actual)

2011–12
(Target)

$5 788
828
$6 991

$6 398
927
$6 902

$6 376
900
$7 085

From 2011–12
(Target)

From 2010–11
(Actual)

0%
3%
–3%

11%
12%
–1%

Note: A new counting rule that is consistent with national reporting was introduced in the 2011–12 Budget, in which Family
Day Care Schemes are counted instead of individual Family Day Care operators.

5.0 Disclosures and legal compliance

Service 2
Strategic policy and coordination
Development, planning and provision of
information, programs and support for seniors,
volunteers, women, carers and youth to build
and promote strong and vibrant communities,
along with program development to support
services for children and families.

113
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KPI 2.1 Average cost per strategic policy/coordination project for children and families
Communities supports the development and implementation of the across-government Early
Childhood Agenda, in particular the Council of Australian Governments’ National Reform Agenda for
Early Childhood Education and Care. It also promotes children’s early learning and development through
a range of projects designed to support parents and to deliver quality children’s services.

Total cost, number of projects and average cost per strategic policy/coordination project for
children and families
$150 000

Average cost per children and families project

$120 000
$90 000
$60 000
$30 000
$0

Total cost (’000)
Number of projects
Average cost per children and families project
Variation
Total cost
Number of projects
Average cost per children and families project
Note:

2010–11

2011–12
(Actual)

2011–12
(Target)

$2 180
25
$87 209

$3 292
30
$109 762

$940
17
$55 339

From 2011–12
(Target)

From 2010–11
(Actual)

250%
76%
98%

51%
20%
26%

Ţ 5
 IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻBWFSBHFDPTUQFSQSPKFDUGPSDIJMESFOBOEGBNJMJFTBDUVBMXBTǂǁQFSDFOUNPSF
than the target as the target did not include subsequent funding made available as part of
the Council of Australian Governments’ Early Childhood agenda.
Ţ 5IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻBWFSBHFDPTUQFSQSPKFDUGPSDIJMESFOBOEGBNJMJFTBDUVBMXBTƻƿQFSDFOUNPSF
than the actual for 2010–11 due to expenditure on Council of Australian Governments’
Early Childhood reform and an increase in funding to community organisations.
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KPI 2.2 Average cost per strategic policy/coordination project for youth
Communities seeks to empower young people to facilitate their involvement at all levels in the
community. The department coordinates policy development across government to improve outcomes
for young people. This includes strategic policy advice, research and information dissemination. It
also includes running youth recognition and award activities and recurrent and grant funding to the
community sector to deliver youth development programs.

Total cost, number of projects, and average cost per project for youth
$200 000

Average cost per youth project

$160 000
$120 000
$80 000
$40 000
$0

Total cost (’000)
Number of projects
Average cost per youth project
Variation
Total cost
Number of projects
Average cost per youth project
Note:

2010–11

2011–12
(Actual)

2011–12
(Target)

$5 840
39
$149 754

$7 292
38
$191 915

$6 470
39
$165 897

From 2011–12
(Target)

From 2010–11
(Actual)

13%
–3%
16%

25%
–3%
28%

Ţ 5
 IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻBWFSBHFDPTUQFSQSPKFDUBDUVBMXBTƺƿQFSDFOUNPSFUIBOUBSHFUEVFUPBO
increase in funding to Cadets WA and youth initiatives.
Ţ 5IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻBWFSBHFDPTUQFSQSPKFDUGPSZPVUIBDUVBMXBTƻǁQFSDFOUNPSFUIBOUIF
actual for 2010–11 reflecting an increase in funding to the community sector and the
development of youth mentoring initiatives.
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KPI 2.3 Average cost per strategic policy/coordination project for seniors
Communities promotes positive ageing and encourages across-government planning for the ageing
population. It provides funds for community organisations to enhance services for seniors. It also seeks
to improve the community participation of older people and to improve community attitudes towards
older people.

Total cost, number of projects and average cost per strategic policy/coordination project for seniors
$100 000

Average cost per seniors project

$80 000
$60 000
$40 000
$20 000
$0

Total cost (’000)
Number of projects
Average cost per seniors project
Variation
Total cost
Number of projects
Average cost per seniors project
Note:

2010–11

2011–12
(Actual)

2011–12
(Target)

$1 474
26
$56 697

$2 095
28
$74 836

$1 902
25
$76 092

From 2011–12
(Target)

From 2010–11
(Actual)

10%
12%
–2%

42%
8%
32%

Ţ 5
 IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻBWFSBHFDPTUQFSQSPKFDUGPSTFOJPSTBDUVBMXBTƼƻQFSDFOUNPSFUIBOUIF
actual for 2010–11 reflecting an increase in funding to the community sector.
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KPI 2.4 Average cost per strategic policy/coordination project for carers
Caring for people with disabilities, chronic illness or the frail aged is one of the most significant
forms of unpaid work in the community. Communities funds carers counselling and support
services, facilitates programs for young carers, supports the Carers Advisory Council, monitors
legislation and national reform agendas, and raises awareness of carers with resource development
and recognition activities.

Total cost, number of carers projects, and average administrative cost per carers project
$160 000

Average cost per carers project

$120 000
$80 000
$40 000
$0

Total cost (’000)
Number of Seniors Card holders
Average cost per carers project
Variation
Total cost
Number of Seniors Card holders
Average cost per carers project
Note:

2010–11

2011–12
(Actual)

2011–12
(Target)

$1 195
11
$108 682

$1 301
10
$130 102

$1 349
10
$134 970

From 2011–12
(Target)

From 2010–11
(Actual)

–4%
0%
–4%

9%
–9%
20%

Ţ 5
 IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻBWFSBHFDPTUQFSDBSFSTQSPKFDUXBTƻƹQFSDFOUNPSFUIBOUIFBDUVBMGPS
2010–11 largely due to an increase in funding to the community sector.
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KPI 2.5 Average cost to administer a Seniors Card
The Seniors Card is used as a major tool to promote positive ageing. The financial benefits associated
with the Seniors Card encourage seniors to participate actively in the community. As at 30 June 2012,
there were 332 204 WA Seniors Card holders representing approximately 87 per cent of eligible seniors.

Total cost, number of Seniors Card holders and average administrative cost per Seniors Card
Average administrative cost per Seniors Card

$5
$4
$3
$2
$1
$0

Total cost (‘000)
Number of Seniors Card holders
Average administrative cost per Seniors Card
Variation
Total cost
Number of Seniors Card holders
Average administrative cost per Seniors Card
Note:

2010–11

2011–12
(Actual)

2011–12
(Target)

$737
313 603
$2.35

$1 132
332 204
$3.41

$1 361
324 253
$4.20

From 2011–12
(Target)

From 2010–11
(Actual)

–17%
2%
–19%

54%
6%
45%

Ţ 5
 IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻBWFSBHFDPTUQFS4FOJPST$BSEBDUVBMXBTƺǂQFSDFOUMPXFSUIBOUIFUBSHFU
due to a change in the way accommodation costs were counted
Ţ 5IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻBWFSBHFDPTUQFS4FOJPST$BSEXBTƽƾQFSDFOUNPSFUIBOUIFBDUVBMGPS
2010–11 due to the biennial production of the Seniors Discount Directory.
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KPI 2.6 Average cost to administer each Seniors Cost of Living Rebate processed
Communities commenced making the Seniors Cost of Living Rebate payments in 2008–09. All Seniors
Card holders are eligible to apply for the rebate.

Total cost, number of rebates paid and average cost to administer each Seniors Cost of
Living Rebate processed
Average cost per
Cost of Living Rebate processed

$7
$6
$5
$4
$3
$2
$1
$0

Total cost (‘000)
Number of Seniors Card holders
Average administrative cost per Seniors Card
Variation
Total cost
Number of Seniors Cost of Living Rebates processed
Average cost per Cost of Living Rebate processed
Note:

2010–11

2011–12
(Actual)

2011–12
(Target)

$1 268
245 374
$5.17

$1 720
262 547
$6.55

$1 277
255 782
$5.00

From 2011–12
(Target)

From 2010–11
(Actual)

35%
3%
31%

36%
7%
27%

Ţ 5
 IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻBWFSBHFDPTUUPBENJOJTUFSFBDISFCBUFQSPDFTTFEXBTƼƺQFSDFOUNPSFUIBO
the target largely due to increased communication costs associated with contacting card
holders about the rebate.
Ţ 5IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻBWFSBHFDPTUUPBENJOJTUFSFBDISFCBUFQSPDFTTFEXBTƻǀQFSDFOUNPSFUIBO
the previous year due to the commencement of development of a new database.
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KPI 2.7 Average cost per strategic/policy coordination project for volunteers
Communities works to develop and implement government policy for volunteering, to develop
programs and initiatives that support and extend volunteering now and into the future, and to
establish mechanisms of communication within the public sector and the wider community to develop
partnerships through consultation. The department also provides funding to the community sector for
a range of volunteer support activities.

Total cost, number of projects, and average cost per strategic policy/coordination project for volunteers
Average cost per volunteers project

$70 000
$60 000
$50 000
$40 000
$30 000
$20 000
$10 000
$0

Total cost (‘000)
Number of projects
Average cost per volunteers project
Variation
Total cost
Number of projects
Average cost per volunteers project
Note:

2010–11

2011–12
(Actual)

2011–12
(Target)

$1 652
31
$53 303

$1 983
33
$60 110

$1 829
29
$63 098

From 2011–12
(Target)

From 2010–11
(Actual)

8%
14%
–5%

20%
6%
13%

Ţ 5
 IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻBWFSBHFDPTUQFSWPMVOUFFSTQSPKFDUXBTƺƼQFSDFOUNPSFUIBOUIFBDUVBMGPS
2010–11 largely due to an increase in funding to the community sector.
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KPI 2.8 Average cost per strategic policy/coordination project for women
Communities coordinates policy development across government to improve outcomes for women.
This includes research, analysis, information and advice on issues affecting women. A range of
information services is also provided to women in the community. The department provides grants to
the community sector to support strategic initiatives.

Total cost, number of projects and average cost per strategic policy/coordination project for women
$100 000

Average cost per women’s project

$80 000
$60 000
$40 000
$20 000
$0

Total cost (’000)
Number of projects
Average cost per women’s project
Variation
Total cost (‘000)
Number of projects
Average cost per women’s project
Note:

2010–11

2011–12
(Actual)

2011–12
(Target)

$1 253
22
$56 978

$1 490
22
$67 757

$1 603
24
$66 814

From 2011–12
(Target)

From 2010–11
(Actual)

–7%
–8%
1%

19%
0%
19%

Ţ 5
 IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻBWFSBHFDPTUQFSXPNFOśTQSPKFDUXBTƺǂQFSDFOUNPSFUIBOUIFBDUVBM
for 2010–11 largely due to the payment of more Women’s scholarships and increased
leadership initiatives for women.
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Service 3
Redress WA Scheme

KPI 3.1 Average administrative cost per claim
Redress WA aims to assist adults who, as
children, were abused and/or neglected in state
care in Western Australia. Redress WA worked
on four primary activities: to provide claimants
the opportunity to make a police referral; to
provide a personal apology from the Premier and
Minister for Community Services; to provide the
opportunity for support and counselling; and to
offer ex gratia payments ranging from $5 000 to
$45 000. A total of 5 917 confirmed claims were
received. These claims represent the total number
of claims administered by Redress WA over the
3 year duration. Administrative costs included:

Ţ PQFSBUJPOPGBOJOGPSNBUJPOMJOFGPSDMBJNBOUT
Ţ '
 VOEJOHUPDPNNVOJUZPSHBOJTBUJPOTUP
provide advice, counselling and support
with applications
Ţ BTTFTTNFOUPGDMBJNT
Ţ QPMJDFSFGFSSBMTXIFOSFRVFTUFECZDMBJNBOUT
Ţ QSPNPUJPOPGTDIFNF
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Total cost, number of active claims and average administrative cost per claim
Average cost per redress claim

$2 000
$1 600
$1 200
$800
$400
$0

Total cost (’000)
Number of claims actively worked on
/VNCFSPGDMBJNTQBJE

Average cost per redress claim
Variation
Total cost
Number of claims actively worked on
Average cost per redress claim
Note:

2009–10

2010–11

2011–12
(Actual)

2011–12
(Target)

$6 963
4 038
ƿƺƼ
$1 724

$8 986
5 849
ƼƼƹƼ
$1 536

$1 936
4 625
ƺƽƹǂ
$419

$959
5 921
ř
$162

From 2011–12
(Target)

From 2010–11
(Actual)

102%
–22%
158%

–78%
–21%
–73%

Ţ 5
 IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻBWFSBHFBENJOJTUSBUJWFDPTUQFSDMBJNBDUVBMXBTƺƾǁQFSDFOUNPSFUIBO
the target due to more payments falling within 2011–12 than was anticipated, requiring
more administrative support. Additionally, funding for counselling to claimants continued
as long as the redress applications process was ongoing to ensure an appropriate level of
assistance was available.
Ţ 5IFƻƹƺƺǋƺƻBWFSBHFBENJOJTUSBUJWFDPTUQFSDMBJNBDUVBMXBTǀƼQFSDFOUMFTTUIBOUIF
previous year due to the scheduled conclusion of Redress operations in November, 2011.
Ţ 5IFBWFSBHFDPTUJTDBMDVMBUFECZEJWJEJOHUIFUPUBMDPTUCZUIFOVNCFSPGDMBJNTBDUJWFMZ
worked on. This was to include the extensive work conducted by the Redress WA team
on those claims that progressed to payment and to provide an accurate picture of
administrative efficiency.
Ţ 5IFUPUBMOVNCFSPGDMBJNTQBJEFBDIZFBSJTBMTPSFQPSUFEGPSDMBSJŻDBUJPO
Ţ "MMDMBJNTXFSFSFDFJWFECZ3FESFTT8"JOJUTŻSTUZFBSPGPQFSBUJPOBOEBMMTVCTFRVFOU
administrative work has been conducted on the same group of claims.
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In addition to the annual administrative and support cost per active claim, the cumulative average
per confirmed claim is reported as a supplement. This is to show how Redress progressed toward the
overall average administrative cost per claim over the life of the project. The cumulative average was
calculated by adding the 2009–10, 2010–11 and 2011–12 administrative and support costs and dividing by
the total number of confirmed claims. The final figure for 2011–12 represents the actual administrative
and support cost per claim for the life of the project.

The cumulative average cost per confirmed claim
Cumulative average cost per confirmed claim

$3 500
$3 000
$2 500
$2 000
$1 500
$1 000
$500
$0

Cumulative average administration
and support cost per claim
Note:

2009–10

2010–11

2011–12
(Actual)

2011–12
(Forecast)

$1 177

$2 695

$3 024

$2 858

Ţ 5
 IFDPTUTGPSBDUVBMTBOEGPSFDBTUBSFJOFBDIDBTFEJWJEFECZUIFUPUBMOVNCFSPGDPOŻSNFE
claims received by Redress (5 917).

5.0 Disclosures and legal compliance

5.4 Ministerial directives
Treasurer’s Instruction 903(12) requires the
Department for Communities to disclose
information on any Ministerial directives relevant
to the setting of desired outcomes or operational
objectives, the achievement of desired outcomes
or operational objectives, investment activities
and financing activities. No such directives were
issued by the Minister with portfolio responsibility
for the department during 2011–12.
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5.5 Other financial disclosures
5.5.1 Pricing policies of services provided
The Department for Communities operates
in an environment where the majority of its
revenue is not on a fee-for-service basis.
Where a fee is charged, it is reviewed annually
and the fee set in accordance with Costing
and Pricing Government Services Guidelines
published by the Department of Treasury.

The key fees the department charges are:
Ţ B EWFSUJTJOHJOUIFCJFOOJBMMZQSPEVDFE
Seniors Card Discount Directory
Ţ GSFFEPNPGJOGPSNBUJPOSFRVFTUT
Ţ RVBMJŻDBUJPOBTTFTTNFOUTGPSPWFSTFBT
and interstate individuals choosing to
work in the WA child care sector.

5.5.2 Capital works
The Department for Communities’ asset
portfolio comprises a significant number of
building assets including:

$2 060 000 on upgrading kitchens and backlog
maintenance on its 70 centres, to ensure their
ongoing suitability for community purposes.

Ţ DIJMEDBSFDFOUSFT
Ţ  GBNJMZDFOUSFT OFJHICPVSIPPEDPNNVOJUZ
centres and other centres.

Major works were undertaken at the following
centres:

The department owns and leases out a
portfolio of family centres, community houses
and neighbourhood community centres as
operational assets. The department also owns
and leases out child care centre assets that are
operated by not-for-profit organisations.
These assets comprise a significant portion of
Communities’ asset base and are managed with
support and advice provided by the Department
of Finance, Building Management and Works.
Whilst the department did not receive any
capital works funding in 2011–12, it expended

Ţ 8
 JSSB#JSSB$IJME$BSF$FOUSF (PTOFMMT Ř
kitchen upgrade
Ţ 5PNBUP-BLF$IJME$BSF$FOUSF ,FXEBMF Ř
kitchen upgrade
Ţ .FFMB$IJME$BSF$FOUSF .U-BXMFZ ŘLJUDIFO
upgrade
Ţ #JMMBCPOH$IJME$BSF$FOUSF 7JDUPSJB1BSL Ř
kitchen upgrade
Ţ .VODILJO.BOPS$IJME$BSF$FOUSF #VOCVSZ Ř
kitchen upgrade
Ţ 4VECVSZ)PVTF .JSSBCPPLB řSFQMBDFBJS
conditioners, supply turf to play area
Ţ (SFFOŻFME'BNJMZ$FOUSF .BOEVSBI ŘSFQMBDF
air conditioners, painting of interior.
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5.5.3 Act of grace payments
The department from time to time makes an act of grace payment on behalf of government.
One payment was made in 2011–12 totalling $3 500.

5.5.4 Employment and industrial relations
As at 30 June 2012, Communities employed a total of 269 permanent and fixed-term employees.
The average full-time equivalent (FTE) usage for the financial year 2011–12 was 222.20 FTE.

Location

Annual
average
FTE
2009–10

Annual
average
FTE
2010–11

Annual
average
FTE
2011–12

Number of staff as at 30 June 2012
Full-time
Part-time
Fixed Permanent Fixed Permanent

Total

Children and
Family Services

139.8

114.3

121.3

9

96

11

34

150

Community
Engagement

36.5

34.6

37.7

3

36

1

3

43

Corporate and
Business Support

25.1

22.4

22.4

3

20

2

3

28

Office of the
%JSFDUPS(FOFSBM

ƻƹ

Ƽƺ

ƾƽ

ƻ

ƽ

ř

ƺ

ǀ

Policy & Planning

30.5

22.8

27.8

10

15

6

6

37

Redress WA
4DIFNF

ƺƾƹ

Ƽǂƿ

ǀƿ

ř

ƻ

ƻ

ř

ƽ

Total number
of FTE/staff

248.9

236.8

222.2

27

173

22

47

269
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Equal employment opportunity
The Department for Communities actively
supports the government’s ongoing
commitment to developing an equitable
and diverse public sector workforce that is
representative of the Western Australian
community at all levels of employment and
enables employees to combine work and family
responsibilities. As per Part IX of the WA Equal
Opportunity Act 1984 the department shall strive
to incorporate a range of initiatives within its
Workforce and Diversity Plan framework and
provide the Public Sector Commission revisions
whenever the plan is updated or amended.

community. To this end, the Department for
Communities recognises that maintaining
a diverse workforce engenders favourable
perceptions within the community and
enhances our capacity to do business
within that community. Consequently,
we are committed to developing a workforce
that represents the diversity within our
community and continues to be responsive
to community needs. Correspondingly, the
Department for Communities does not
condone discrimination in any form, supporting
measures that address the disadvantages
faced by equal opportunity groups.

It is the department’s belief that an organisation
that reflects the diversity of the community
is well-suited to meeting the needs of that

Actual employee numbers in equal opportunity groups

Period

Total
workforce

30 June 2012
30 June 2011
30 June 2010

269
275
359

Women

Culturally
diverse

Indigenous
Australians

People with
disability

Young
people
(<25 Yrs)

240
260
299

24
25
31

20
17
29

11
10
11

8
7
17

Comparison of diversity group trends as a percentage of total employees

Period

Women
%

Culturally
diverse
%

Indigenous
Australians
%

People with
disability
%

Young
people
(<25 Yrs)
%

30 June 2012
30 June 2011
30 June 2010

89.2
94.5
90.3

8.9
9.1
8.6

7.4
6.2
8.3

4.1
3.6
3.1

2.9
2.5
4.8
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Women in management tiers two and three
Female numbers

Female percentage

Year

Tier 2

Tier 3

Tier 2 & 3
combined

30 June 2012
30 June 2011
30 June 2010

4
5
4

6
4
9

10
9
13

Tier 2
%

Tier 3
%

Tier 2 & 3
combined
%

80.0
83.0
80.0

42.8
44.0
69.0

52.6
60.0
65.0

Age profile of Communities’ staff
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%
Total

<25
7

25–34
61

35–44
57

45–54
77

55–59
37

60–64
23

65+
7
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5.6 Governance disclosures
Contracts with senior officers
At the date of reporting, no senior officers, or
firms of which senior officers are members,
or entities in which senior officers have
substantial interests, had any interests
in existing or proposed contracts with the
Department for Communities other than
normal contracts of employment of service.
Internal audit and performance review
Internal Audit and Performance Review is an
appraisal activity designed to review appropriate
operations as a service to management. It
functions by measuring and evaluating the
effectiveness of accountability measures.
The role of the Internal Audit and Performance
Review is to provide assurance to the Director
General and the Corporate Executive team of
Communities as to:
Ţ U IFFƋFDUJWFOFTTPGQPMJDJFTBOEQSPDFEVSFT
in achieving the department’s objectives
Ţ D PNQMJBODFXJUIMFHJTMBUJPO QPMJDJFTBOE
established procedures; the reliability
of financial and other management
information systems

Ţ U IFBEFRVBDZBOEFƋFDUJWFOFTTPGJOUFSOBM
control systems in promoting efficiency,
accuracy, effectiveness and reliability and
Ţ QSPWJEFBTTJTUBODFJOJEFOUJGZJOHTUSBUFHJDSJTLT
The Internal Audit and Performance Review
Branch of the Department for Child Protection
continues to provide this service to Communities
as part of the service level agreement.
A comprehensive program of internal audit
reviews was undertaken during 2011–12.
The areas and systems subject to audit were
identified via a formal risk assessment that
included management requirements and
generally accepted governance approaches.
The audits for 2011–12 included:
Ţ DPNQMJBODFXJUIIVNBOSFTPVSDFTTUBOEBSET
Ţ GPMMPXVQBVEJUT
Ţ QFSTPOOFMBOEQBZSPMM
Ţ OPOHPWFSONFOUGVOEJOH
Ţ VTBHFPGHPWFSONFOUQVSDIBTJOHDBSET
Ţ S FWJFXPGJTTVFTSBJTFECZUIF0ƌDFPGUIF
Auditor General in their annual audit.
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5.7 Other legal requirements
5.7.1 Advertising
In accordance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907 Communities spent $363 614 on advertising,
promotional and market research activities during 2011–12.
Category

Organisation

Total ($)

Advertising agencies
Total
Media advertising organisations

Nil
Adcorp Australia Ltd
Mitchell and Partners Australia Pty Ltd
Austereo
Optimum Media Decision
X-Press Magazine

157 982
61 434
7 288
4 679
2 966
234 349

Total
Polling organisations
Total
Direct mail organisations

Nil
Zipform
Salmat Business Force

84 019

Total
Market research organisations
Total

Grand total

51 966
32 053

Media Monitors

11 999
11 999

330 367
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5.7.2 Compliance with public sector standards and ethical codes
In accordance with section 31(1) of the Public Sector Management Act 1994 Communities is required to
comment on the extent to which it has complied with public sector standards, codes of ethics and any
other relevant code of conduct.
These policies and procedures are contained in an Administration Manual, accessible by all employees
of Communities through the department’s intranet.
The department advises the following compliance for 2011–12:
Compliance category

Result

Public Sector Standards in Human Resource Management

No breaches lodged:
No breaches withdrawn:
No breaches upheld:

1
1
0

WA Code of Ethics

No reports of non-compliance:

0

Misconduct under the disciplinary provisions of the
Public Sector Management Act 1994

One case of breach of discipline
was finalised in 2011–12

A review is presently underway to ensure
that policies and procedures accurately reflect
compliance requirements and are more
accessible as part of the planned organisational
website enhancements. Corrective action is
also underway to better track activity to ensure
processes are controlled and conducted in a
timely and transparent manner.
The department’s job description forms will
be reviewed on an ongoing basis, primarily
when positions are advertised and for all
current managerial roles, to ensure duties and
responsibilities associated with compliance with
established ethical and public sector standards
are reflected within the positions.

Accountable and Ethical Decision Making
workshops were delivered to staff in the second
half of 2011–12. The department is committed
to ongoing training to all staff, including
regional staff, to apply and maintain the highest
standards of ethical conduct across the agency.
Training for regional staff will occur in the next
financial year.
Accountable and Ethical Decision Making staff
training attendance 2011–12
Department for Communities
Children and Family Services
Community Engagement
Corporate and Business Support
Office of the Director General
Policy and Planning

46.8%
38.7%
37.2%
67.9%
28.6%
78.4%
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5.7.3 Disability Access and Inclusion Plan
The Department for Communities ensures
that people with disabilities, their families
and carers have equal opportunity to access
the department’s programs and services.
During 2011–12 the department undertook a
review of its Disability Access and Inclusion
Plan 2008–12 and drafted a new five year plan
to guide its further improvement to access
and inclusion. The new Disability Access and
Inclusion Plan has been endorsed by the
department’s corporate executive and has been
provided to the Disability Services Commission.
The 2011–12 reporting year is the first year
that all community partners funded by the
department were asked to report on the
department’s Disability Access and Inclusion
Plan. From 1 July 2012 this will be embedded
in their contracts as part of the procurement
process. To facilitate the reporting process,
an online measurement tool was developed

to capture the community partners data
as part of their compliance under their
funding agreements.
All departmental contract managers are actively
promoting the Disability Access and Inclusion
Plan when meeting with service providers to
ensure they are aware of the requirements.
The department worked in close consultation
with the Disability Services Commission to
develop the ‘Age-Friendly Homes Kit’ which
is based on universal design principles and has
links with the Commission’s Liveable Homes
project. The resource encourages people to
include accessible features in their homes.
The department contributed funding to
Padbury Child Care Centre to upgrade the
kitchen and the accessible toilet for people
with a disability to bring the centre up to
compliance with current regulations.
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5.7.4 Public Interest Disclosure
The Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 came
into effect on 1 July 2003 thereby requiring the
Department for Communities to:
Ţ GBDJMJUBUFUIFEJTDMPTVSFPGQVCMJDJOUFSFTU
Ţ Q
 SPWJEFQSPUFDUJPOGPSUIPTFXIPNBLF
disclosures

In accordance with the Act, the department has
appointed a Public Interest Disclosure Officer
and is currently reviewing internal policies and
procedures related to its obligations.
No public interest disclosures were received in
the department during 2011–12.

Ţ Q
 SPWJEFQSPUFDUJPOGPSUIPTFXIPBSFUIF
subject of a disclosure.

5.7.5 Record keeping plans
Section 19 of the State Records Act 2000
requires government agencies to have a record
keeping plan. The State Records Commission
approved Communities’ record keeping plan
in March 2008 and noted that the plan as
tendered demonstrated progress towards better
practice in record keeping. The Commission also
acknowledged that the plan indicated a strong
commitment to addressing a range of issues
within specific timeframes.

The department uses ‘Objective’ to manage its
physical records and training is available for staff
on request.
At the request of the Commission, the
department completed a review of its record
keeping plan in December 2011 and submitted it
to the State Records Office for presentation to
the Commission in August 2012.

5.0 Disclosures and legal compliance

5.7.6 Freedom of Information
The department received 10 Freedom of
Information requests in the year 2011–12.
The table below outlines the department’s
response time, number of applications,
exemptions claimed and review requests
received in the year 2011–12.
Number of applications received
10
Processed within 45-day time limit
5
Extended by agreement
2
Withdrawn or resolved informally
3
Exemptions claimed for personal information 8
Exemptions claimed for commercial or
business information
1
Exemptions claimed for deliberative processes 1
Exemptions claimed for internal review
0
Exemptions claimed for external review
0
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5.8 Government policy requirements
5.8.1 Substantive equality
The Department for Communities is currently
negotiating a new project with the Equal
Opportunity Commission to progress its
‘Policy Framework for Substantive Equality’.
The department has met some, but not all
of the objectives of level one, Substantive
Equality Framework during 2010–11. The
department is working to embed the
objectives of the Framework as an integral
way of working, within available resources.

The Language Services Policy 2010 was updated
during 2011–12, incorporating feedback from the
Office of Multicultural Interests to ensure it is
reflective of the Western Australian Language
Services Policy 2008.

5.8.2 Reconciliation Action Plan
The Department for Communities is currently
developing a Reconciliation Action Plan 2012–15.
The Reconciliation Action Plan was developed
with input from the Reconciliation Action Plan
working group, made up of Aboriginal and
other staff from all directorates of the
department. Additionally, a reference group
of Aboriginal staff within the department was
established to assist the working group and
provide advice on positive stories, Aboriginal
celebrations and history.

This is the department’s first Reconciliation
Action Plan and will provide the framework for
future plans.
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5.8.3 Occupational safety, health and injury management
The Department for Communities is committed
to providing a safe and healthy work environment
for all its employees. Maintaining safety and
health standards for all operations and people
is a key responsibility for all managers.
The Department for Child Protection and the
Department for Communities have a joint
Occupational Safety and Health Committee
made up of ten occupational safety and health
members, six management representatives and
two consultants. The committee meets regularly
to discuss occupational safety and health issues,
as well as ensuring health and safety compliance
is being met.
Occupational safety and health compliance is
carried out in liaison with the Department for
Child Protection, which monitors and maintains
inspection records. Occupational safety and
health inspections and compliance form part of
the internal audit and review schedule performed
by the Department for Child Protection on behalf
of Communities.
The ongoing inspection of offices has been a
priority with numerous visits and inspections
carried out. There has also been a concerted
effort to raise the occupational safety and health
profile within the department and to promote
safe working habits.

Allied with the joint committee and in
recognition of the importance of occupational
health and safety and recent changes in
legislation, Communities will be developing
its own committee to respond to localised
organisation issues and needs. The occupational
safety and health representatives will be readily
available to be utilised by both management and
employees for the assessment of and reporting
on the percentage of localised agreed actions
being completed.
Compliance with injury management
requirements of the Workers Compensation
and Injury Management Act 1981(WA) and
the development of return to work plans will
continue to be achieved through ongoing support
from the Department for Child Protection as
part of an interagency Service Level Agreement
with management oversight and endorsement
provided by the Department for Communities.
Activities in the occupational safety and health
space include training on workplace hazard
identification, information sessions to team
leaders on process for workers’ compensation and
occupational safety and health inductions/tours
of the new office accommodation at 140 William
Street, Perth, for all staff. Occupational safety
and health activities will also include training
staff in first aid and usage of defibrillators.
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Workers compensation key performance indicators/targets

Period

Number of
fatalities

Number of
lost time injury
or disease

2011–12
2010–11

0
0

2
2

Number of
severe claims

Lost time injury
severity rate

1
0

50.0
0.0

1

100.0

No lost time injury claims returned for 2009–10
2008–09

0

1

Communities and corporate service delivery
Communities recently implemented a new
Service Level Agreement with the Department
for Child Protection to ensure the ongoing
delivery of specific and efficient corporate
services. This agreement reinforces the ongoing
support and cooperation between the agencies
in order to achieve the government’s objectives
and the service needs of the department.
With the roll in to the Office of Shared Services
no longer a requirement, both the Finance and
Human Resource Services teams have redirected
the focus of corporate service delivery by way of
in-house and via the Service Level Agreement.
Finance
The finance team has continued to implement
strategic financial management for the
department and specifically at directorate level.
The team has had a busy year working with
internal audit in order to meet the requirements
of the department and the Office of the Auditor
General, as well as meeting the requirement of
the Department of Treasury. Significant data
cleansing has been undertaken.

With the implementation of the purchasing
card now embedded in the operations of the
department, there is evidence of efficiencies
and controls over expenditure and savings in
procurement. Ongoing training and information
sessions will be delivered to all staff to be aware
of the Buying Behaviour reports and how each can
achieve efficiencies. This is particularly important
given the increase in numbers of purchasing cards.
In September 2011 the department’s travel
account was split from the Department for
Child Protection’s central travel account.
The most significant part of this change was
the ability to pay for flights directly by purchase
card. Following on from this change, Finance
liaised with the department’s travel provider,
Carlson Wagonlit, to provide a number of
training sessions to staff to provide step by
step training in using the online booking tool.
Human resources
The human resources team has been
undertaking significant data cleansing to provide
improved and quality reports to the executive
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team on the establishment of the department.
The team has worked collaboratively with
executive directors, managers, finance team and
the business consultants to ensure the data is
accurate and monitored.
The introduction of Staff Circulars from the
Director General is providing valuable information
and direction for Communities staff.
An initiative during the year was the
development and establishment of a Mentoring
Program. Communities, in conjunction with eight
other public sector agencies, has developed
and implemented an inter-agency mentoring
program totalling 90 staff members, to
provide staff with personal and professional
career development opportunities, access to
knowledge and experience, as well as networking
opportunities, with respective mentors and
mentees participating in an initial orientation
session, now meeting regularly.
An effective mentoring program is an
established practice to actively motivate and
engage staff, increasing their productivity and
commitment to the organisation.
Corporate information
Significant planning and development in the
information management space is currently
being undertaken. The Information Management
Committee has been active in supporting a
number of major projects and policies that are
planned for completion next year.
A number of areas have been identified for
improvement relating to record management
including implementation of an electronic
record management system, revision of records
management procedures, identification of vital
records and introduction of regular staff training
in record keeping awareness.

Internal training was provided on the use of new
technology in the new office environment and
included Microsoft programs and smart board
technology.
Assets and office facilities
The Department for Communities has seen
significant moves over the past 12 months with
the Assets and Office Facilities team overseeing
and coordinating office movements.
In September 2011, the department relocated
from Dumas House, West Perth to Gordon
Stephenson House, 140 William Street
Perth. The acquisition of the Ground Floor,
111 Wellington Street, East Perth was also
necessary to accommodate the additional
staff required for the new Education & Care
Regulatory Unit (formerly the Child Care
Licencing and Standards Unit).
Other moves undertaken have seen a number
of co-locations for purposes of efficiencies
and include:
Ţ $
 IJMESFOśT4FSWJDFT0ƌDFSNPWFEGSPN
Fremantle (Department for Child Protection)
to Kulungah Myah Family Centre
Ţ $
 IJMESFOśT4FSWJDFT0ƌDFSBOE1BSFOUJOH
WA staff, Rockingham moved from Port
Kennedy Family Centre (Department for Child
Protection) to Warnbro Family Centre
Ţ "
 CPSJHJOBM&BSMZ:FBSTTUBƋNPWFEGSPN4PVUI
Lakes Family Centre to be co-located with
Meerilinga staff at Winterfold Road Coolbellup
Ţ $
 IJMESFOśT4FSWJDFT0ƌDFS 1BSFOUJOH0ƌDFS
and Aboriginal Early Years staff are all now
co-located at the JD Hardie Centre in South
Hedland, having moved from Department for
Child Protection premises.
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Communities and wellbeing
Employee assistance program
The department actively promotes the use of
the Employee Assistance Program, a confidential
counselling service available to employees and
their immediate family to help deal with work
and personal problems that might adversely
impact an employee’s work performance,
health, and wellbeing.
With 24-hour, state-wide access, it is a vital
component of the health and safety service
to all employees in all locations, helping to
promote a healthy workplace, and reducing
work stress that can lead to stress-related
workers compensation claims.
Wellness Program for staff
The department is further developing
the Wellness Program to now include flu

vaccinations, healthy heart checks and dance
classes. In addition to this, staff have the
opportunity to attend, with other agencies
co-located at 140 William Street: yoga, pilates,
meditation and cardio classes as well as
participating in walk challenges.
The Director General signed a gold pledge
on 8 July 2011 as part of the One Life Suicide
Prevention Strategy, which committed the
Department for Communities to training 5–10
per cent of the workforce in mental health
wellbeing and suicide prevention. Since then
almost 10 per cent of Communities’ workforce
have undertaken such training. Communities
has also committed to provide in-kind corporate
sponsorship including access to venue hire, pro
bono staff contributions to local community
action plans and networking opportunities to
support suicide prevention initiatives.
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Communities and training and development
The department continues to support staff
in training and development relevant to
the business and roles. The department
promotes staff development that is identified
through ‘Supporting Staff’, the department’s
performance management tool, and conferences
and workshops.
The following training was specific to meet the
requirements for the new Education and Care
Regulatory Unit to commence July 2012:
Ţ
Ţ
Ţ
Ţ
Ţ
Ţ

UIFOFXSFHVMBUPSZFOWJSPONFOU
"VUIPSJTFE0ƌDFSNPEVMFT QBSUTBOE
"VTUSBMJBO/BUJPOBM2VBMJUZ"HFOEB*54ZTUFN
JOUFSOBM/BUJPOBM2VBMJUZ'SBNFXPSLUSBJOJOH
NJEEMFZFBSTTFNJOBST
$FSUJŻDBUF*7JO4UBUVUPSZ(PWFSONFOU
Compliance.

Senior management training:
Ţ "/;40(TFTTJPOTBOETFNJOBST
Ţ 1
 VCMJD4FDUPS.BOBHFNFOU1SPHSBNřUXP
employees have been sponsored to undertake
this program
Ţ &
 RVBM0QQPSUVOJUZ-BXBOE(SJFWBODF
.BOBHFNFOUGPS.BOBHFSTřUIF&RVBM
Opportunity Commission facilitated a
number of workshops for executive members
and the leadership team. They outlined to
management the importance of implementing
organisational policies, modelling appropriate
behaviour and monitoring the workplace.

Staff training:
Ţ "
 DDPVOUBCMFBOE&UIJDBM%FDJTJPO.BLJOH
– workshops were conducted by the Public
Sector Commission with 58 per cent of staff
attending in 2011–12 with regional staff invited
to attend regional workshops
Ţ &
 RVBMPQQPSUVOJUZřXPSLTIPQTGPSTUBƋ
were facilitated by the Equal Opportunity
Commission with plans for further to be
delivered to all metropolitan and regional staff
Ţ 8SJUJOHGPSHPWFSONFOU
Ţ #
 *1&34DMBTTJŻDBUJPOXPSLTIPQGPSIVNBO
SFTPVSDFPƌDFSTřEFMJWFSFECZUIF1VCMJD
Sector Commission.
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6.1 Funding to organisations
Organisation name
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38

1st Wembley Downs Scout Group – WA Branch
Aboriginal Alcohol & Drug Service (A.A.D.S) (Inc)
Advocacy South West Inc
Advocare Incorporated
Albany & Regional Volunteer Service (Inc)
Albany Worklink
Albany Youth Support Association
Angelhands Inc.
Anglicare WA Inc
Arafmi Mental Health Carers and Friends
Association (WA) Inc
Armadale Community Family Centre Inc
Armadale Youth Resources
Association for the Blind of WA
Association of Liberian Community of WA
Australia Day Council of Western Australia
Australian Asian Association of WA Inc
Australian Breastfeeding Association
Australian Federation of Business and
Professional Women WA
Australian Red Cross Society (WA Division)
Balga Detached Youth Work Project Inc
Barnardos Australia
Bayswater Family Centre Inc
Befriend Inc
Bencubbin Community Resource Centre
Bidyadanga Aboriginal Community La Grange Inc
Billy Dower Youth Centre – City of Mandurah
Binningup Playgroup and Occasional Care Inc
Blue Sky Community Group Inc
Blues at Bridgetown Inc
Boddington Community Resource Centre
Boogurlarri Community House Inc
Boystown Limited
Bremer Bay Community Resource Centre Inc
Bridgetown Community and Resource Centre
Bridgetown Family and Community Centre Incorporated
Bridging the Gap Inc
Bright Stars Family Day Care
Brightwater Care Group Inc

Recurrent
funding
$69 836
$33 865

$157 047
$146 046

$68 268
$4 236
$251 704
$46 545
$78 120
$22 887
$99 501
$148 000
$49 499
$20 344
$70 701

Grant
funding

Total
funding

$950

$950
$69 836
$3 500
$2 230
$33 865
$3 500
$1 000
$4 500
$325 685

$3 500
$2 230
$3 500
$1 000
$4 500
$168 638
$1 000
$1 000
$201 250
$3 000
$1 000
$5 000
$124 581
$15 000
$2 500
$1 502
$199 120
$1 000
$5 000
$10 000
$5 000
$5 000
$4 000
$1 897
$4 500
$10 000
$227 740

$1 000
$146 046
$1 000
$201 250
$3 000
$68 268
$1 000
$4 236
$5 000
$251 704
$124 581
$15 000
$46 545
$2 500
$1 502
$277 240
$1 000
$27 887
$99 501
$10 000
$5 000
$148 000
$49 499
$25 344
$4 000
$72 598
$4 500
$10 000
$227 740
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Organisation name
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80

Brockman House Inc
Brook View Family Centre Inc
Broome Community Information Resource Centre
and Learning Exchange
Brunswick Community Resource Centre
Bullsbrook Neighbourhood Centre Inc
Burdekin Youth in Action Inc
Busselton Dunsborough Environment Centre Inc
Busselton Family Centre Inc
Canning Agricultural Horticultural Recreational
Society Inc.
CanTeen – The Australian Organisation for
Young People Living with Cancer
Carers Association of WA
Carnamah Child Care Centre Inc
Carnarvon Family Support Service Inc
Centrecare Inc
Cerebral Palsy Association of WA Inc
Child Inclusive Learning and Development Australia Inc
Christian Outreach Centre
Christmas Island Neighbourhood Centre
Citizens Advice Bureau of Western Australia Inc
City of Albany
City of Armadale
City of Bayswater
City of Bayswater Child Care Association Inc
City of Belmont
City of Bunbury
City of Cockburn
City of Fremantle
City of Gosnells
City of Greater Geraldton
City of Joondalup
City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder
City of Mandurah
City of Manjimup
City of Melville
City of Nedlands
City of Perth Lions Club Inc.
City of Stirling
City of Subiaco
City of Swan
City of Wanneroo
CLAN Midland Incorporated
CLAN WA (Community Link and Network) Inc

Recurrent
funding

Grant
funding

$148 000
$46 545
$99 501
$28 403
$33 865
$46 545

$670 783
$20 344
$57 326
$244 391
$140 302
$132 760
$381 764
$29 448
$99 501
$312 356
$92 628
$100 191

$84 962
$29 448

$29 448
$83 491
$118 604
$770 173

Total
funding
$148 000
$46 545

$56 940
$500
$6 000
$6 000

$156 441
$500
$34 403
$6 000
$33 865
$46 545

$2 300

$2 300

$5 000
$195 000
$5 000

$5 000
$865 783
$25 344
$57 326
$244 391
$1 000
$205 302
$5 000
$182 760
$381 764
$1 000
$30 448
$9 600
$99 501
$2 000
$5 113
$314 656
$92 628
$1 000
$101 191
$3 500
$8 700
$14 800
$9 800
$87 462
$30 448
$800
$10 000
$1 000
$94 278
$83 491
$118 604
$770 173

$1 000
$65 000
$5 000
$50 000
$1 000
$1 000
$9 600
$2 000
$5 113
$2 300
$1 000
$1 000
$3 500
$8 700
$14 800
$9 800
$2 500
$1 000
$800
$10 000
$1 000
$64 830
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Organisation name
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125

Coastal Kids Care Inc.
Collie Family Centre Inc
Collie Police and Community Youth Centre
Communicare Inc
ConnectGroups – Support Groups Association WA Inc
Conscious Birth and Parenting Collective
Cornerstone Church
Council on the Ageing (WA) Inc
Country Music Club of Boyup Brook
Cunderdin Community Resource Centre
Curtin University, Public Health Advocacy Institute
DADAA Inc
Dalwallinu Community Resource Centre
Dardanup Bull and Barrel Festival Inc
Dardanup Community Centre Inc
Denmark Occasional Day Care Centre Inc
Disco Cantito Association Incorporated
Djarindjin Aboriginal Corporation Inc
Djarindjin Early Childhood Learning Centre
Duke of Edinburgh’s Award
Dungeon Youth Centre
Early Childhood Intervention Australia
East Victoria Park Family Centre Inc
Eastern Goldfields YMCA (Inc)
Eaton Combined Playgroup Inc
Edventures WA Inc.
Ellenbrook Cultural Foundation Inc
Enterprise Learning Projects
Erik Beltz
Escare Inc
Ewin Centre Children’s Services Inc.
Extra Edge Community Services Inc.
Fairbridge Western Australia Inc
Family Day Care WA Inc
Federation of WA Police and Community Youth Centres
Federation of Western Australian Bushwalkers Inc
Filipino Australian Club of Perth Inc.
Fluffy Ducklings Day Care Inc
Foodbank
Foothills Information & Referral Service Inc
Forest Lakes Thornlie Family Centre Inc
Frank Konecny Community Centre Inc
Fremantle Regional GP Network
Future Vision Inc
Garnduwa Amboorny Wirnan Aboriginal Corporation

Recurrent
funding

Grant
funding

Total
funding

$47 804

$10 000
$1 000
$800

$10 000
$48 804
$800
$155 130
$286 971
$5 000
$970
$30 000
$5 000
$800
$83 748
$100 000
$800
$2 500
$20 344
$30 844
$4 475
$97 107
$10 000
$1 000
$1 400
$1 100
$46 545
$32 999
$66 545
$5 000
$2 500
$65 000
$874
$158 187
$10 000
$2 500
$32 999
$100 000
$25 000
$630
$5 000
$25 344
$2 000 000
$42 877
$46 545
$117 246
$2 500
$1 000
$5 000

$155 130
$284 471

$20 344
$20 344
$92 107

$46 545
$32 999
$46 545

$147 187
$32 999

$2 500
$5 000
$970
$30 000
$5 000
$800
$83 748
$100 000
$800
$2 500
$10 500
$4 475
$5 000
$10 000
$1 000
$1 400
$1 100
$20 000
$5 000
$2 500
$65 000
$874
$11 000
$10 000
$2 500

$100 000
$25 000
$630
$5 000
$20 344
$5 000
$2 000 000
$42 877
$46 545
$117 246
$2 500
$1 000
$5 000
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Organisation name
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170

Gawooleng Yawoodeng Aboriginal Corporation
Generations Centre Inc
Geraldton Police and Community Youth Centre
Geraldton Regional Community Education Centre Inc
Gnowangerup Family Support Association (Inc.)
Golden Mile Community House Inc
Goldfields Child Care Centre Inc.
Good Samaritan Industries
Goomalling Community Resource Centre
Gowrie Community Services (WA) Incorporated
Granny Glasgow Association Inc.
Grandparents Rearing Grandchildren WA Inc
Great Southern GP Network – Amity Health
Greenfields Family Centre Inc
Greening Australia WA
Growing Towards Wellness
Guides Western Australia Inc
Harvey Community Resource Centre Inc
Harvey Health & Community Services Group Inc
Harvey Occasional Child Care Centre Inc
High Wycombe Out of School Care Centre Inc
Hills Community Support Group
Hopetoun Community Childcare Centre Inc.
Hudson Road Family Centre Inc
Investing in Our Youth Inc
Jarlmadangah Burru Aboriginal Corporation
Jerramungup Occasional Childcare Association Inc
Jobs South West
Joondalup Family Centre Inc
Joondalup Men’s Shed
Jungarni-Jutiya Indigenous Corporation
Jurien Bay Community Resource Centre Inc
Kalbarri Occasional Child Care Incorporated
Kalgoorlie Boulder Volunteer Centre Inc
Karalundi Aboriginal Education Community Inc
Karen Welfare Association of WA Inc
Karingal Neighbourhood Centre Inc
Karratha Family Centre Inc
Katanning Community Childcare Centre Inc
Kids Central Childcare
Kimberley Aboriginal Medical Services Council Inc
Kingfisher Park Family Centre Inc
Kojonup Occasional Care Centre Inc
Koorda Community Resource Centre
Kulungah Myah Family Centre Inc

Recurrent
funding
$40 243

$148 000

$194 237

$46 545
$284 621
$50 477
$30 517
$46 545
$46 545
$57 166
$31 280
$46 545

$20 344
$33 865
$99 501
$55 854
$53 404
$11 636
$50 861
$46 545

Grant
funding
$5 000
$1 000
$13 000
$10 000
$10 000
$120 000
$250
$10 000
$5 000
$1 000
$1 000
$197 616
$970
$15 000
$110 427
$10 000
$20 000
$37 887
$5 000
$5 000
$54 840
$85 700
$200 000
$1 000
$5 000
$1 000
$1 000
$5 000
$10 000
$3 500
$5 000
$2 840

Total
funding
$40 243
$5 000
$1 000
$13 000
$10 000
$148 000
$10 000
$120 000
$250
$194 237
$10 000
$5 000
$1 000
$46 545
$1 000
$197 616
$284 621
$970
$50 477
$45 517
$46 545
$110 427
$10 000
$66 545
$37 887
$62 166
$36 280
$54 840
$46 545
$85 700
$200 000
$1 000
$25 344
$33 865
$1 000
$1 000
$99 501
$55 854
$58 404
$10 000
$3 500
$11 636
$55 861
$2 840
$46 545
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Organisation name
171 Kununurra Neighbourhood House Inc
172 Kurungal Council Inc
173 Kush Centre for Music Culture and Community
Development Inc
174 Lake Grace Community Resource Centre Inc.
175 Langford Aboriginal Corporation
176 Leeuwin Ocean Adventure Foundation
177 Lingalonga Early Years Learning Centre Inc.
178 Linkwest Incorporated
179 Little Jitters Occasional Child Care Inc
180 Little Nuggets Early Learning Centre Inc.
181 Living Stone Foundation Inc
182 Local Drug Action Groups Inc
183 Local Information Network Karratha Inc
184 Manjimup Family Centre Inc
185 Manjimup Volunteer & Resource Centre Inc
186 Marangaroo Family Centre Inc
187 Meerilinga Young Children’s Services Inc
188 Melville Cares Inc
189 Mercy Community Services Incorporated
190 Merredin and Districts Childcare and Play School
191 Metropolitan Migrant Resource Centre Inc
192 Midwest Community Living Association Inc
193 Milligan: Community Learning and Resource Centre Inc
194 Mission Australia
195 Moora districts Child Care centre
196 Moorditch Gurlongga Association Inc
197 Mount Lawley Neighbourhood Learning Centre
198 Mum’s in Biz
199 Munchkin Manor Child Care Centre Incorporated
200 Mundaring Arts Centre
201 Nannup Community Resource Centre Inc
202 Nannup Garden Village Inc
203 Narembeen Numbats Occasional Child Care Assoc Inc
204 Narrogin Multifunctional Child Care Centre Mobile
205 Narrogin Regional Child Care Services Inc.
206 National Seniors Australia
207 New Norcia Aboriginal Corporation Inc
208 Newman Neighbourhood Centre Inc
209 Ngala Community Services
210 Ngala Family Services
211 Ngarliyarndu Bindirri Aboriginal Corporation
212 Ngunga Group Women’s Aboriginal Corporation
213 Nintirri Centre Inc
214 Northcliffe Family Centre Inc

Recurrent
funding
$99 622

$239 200
$226 759
$22 480
$251 364
$95 546
$148 000
$33 865
$46 545
$865 570
$132 988
$181 854
$148 000
$157 047

$33 865
$20 344

$111 110
$1 703 674
$321 201
$158 441
$85 567
$46 545

Grant
funding

Total
funding

$42 891

$99 622
$42 891

$5 000
$4 830
$2 000
$10 000
$147 922
$10 000
$5 000

$20 850
$600
$9 900
$60 250
$1 567
$3 915
$101 000
$10 000
$1 000
$2 690
$4 000
$5 000
$2 500
$15 000
$7 563
$10 000
$2 500
$1 000

$235 219
$58 940
$9 950

$5 000
$4 830
$2 000
$239 200
$10 000
$374 682
$22 480
$10 000
$251 364
$5 000
$95 546
$148 000
$33 865
$46 545
$886 420
$600
$132 988
$9 900
$242 104
$1 567
$151 915
$101 000
$10 000
$157 047
$1 000
$2 690
$4 000
$5 000
$33 865
$2 500
$35 344
$7 563
$10 000
$2 500
$1 000
$111 110
$1 703 674
$321 201
$235 219
$217 381
$85 567
$56 495
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Organisation name
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258

Northern Suburbs Community Legal Centre (Inc)
Northampton Child Care Association Inc.
Older Women’s Network (W.A.) Inc.
Palmerston Association Inc
Pandanus Park Aboriginal Corporation
Parents Without Partners (WA) Inc
Parkerville Children and Youth Care Inc
Partners of Veterans Association Inc.
Patricia Giles Centre Inc
Peel Volunteer Referral Agency Inc
Peel Youth Services
Perth and Districts Multiple Birth Association
Perth Basketball Association
Pingrup Community Resource Centre Inc.
Playgroup WA Inc
Propel Youth Arts Inc
Rainbow Coast Neighbourhood Centre Inc
RDA Brigadoon Centre
Regional Development Australia Wheatbelt Inc.
Relationships Australia
Roberta Jull Community Care Association Inc
Roberta Jull Family Day Care Association Inc
Roleystone Neighbourhood Family Centre Inc
Rostrata Family Centre Inc
Ruah Community Services
Russian Ethnic Community and Youth Development
Association “Rusichi” Inc.
Saints Care Limited
Salvation Army (WA) Property Trust
Sandalwood Family Centre Inc
Secret Harbour Residents Association (SHRA)
Seniors’ Recreation Council of Western Australia (Inc)
Serpentine Jarrahdale Shire
Shire of Augusta Margaret River
Shire of Boyup Brook
Shire of Capel
Shire of Carnarvon
Shire of Chittering
Shire of Collie
Shire of Corrigin
Shire of Dardanup
Shire of Denmark
Shire of Esperance
Shire of Katanning
Shire of Kojonup

Recurrent
funding

Grant
funding

Total
funding

$216 738

$100 000
$9 000
$4 600
$1 000
$5 000

$316 738
$9 000
$4 600
$1 000
$62 166
$71 582
$1 000
$5 000
$157 047
$33 865
$40 000
$500
$550
$3 268
$257 206
$75 000
$100 276
$1 000
$2 545
$4 000
$99 501
$31 729
$84 541
$46 545
$280 557

$57 166
$71 582
$157 047
$33 865

$187 206
$100 276

$99 501
$31 729
$84 541
$46 545

$15 515
$188 379
$46 545
$59 800

$29 448

$1 000
$5 000
$40 000
$500
$550
$3 268
$70 000
$75 000
$1 000
$2 545
$4 000

$280 557
$4 000

$4 500
$750
$1 000
$12 000
$1 000
$5 000
$2 000
$1 000
$1 000
$765
$12 000
$1 000
$1 000
$2 000
$5 000

$4 000
$15 515
$188 379
$46 545
$4 500
$60 550
$1 000
$12 000
$1 000
$5 000
$2 000
$1 000
$1 000
$765
$12 000
$1 000
$30 448
$2 000
$5 000
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Organisation name
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301

Shire of Kondinin
Shire of Kulin
Shire of Lake Grace
Shire of Leonora
Shire of Manjimup
Shire of Mount Magnet
Shire of Mt Marshall
Shire of Murray
Shire of Nannup
Shire of Narembeen
Shire of Pingelly
Shire of Plantagenet
Shire of Ravensthorpe
Shire of Shark Bay
Shire of Tammin
Shire of Toodyay
Shire of Trayning
Shire of Upper Gascoyne
Shire of Waroona
Shire of West Arthur
Shire of Wyndham East Kimberley
Shire of York
South City Church
South Lake Ottey Family and Neighbourhood Centre
Southside Christian Centre AOG Inc.
South West Counselling Inc.
South West Senior and Community Expo Inc
Southcare Inc
Southern Agcare Inc
Southern Communities Advocacy Legal and
Education Service Inc.
St Bartholomew’s House
Stirling City Rangers Hockey Club
Stride Foundation Limited
Sudanese Australian Youth Association in WA Inc
Sudbury Community House Association
The Boodie Rats (Mukinbudin Occasional Care) Inc
The Boy’s Brigade Western Australia
The Churches Commission on Education Incorporated
The Cub House
The Duke of Edinburgh’s Award (WA Division)
The Eastern Region Domestic Violence Services
Network Inc
The Esther Foundation
The Fluffy Ducklings Day Care Inc.

Recurrent
funding

$34 251

$146 046

$61 673
$66 217

$148 000
$20 344
$32 999
$41 249
$85 386

Grant
funding

Total
funding

$4 484
$10 000
$6 465
$10 000
$6 000
$1 000

$4 484
$10 000
$6 465
$10 000
$6 000
$1 000
$34 251
$4 500
$6 500
$4 965
$1 300
$2 500
$1 000
$12 000
$1 000
$1 000
$1 000
$1 000
$1 700
$11 800
$11 000
$1 000
$1 000
$146 046
$5 000
$5 000
$2 000
$66 673
$66 217

$4 500
$6 500
$4 965
$1 300
$2 500
$1 000
$12 000
$1 000
$1 000
$1 000
$1 000
$1 700
$11 800
$11 000
$1 000
$1 000
$5 000
$5 000
$2 000
$5 000
$2 500
$315 000
$1 000
$1 000
$1 000
$15 000
$10 000
$4 376
$20 000
$10 000

$2 500
$315 000
$1 000
$1 000
$1 000
$148 000
$35 344
$32 999
$41 249
$10 000
$85 386
$4 376
$20 000
$10 000
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Organisation name
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343

The Girls’ Brigade Western Australia Inc
The Great Southern Factor Inc
The Nintirri Centre Incorporated
The Patricia Giles Centre Inc.
The Richmond Fellowship
The Roman Catholic Bishop of Geraldton Centacare
Family Services
The School Volunteer Program Inc
The Scout Association of Australia Western
Australian Branch
The Spiers Centre Inc
The University of the 3rd Age
Therapy Focus Inc
Therapy Through Technology
Three Springs Childcare Inc.
Town of Bassendean
Town of Claremont
Town of Kwinana
Town of Narrogin
True Blue Dreaming Incorporated
UN Women Australia Inc
Uni Camp for Teens Inc.
UnitingCare West
United Nations Association of Australia WA Division Inc.
University of Western Australia
Upper Great Southern Family Day Care Scheme
Useful Inc
Varley Progress Association
Vibe Australia Pty. Ltd.
Voces Arts Networking Group
Volunteer Centre Of Western Australia (Inc)
Volunteer South West Inc
Volunteering WA
WA Council on Addictions
WA Indigenous Tourism Operators Council
Association Inc
Wagin Youth Centre Inc
Waikiki Community & Family Centre Inc
Wanslea Family Services Incorporated
Waratah Christian Community Inc
Warmun Community Inc
Warnbro Community and Family Centre Incorporated
Waroona Community Resource Centre Inc
Wellstead Community Resource Centre
West Coast Gymnasts Inc

Recurrent
funding

Grant
funding

Total
funding

$32 999

$1 000
$1 000
$5 000
$3 270
$10 000

$33 999
$1 000
$5 000
$3 270
$10 000

$49 109

$40 861
$49 109

$2 500
$5 000
$72 800
$10 000
$4 325
$700
$3 000
$1 000
$1 000
$10 000
$3 260
$1 000
$4 000
$500
$10 000
$200 000
$5 000
$5 000
$5 000
$41 000
$1 000
$17 300
$100 000

$284 621
$99 501
$2 500
$5 000
$72 800
$10 000
$4 325
$700
$3 000
$1 000
$1 000
$10 000
$3 260
$1 000
$4 000
$500
$10 000
$200 000
$5 000
$5 000
$5 000
$548 735
$34 865
$17 300
$100 000

$40 861
$284 621
$99 501

$507 735
$33 865

$46 545
$276 216
$44 830
$44 830
$63 688

$3 000
$1 000
$125 000
$1 000
$500
$637

$3 000
$1 000
$46 545
$401 216
$44 830
$1 000
$44 830
$63 688
$500
$637
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Organisation name
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371

West Stirling Neighbourhood House Inc
Westerly Family Centre Inc
Western Australian Association for Toy Libraries
Western Australian Council of Social Service Inc
Western Australian Land Authority (LandCorp)
Rockingham Kwinana Development Office
Westonia Community Resource Centre
Wheelchairs for Kids
Whitford Family Centre Inc
Wickepin Community Resource Centre Inc
Women Lawyers of Western Australia Inc.
Women’s Health Care Association Inc.
Wongutha CAPS (Christian Aboriginal
Parent-Directed Incorporated)
Woodlupine Family Centre Inc
Workpower Inc
Wunan Foundation Inc.
Wyndham Family Support Inc
Yaandina Family Centre Inc
Yakanarra Aboriginal Corporation
Yangebup Family Centre Inc
Yarloop Community Resource Centre Inc
Yilgarn Occasional Child Care Centre Inc
YMCA of Perth Youth and Community Services
Yongergnow Inc
Yorgum Aboriginal Corporation
Youth Affairs Council of Western Australia
Youth Focus Inc
Youth Futures WA Inc
Zig Zag Community Arts Incorporated

Grand total

Note: the figures are based on actual expenditure for 2011–12.

Recurrent
funding
$70 701
$46 545
$594 292

$46 545
$25 399

Grant
funding

Total
funding

$10 000
$22 500

$70 701
$46 545
$10 000
$616 792

$35 000
$2 000
$700
$1 000
$5 000
$5 000

$3 476
$5 000

$5 000
$46 545
$360 000
$5 000
$70 579
$153 306
$5 000
$57 988
$500
$27 887
$176 410
$1 000
$5 000
$274 496
$256 159
$3 476
$5 000

$17 888 363 $8 404 418

$26 292 781

$46 545
$70 579
$153 306
$57 988
$22 887

$214 496
$256 159

$5 000

$35 000
$2 000
$700
$46 545
$26 399
$5 000
$5 000

$360 000
$5 000
$5 000
$500
$5 000
$176 410
$1 000
$5 000
$60 000
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6.2 Advisory councils and reference groups
6.2.1 Seniors Ministerial Advisory Council
Terms of reference

Membership

Ţ U PQSPWJEFTFOJPSTBOEUIFJSSFQSFTFOUBUJWF
bodies an avenue to directly express their
ideas and concerns to the Minister for Seniors
and Volunteering

Ms June van de Klashorst JP
(Chair)

Ţ U PDPOTVMUSFHVMBSMZXJUISFMFWBOUDPNNVOJUZ
organisations and individuals on matters
relevant to seniors
Ţ U PQSPWJEFBEWJDFPOHPWFSONFOUQPMJDJFTBOE
programs relevant to seniors
Ţ U PQSPWJEFBEWJDFPONBUUFSTSFMFWBOUUP
seniors’ interests referred by the Minister or
raised as a result of community consultation.

Mrs Joy Jeffes OAM BA JP
Ms Bettine Heathcote
Ms June McDonald
Mr Tom Rollo
Ms Margaret Thomas
Ms Ruth Kershaw
Mr John Slattery
Councillor Helen Attrill
(term completed 28 June 2012)
Mr Peter Kennedy
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6.2.2 Cadets WA Reference Group
Terms of reference
Ţ U PGPTUFSBOEQSPNPUFUIFPCKFDUJWFTPGUIF
Cadets WA program
Ţ F OTVSFBIJHIMFWFMPGDPPSEJOBUJPOBOE
cooperation between the host organisations
involved in the program
Ţ Q
 SPWJEFTUSBUFHJDBEWJDFPOQPMJDZJTTVFT
relating to the promotion and development of
the program
Ţ F OTVSFUIFOFFETPGQBSUJDJQBUJOHIPTU
agencies are met within the objectives and
framework of the program
Ţ F ODPVSBHFUIFEFWFMPQNFOUPGDBEFUUSBJOJOH
and related activities in the state.
Membership
Mr Ray Peters (Chair)
Department for Communities
Ms Arlene Moncrieff
Department of Environment and Conservation
(commenced January 2012)
Ms Caroline Conway-Physick
Department of Environment and Conservation
(term completed 31 December 2011)
Ms Jo Scardigno
Fire and Emergency Services Authority
(commenced January 2012)
Ms Bernadette Foster
Fire and Emergency Services Authority
(term completed 31 December 2011)
Senior Sergeant Scott Arnold
WA Police Service
Ms Barbara Ball
Australian Red Cross

Ms Alexandra Treweek
St John Ambulance
Ms Renee Scully
Surf Life Saving WA
Ms Joselyn Fissioli
Swan River Trust
(commenced January 2012)
Lieutenant Commander Michael Vasey ANC
Australian Navy Cadets – Leeuwin Flotilla
Lieutenant Commander Peter Martin ANC
Australian Navy Cadets – Gallipoli Flotilla
Lieutenant Colonel (AAC) Robert Barber
Australian Army Cadets WA Brigade
Wing Commander (AAFC) Robert Somerville AM
Australian Air Force Cadets – 7 Wing
(commenced January 2012)
Squadron Leader (AAFC) Damian Lambert
Australian Air Force Cadets – 7 Wing
(term completed 31 December 2011)
Mr Kevin Lange
Independent Schools Association of WA
Mr Phil White AM
Department of Education
Dr Tony Curry
Catholic Education Office
Mr Damian Wallis
Catholic Education Office
(term completed 31 December 2011)
Mr Matthew Hunt
Department for Communities
Mr Geoff Hurren (Executive Officer)
Department for Communities
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6.2.3 Carers Advisory Council
Terms of reference

Membership

Ţ UPSFQPSUBOOVBMMZPO

Ms Lynette Isted
(Chair, appointed 29 August 2011)

– the performance by reporting organisations
of their obligations under the Carers
Recognition Act 2004
– compliance or non-compliance by reporting
organisations with the Act and
– compliance or non-compliance by reporting
organisations with the Carers Charter
Ţ U PXPSLUPBEWBODFUIFJOUFSFTUTPGDBSFST
and promote compliance by applicable
organisations with the Carers Charter
Ţ U PNBLFSFDPNNFOEBUJPOTUPUIF.JOJTUFS
on fostering compliance by applicable
organisations with the Carers Charter
Ţ U PTFDVSFUIFWJFXTPGDBSFSTPOJTTVFTSFMBUJOH
to their caring role and provide ongoing advice
to the Minister on matters relating to carers
Ţ U PQSPWJEFJOGPSNBUJPOBOETVQQPSUUPUIF
applicable organisations to assist them to
comply with the Carers Charter
Ţ U PFOTVSFUIBUBMMDBSFSTHSPVQTBSF
represented, including younger carers,
Indigenous and culturally and linguistically
diverse carers and carers from rural and
remote areas
Ţ U PSFQPSUUPUIF.JOJTUFSGPS4FOJPSTBOE
Volunteering.

Ms Kristine McConnell
(Deputy Chair)
Mr Charlie Rook
Ms Melissa Webb
Mr Greg Mahney
Mr Atul Garg
(appointed 29 August 2011)
Mrs Shirley Fitzthum
(appointed 29 August 2011)
Mrs Karena Sherriff
(appointed 31 March 2012)
Mrs Kim Hudson
(appointed 31 March 2012)
Ms Ellen Walker
(previous Chair, term completed 31 January 2012)
Ms Mary Deschamp
(previous Deputy Chair, term completed 31
January 2012)
Ms Lydia Gallant
(term completed 27 April 2012)
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6.2.4 Women’s Advisory Council
Terms of reference

Membership

Ţ U PQSPWJEFBOBWFOVFUPEJSFDUMZFYQSFTT
ideas and concerns to the Minister for
Women’s Interests

Ms Maria Saraceni (Chair)

Ţ U PDPOTVMUSFHVMBSMZXJUISFMFWBOUXPNFOśT
organisations and individuals on matters
pertaining to women
Ţ UPQSPWJEFBEWJDFPOHPWFSONFOUQPMJDJFTBOE
programs relevant to women
Ţ UPNPOJUPSUIFJNQBDUUIBUSFMFWBOU
government policies, programs and changes
implemented have on women
Ţ UPQSPWJEFBEWJDFPONBUUFSTSFGFSSFECZUIF
Minister or raised as a result of community
consultation.

Ms Agnes Vacca (Deputy Chair)
Ms Amanda Lovitt
Professor Lesley Cala
Ms Annette Chivers
Ms Lily Chen
Ms Cheryl Thomas
Ms Holly Ransom
Ms Fiona Lander
(appointed 1 December 2011)
Mrs Phillipa Page
(appointed 1 December 2011)
Ms Kara Stange
(appointed 1 December 2011)
Ms Rosemary Waldon-Hartfield
(appointed 1 December 2011)
Professor Rowena Barrett
(appointed 1 December 2011)
Councillor Julie Brown
(term completed 30 November 2011)
Ms Ann Deanus
(term completed 30 November 2011)
Ms Helen McNeair
(term completed 30 November 2011)
Ms Penelope Northcott
(term completed 30 November 2011)
Ms Pat Twiss
(term completed 30 November 2011)

Women’s Information Service
t: (08) 6551 8700 (metro)
Freecall: 1800 199 174 (country)

Education and Care Regulatory Unit (from 1 August 2012)

t: (08) 6210 3333
Freecall: 1800 199 383 (country)
Level 1, 111 Wellington Street, East Perth WA 6004

Parenting WA Line
Freecall: 1800 654 432

WA Seniors Card Centre

t: (08) 6551 8800 (metro)
Freecall: 1800 671 233 (country)
Level 2, 140 William Street, Perth WA 6000
(Entry is from lifts in the arcade off the Murray St Mall)

Seniors Telephone Information Service
t: (08) 6551 8800 (metro)
Freecall: 1800 671 233 (country)

Department for Communities
Gordon Stephenson House
140 William Street
Perth WA 6000
t: (08) 6551 8700
f: (08) 6551 8556
e: info@communities.wa.gov.au
w: www.communities.wa.gov.au
National Relay Service TTY: 13 3677
(for people with hearing and/or voice impairment)
This document is available on request in alternative
formats such as large print, audio file and braille.
© 2012 Department for Communities. All rights reserved.
This material may be reproduced in whole or in part provided the source is acknowledged.
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